
Governing Board 
Meeting

Agenda  
and  

Meeting Information 

June 26, 2018 

9:00 AM 

Brooksville Office 
2379 Broad Street • Brooksville, Florida 

(352) 796-7211

\ 



2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899 

(352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only)

WaterMatters.org

An Equal 
Opportunity 
Employer

The Southwest Florida Water Management District (District) does not discriminate on the basis of disability.  This nondiscrimination 
policy involves every aspect of the District's functions, including access to and participation in the District's programs and activities.  
Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation as provided for in the Americans with Disabilities Act should contact the District's Human 
Resources Bureau Chief at 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899; telephone (352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only), 
ext. 4703; or email ADACoordinator@WaterMatters.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the 
Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).    

M
EE

TI
N

G
 N

O
TI

CE
   

Final Agenda 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 
JUNE 26, 2018 

9:00 AM 
Brooksville Office 

2379 BROAD STREET, BROOKSVILLE, FL 34604 
(352) 796-7211

  All meetings are open to the public. 

Viewing of the Board meeting will be available at each of the District offices
and through the District’s web site (www.watermatters.org) -- follow directions
to use internet streaming.
Public input will be taken only at the meeting location.
Public input for issues not listed on the published agenda will be heard shortly
after the meeting begins.

Pursuant to Section 373.079(7), Florida Statutes, all or part of this meeting may be 
conducted by means of communications media technology in order to permit  

maximum participation of Governing Board members. 

The Governing Board may take official action at this meeting on any item appearing 
on this agenda and on any item that is added to this agenda as a result of a 

change to the agenda approved by the presiding officer of the meeting 
pursuant to Section 120.525, Florida Statutes. 

The order of items appearing on the agenda is subject to change 
during the meeting and is at the discretion of the presiding officer. 

Public Comment will be taken after each presentation and before any 
Governing Board action(s) except for Governing Board hearings that involve 
the issuance of final orders based on recommended Orders received from 

the Florida Division of Administrative Hearings. 

Unless specifically stated, scheduled items will not be heard at a time certain. 

The current Governing Board agenda and minutes of previous meetings 
are on the District's web site:  www.WaterMatters.org 

 
Bartow Office 
170 Century Boulevard  
Bartow, Florida  33830-7700 
(863) 534-1448 or 1-800-492-7862 (FL only)

Sarasota Office 
6750 Fruitville Road 
Sarasota, Florida  34240-9711 
(941) 377-3722 or 1-800-320-3503 (FL only)

Tampa Office 
7601 Hwy 301 N (Fort King Highway) 
Tampa, Florida  33637-6759 
(813) 985-7481 or 1-800-836-0797 (FL only)



SWFWMD Governing Board Agenda ~ 3~ June 26, 2018 

SWFWMD Page 3 Updated 6/15/2018 11:45 AM  

9:00 A.M. CONVENE PUBLIC HEARING AND MEETING (TAB A) 
 

1. Call to Order
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Employee Recognition
4. Additions/Deletions to Agenda
5. Public Input for Issues Not Listed on the Published Agenda

CONSENT AGENDA (TAB B) 
 

Resource Management Committee 
 

6. Pinellas County - McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane - Scope
Change (N828)

7. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative
Code, to Correct Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After
August 7, 2000, and Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels Adopted Prior to August 7, 2000

8. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative
Code, to Adopt Minimum and Guidance Levels for Lakes Dosson and Sunshine in
Hillsborough County (P256)

Finance/Outreach & Planning Committee 
 

9. Lakes Appreciation Month
10. Independent Auditing Services
11. Adopt Resolutions to Identify New Slate of Officers for Financial Documents
12. Governing Board Travel - Annual Environmental Permitting Summer School
13. Budget Transfer Refundable Deposit for Relocation
14. Budget Transfer Report

Operations, Lands and Resource Monitoring Committee 
 

15. Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake
Venus, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-131

16. Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake
Aurora, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-129

17. Offer for Surplus Land – Weekiwachee Preserve (WW-6), SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S
18. Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease, SWF Parcel No. 19-441-112X, Award for the Request for

Offers (RFO) 18-02
Regulation Committee 

 

19. Individual Water Use Permits Referred to the Governing Board - None
General Counsel's Report 

 

20. Administrative, Enforcement and Litigation Activities that Require Governing Board Approval
a. Interagency Agreement between SWFWMD and SFWMD -- Designation of Regulatory

Responsibility – WUP - Grenelefe Golf and Tennis Club – Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. –
Polk County

b. Amendment to Conservation Easement for Hilochee Mitigation Bank – ERP No.
43042047.000 – Polk County

21. Rulemaking
a. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., to Revise Form

LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License
Executive Director's Report 

 

22. Approve Governing Board Minutes - May 22, 2018
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (TAB C) 

 

Discussion 
 

23. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion
24. Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative

Submit & File Reports - None 
 

Routine Reports 
 

25. Minimum Flows and Levels Status Report



SWFWMD Governing Board Agenda ~ 4~ June 26, 2018 

SWFWMD Page 4 Updated 6/15/2018 11:45 AM  

26. Significant Water Resource and Development Projects
FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE (TAB D) 

 

Discussion 
 

27. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion
28. Fiscal Year 2019 Recommended Annual Service Budget

Submit & File Reports  
 

29. Payroll (Overtime) Budgeting
30. Travel Procedure Review

Routine Reports 
 

31. Treasurer's Report and Payment Register
32. Monthly Financial Statement
33. Monthly Cash Balances by Fiscal Year
34. Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Related Reviews Report
35. Development of Regional Impact Activity Report

OPERATIONS, LANDS AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE (TAB E) 
 

Discussion 
 

36. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion
Submit & File Reports  

 

37. Hydrologic Conditions Report
Routine Reports 

 

38. Surplus Lands Update
39. Structure Operations
40. Significant Activities

REGULATION COMMITTEE (TAB F) 
 

Discussion 
 

41. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion
42. Denials Referred to the Governing Board

Submit & File Reports - None 
 

Routine Reports 
 

43. Dover/Plant City Water Use Caution Area Flow Meter AMR Implementation Program Update
44. Overpumpage Report
45. Individual Permits Issued by District Staff

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT (TAB G) 
 

Discussion 
 

46. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion
47. Revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal – Delegation of Authority to General Counsel for

Certain Administrative Hearing Matters
Submit & File Reports - None 

 

Routine Reports 
 

48. June 2018 - Litigation Report
49. June 2018 - Rulemaking Update

COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS (TAB H) 
 

50. Agricultural and Green Industry Advisory Committees
51. Committee/Liaison Reports

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT (TAB I) 
 

52. Executive Director's Report
CHAIR'S REPORT (TAB J) 

 

53. Chair's Report
54. Other



SWFWMD Governing Board Agenda ~ 5~ June 26, 2018 

SWFWMD Page 5 Updated 6/15/2018 11:45 AM  

55. Employee Milestones
   RECESS PUBLIC HEARING   

ANNOUNCEMENTS http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/calendar 

Governing Board Meetings Schedule: 
  Meeting - Clearwater, Tampa Bay Water  ...................................................          July 24, 2018 
Meeting - Tampa  .................................................................................         August 28, 2018 

 Meeting - Tampa  ...............................................................................     September 25, 2018 
 Meeting - TBD  ..................................................................................................................  TBD 

Governing Board Public Budget Hearings Schedule: 
Tentative Budget - Tampa  .......................................................................  September 11, 2018 

 Final Budget - Tampa  ..............................................................................  September 25, 2018 
Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule: 

 Environmental - Tampa  ...................................................................................     July 10, 2018 
 Well Drillers - Tampa   .....................................................................................      July 11, 2018 
 Industrial - Tampa  .....................................................................................       August 14, 2018 

Public Supply - Tampa  ...................................................................................  August 14, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Governing Board may take action on any matter on the printed agenda including such items listed as 
reports, discussions, or program presentations.  The Governing Board may make changes to the printed 
agenda only for good cause as determined by the Chair, and stated in the record. 

If a party decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at a 
hearing or these meetings, that party will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose that 
party may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

If you wish to address the Board concerning any item listed on the agenda or an issue that does not 
appear on the agenda, please fill out a speaker's card at the reception desk in the lobby and give it to the 
recording secretary.  Your card will be provided to the Chair who will call on you at the appropriate time 
during the meeting.  When addressing the Board, please step to the podium, adjust the microphone for 
your comfort, and state your name for the record.  Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
In appropriate circumstances, the Chair may grant exceptions to the three-minute limit. 

The Board will accept and consider written comments from any person if those comments are submitted 
to the District at Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 
34604-6899.  The comments should identify the number of the item on the agenda and the date of the 
meeting.  Any written comments received after the Board meeting will be retained in the file as a public 
record. 



GOVERNING BOARD OFFICERS, 
COMMITTEES AND LIAISONS 

Effective June 2018

OFFICERS 
Chair Jeffrey M. Adams

Vice Chair Ed Armstrong
Secretary Bryan K. Beswick
Treasurer Michelle Williamson

OPERATIONS, LANDS AND
RESOURCE MONITORING

COMMITTEE

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Randall S. Maggard, Chair Kelly S. Rice, Chair
James G. Murphy, Vice Chair Michael A. Babb, Vice Chair

Kelly S. Rice John Henslick
Mark Taylor Bryan K. Beswick

REGULATION
COMMITTEE

FINANCE/OUTREACH AND
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Mark Taylor, Chair Michelle Williamson, Chair
John Henslick, Vice Chair Ed Armstrong, Vice Chair

H. Paul Senft Michael A. Babb
Rebecca Smith Joel Schleicher

* Board policy requires the Governing Board
Treasurer to chair the Finance Committee.

STANDING COMMITTEE LIAISONS
Agricultural Advisory Committee Bryan K. Beswick

Environmental Advisory Committee Michelle Williamson
Green Industry Advisory Committee Mark Taylor

Industrial Advisory Committee Rebecca Smith
Public Supply Advisory Committee H. Paul Senft

Well Drillers Advisory Committee James G. Murphy

OTHER LIAISONS
Central Florida Water Initiative H. Paul Senft/Jeffrey M. Adams (alt)

Springs Coast Steering Committee Kelly S. Rice
Charlotte Harbor National Estuary Program Policy Board John Henslick

Sarasota Bay Estuary Program Policy Board Joel Schleicher
Tampa Bay Estuary Program Policy Board Jeffrey M. Adams

Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council Ed Armstrong



 Editing Tabs...
THIS VERSION IS STRICTLY FOR PRINT SHOP REPRO PROJECTS! FOR LOCAL PRINTER TAB PRINTING, USE "LOCAL_PRINTER_TABS.PDF"

CREATING 1 TO 60 TABS USING TAB STACK1. Under menu item "Forms," select/activate "Add or Edit Fields..."  2. The "Fields" panel activates at left; right-click text box icon for the respective page tab and choose "Properties" (this completely avoids inadvertent moving/repositioning of the tab text box resulting in bad positioning). 3. Within "Text Field Properties," select the "Options" tab to edit text in "Default Value" box (NOTES: "Appearance" tab allows font and font size to be selected; "General" tab default of "Read Only" assures no form fields can be edited by user). 4. Don't close "Text Field Properties" dialog — just advance page to next tab for edit, right-click "Properties" and edit text in "Default Value" box. 6. When completed, save as a new file (retaining the original tabs master for next use), close forms tool dialog and view Pages panel at left; select and right-click to delete any unneeded tabbed pages. 



Executive Summary 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 26, 2018 
9:00 a.m. 

If viewing this document electronically, links are available from the Executive Summary to the 
item’s information page. To return to the Executive Summary, click within the item text. 

CONVENE PUBLIC HEARING & MEETING (TAB A)
1. Call to Order

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

3. Employee Recognition

4. Additions/Deletions to Agenda

5. Public Input for Issues Not Listed on the Published Agenda

CONSENT AGENDA (TAB B) 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and action will be taken by one 
motion, second of the motion and approval by the Board. If discussion is requested by a Board member, 
the item(s) will be deleted from the Consent Agenda and moved to the appropriate Committee or Report 
for consideration. 

Resource Management Committee 
6. Pinellas County - McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane - Scope

Change (N828)
The Board approved this Pinellas County (County) project during the fiscal year (FY) 2017 and  2018
cooperative funding initiative (CFI) budget cycles. The total estimated project cost for McKay Creek
Water Quality Improvements is $600,000 with the District, Florida Department of Transportation and
County each contributing $200,000. The project, as approved by the Board, includes construction of
stormwater Best Management Practices (BMPs) to treat contributing drainage areas of approximately
3,824 acres, with pollutant reductions of 6,301 lbs/yr of total suspended solids (TSS) and 157 lbs/yr
of Total Nitrogen (TN). BMPs will be implemented for the area along McKay Creek and Hickory Lane
reducing stormwater impacts to McKay Creek.

The County requested a revision to the resource benefits included in the scope of work. During
design, the geotechnical findings resulted in a change to the project footprint which lowered the
resource benefit.  Removal efficiency estimates have decreased to 5,560 lbs/yr TSS and 131 lbs/yr
TN. The approved and revised resource benefits are included in the table below.

Resource Benefit Approved Revised 
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) lbs/yr 6,301 5,560 
Total Nitrogen (TN) lbs/yr 157 131 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 2 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

The project objectives and cost effectiveness ranking has not changed. The project cost remains 
$600,000 with the District providing one-third ($200,000). The project, as originally approved by the 
Board, had an overall ranking of Medium. The requested change from the County will not change the 
overall ranking. 

Staff recommends the Board approve the revision to decrease the pollutant removal estimates from 
6,301 lbs./yr. TSS and 157 lbs./yr. TN to 5,560 lbs./yr. TSS and 131 lbs./yr.TN for the McKay Creek 
Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane project, which is the resource benefit in the 
cooperative agreement. 

7. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative Code,
to Correct Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After August 7,
2000, and Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels Adopted Prior to August 7, 2000
In Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Table 8-2 is a list of lakes for which Minimum
and Guidance Levels have been established by the District. Table 8-3 is a list of lakes for which only
Guidance Water Levels have been established by the District. This rule amendment revises these
tables to correct inadvertent scrivener’s errors. These corrections consist of the following:

1. Revise Table 8-2 to add the lake Category (CAT 3) associated with the High Minimum and
Minimum Lake Levels for Lake Aurora and Lake Easy.

2. Delete Lake Raleigh and associated Guidance Levels from Table 8-3. Guidance Levels for
Lake Raleigh in Table 8-3 were replaced by Minimum and Guidance Levels included in
Table 8-2 that were developed in more recent assessments.

3. Delete Lake Rogers and “No Levels Recommended” from Table 8-3. Minimum and
Guidance Levels that were developed in more recent assessments for Lake Rogers were
included in Table 8-2.

4. Delete lakes Bonable, Little Bonable, and Tiger from Table 8-3. Minimum and Guidance
Levels for these three lakes developed in more recent assessments were included in Table
8-2.

5. Re-list Lake Ellen, located in Section 10, Township 28S, Range 18E, in Hillsborough
County, and the associated Guidance Levels, in Table 8-3.  Lake Ellen was incorrectly
deleted from Table 8-3 when Minimum and Guidance Levels were approved and added to
Table 8-2 for a different Lake Ellen located in Section 19, Township 27S, Range 18E.

6. Revise Table 8-3 to add the Section, Township, and Range for 73 lakes.
7. Revise Table 8-3 to correct spelling of Lake Whistler

These corrections do not include approval of any new Minimum or Guidance Levels not previously 
approved by the Governing Board, therefore support documents such as studies are not provided. 

Staff recommends the Board initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., to 
include the proposed changes to Tables 8-2 and 8-3, as shown in the Exhibit. 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 3 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

8. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative Code,
to Adopt Minimum and Guidance Levels for Lakes Dosson and Sunshine in Hillsborough
County (P256)
Minimum levels are water levels at which further withdrawals would be significantly harmful to the
water resources of the area. Guidance levels are used to describe expected water level fluctuations
and serve as advisory information for the construction of lakeshore development, water dependent
structures, and operation of water management structures. Minimum and Guidance levels for Dosson
and Sunshine Lakes were adopted into Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., in July 18, 2000. Section
373.0421(3), Florida Statutes, requires that minimum flows and levels shall be reevaluated
periodically and revised as needed.

Dosson and Sunshine Lakes are included in the Northern Tampa Bay group of lakes selected for
Minimum and Guidance level reevaluation. These reevaluations are being completed using up-to-
date hydrologic, biologic, and survey data; recently-developed hydrologic models; and peer-reviewed
methodologies to determine if any revisions are needed for currently adopted levels. Based on this
reevaluation, and as shown in the attached Exhibit (Table 8-2), the Guidance and Minimum levels for
both lakes are proposed to increase by 0.4 to 0.5 feet.

The technical report outlining the development of the proposed levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes
was posted on the District's website prior to the public workshop held on May 8, 2018. The workshop
was held in the vicinity of the lake. District staff addressed questions and concerns at the workshop
relating to the proposed Minimum and Guidance levels. No specific recommendations or comments
that warranted changes to the proposed minimum levels were made by workshop participants. A
summary of the public workshop, including comments and discussion, is available upon request.

An updated assessment of status was performed, and Dosson and Sunshine Lakes water levels were
determined to be 0.5 feet below the proposed Minimum Lake Level and at the High Minimum Lake
level. Dosson and Sunshine Lakes are within the Northern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution Area and
are considered part of the recovery strategy that is outlined in Rule 40D-80.073, F.A.C. The District
plans to continue regular monitoring of water levels in Dosson and Sunshine Lakes and will also
routinely evaluate the status of the lakes’ water levels with respect to adopted minimum levels for the
lakes included in Chapter 40D-8, F.A.C.

Benefits/Costs
Adoption of Minimum Levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes will support the District's water supply
planning, Water Use Permitting, and Environmental Resource Permitting programs. Adoption of
Guidance Levels will provide advisory information for the construction of lakeshore development,
water dependent structures, and operation of water management structures. A Statement of
Estimated Regulatory Costs is not required for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes as this rulemaking is not
expected to result in any direct or indirect cost increases for small businesses or increased regulatory
costs in excess of $200,000 within one year of implementation.

Staff recommends the Board:
A. Accept the report entitled, “Revised Minimum and Guidance Levels Based on Reevaluation of

Levels Adopted for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes in Hillsborough County, Florida.”
B. Authorize staff to make any necessary minor clarifying edits that may result from the rulemaking

process and to complete report finalization.
C. Initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., to include the proposed

Minimum and Guidance Levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes in Hillsborough County, as
shown in the Exhibit.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 4 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Finance/Outreach & Planning Committee 
9. Lakes Appreciation Month

The North American Lake Management Society (NALMS) annually proclaims July as Lakes
Appreciation Month. The intent of the annual resolution is to raise awareness of the importance and
benefits lakes provide. In addition, NALMS conducts its annual Secchi Dip-In each July. Started in
the United States, the Secchi Dip-In is now an international effort in which volunteers produce a
“snapshot” of water clarity in lakes around the world.

By adopting proclamations, Florida’s water management districts recognize the importance of
increasing public awareness of the value of Florida’s lakes and encouraging behaviors that will
enhance lakes’ health.

Staff recommends the Board approve and execute Resolution No. 18-07 declaring July 2018 as
“Lakes Appreciation Month.”

10. Independent Auditing Services
On July 25, 2017, the Governing Board approved the hiring of JMCO, Certified Public Accountants,
to perform the annual audit of the District’s financial statements and the necessary federal and state
single audits as a result of the District’s bid.  The contract was awarded to JMCO for one-year, with
four one-year renewals in accordance with the provisions of the bid.  This renewal represents the first
one-year renewal.

JMCO has agreed to keep the fees the same as the previous year.  With the fees remaining the same,
there are no significant changes to the contract other than the time requirements, reflecting that the
audit is for the fiscal year 2017-18 financial audit.

Staff recommends the Board:
(1) Exercise the first renewal option within the current contract to amend the agreement to

engage JMCO to perform the fiscal year 2017-18 auditing services; and
(2) Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with JMCO to perform the fiscal year

2017-18 auditing services.

11. Adopt Resolutions to Identify New Slate of Officers for Financial Documents
Following its annual election of officers in May, the new officers assume their offices twenty-four (24)
hours prior to the June Governing Board meeting. Resolutions must be adopted to give the new slate
of officers the authority to sign and countersign all District warrants or checks. Section 373.553,
Florida Statutes, requires District funds to be disbursed by check or warrant signed by the treasurer
or assistant treasurer (secretary) and countersigned by the chair or vice chair of the board. The newly
elected officers for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary/Assistant Treasurer, and Treasurer/Assistant
Secretary are identified by adoption of the resolutions, which will provide their signatures to SunTrust.

The District’s Custody Agreement retains and employs SunTrust Bank, through its Wealth and
Investment Management Division, to act as custodian of certain securities and funds of the District.
Following the annual election of officers in May, a new Corporate Resolution must be adopted to give
the new slate of officers the authority to give direction or confirmation to the Bank on all matters
regarding the Custody Agreement and Account.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 5 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Staff recommends the Board: 
(1) Authorize the new slate of officers to apply their signatures to the required financial

documents and;
(2) Adopt Resolution No. 18-08 authorizing the signatures of the newly elected officers of the

Governing Board of the District and the use of facsimile or manual signatures on all warrants
or checks of the District.

(3) Adopt the SunTrust Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization for Business Entities
document to identify the new slate of officers as authorized signers on existing accounts and
give the officers the authority to give direction or confirmation to the Bank on all matters
regarding the District’s deposit accounts.

(4) Adopt the SunTrust Corporate Resolution document to identify the new slate of officers as
authorized signers on existing accounts and give the officers the authority to give direction or
confirmation to the Bank on all matters regarding the District’s custody accounts.

12. Governing Board Travel – Annual Environmental Permitting Summer School
District policy states that in accordance with Chapters 112 and 373, Florida Statutes, travel expenses
may be incurred for official District business or for a public purpose beneficial to the District. Travel
to any conference or convention requires prior approval.

Within the geographic boundaries of the District, Governing Board members may incur travel
expenses to attend Governing Board meetings or for other purposes beneficial to the District,
excluding conferences and conventions. Scheduled travel for Governing Board members outside the
District or to attend conferences or conventions requires prior approval through the consent agenda
of a regular monthly Governing Board meeting. Non-scheduled travel outside the District or to attend
any conference or convention requires prior approval of the Governing Board Chair, or in his absence,
the Vice Chair.

Staff recommends the Board approve Governing Board travel as presented.

13. Budget Transfer Refundable Deposit for Relocation
The District acquired the property for the Sarasota Office in 2000 and constructed the office in 2001.
The Sarasota Office is located on a 4.6-acre site and has approximately 19,540 gross square feet of
office and storage space. The Sarasota Office exceeds the size requirements for the 36 staff that are
assigned to this location.

At the May 22, 2018 Governing Board Meeting, Staff recommended, and the Governing Board
approved the following items:
• In accordance with Fla. Stat. §373.089, declare the Sarasota Office as surplus.
• Authorize the Executive Director, with the concurrence of the Office of General Counsel, to deliver

a Letter of Intent to an owner or representative for the potential lease or purchase of a candidate
property, before bringing a Lease or Purchase and Sale Agreement to the Governing Board for
consideration.

• Payment of a refundable deposit of not more than 5 percent of the advertised price, if necessary,
to secure a property before Governing Board consideration of a Lease or Purchase and Sale
Agreement.

• Authorize staff to prepare a budget amendment in an amount not to exceed $2.3 million and
submit the budget amendment to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for review
and approval by the Executive Office of the Governor.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 6 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Pursuant to the May 2018 Governing Board approval of the above items, staff are actively searching 
for a replacement facility for lease or purchase in the Sarasota area.  When a suitable property has 
been located, budget authority would be required for payment of a refundable deposit and any 
ancillary costs associated with due diligence activities, to hold a property prior to bringing a lease or 
purchase to the Governing Board for consideration. Staff requests transfer of funds of $115,000 (5 
percent of $2.3 million) from the Sarasota Skylight Replacements project for this purpose. 

Staff recommends the Board approve the transfer of $115,000 from the Sarasota Skylight 
Replacements project for the purpose of funding a refundable deposit and any ancillary due diligence 
costs to hold a property prior to Governing Board consideration of a lease or purchase and sale 
agreement. 

14. Budget Transfer Report
In accordance with Board Policy No. 130-8, Budget Authority Transfer of Funds, all transfers
approved by the Executive Director and Finance Bureau Chief under delegated authority are regularly
presented to the Finance/Outreach & Planning Committee for approval on the Consent Agenda at
the next scheduled meeting.

Staff recommends the Board’s approval of the Budget Transfer Report covering all budget transfers
for May 2018.

Operations, Lands and Resource Monitoring Committee 

15. Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake Venus,
SWF Parcel No. 20-020-131
The minimum lake levels for Lake Venus became effective in 2008. Data from this monitoring well
site will improve the District’s ability to assess the annual lake level status relative to its adopted
minimum lake levels. The minimum lake level assessments allow for the determination of the
sustainable limits of traditional groundwater that can be used without causing unacceptable harm to
the water resources and associated natural systems.

The CFWI is a collaborative water supply planning effort designed to identify sustainable water
sources and develop strategies to address water demands within a five-county region in east-central
Florida. As part of the District’s role in this effort, additional groundwater data collection sites are
being pursued to support adoption and maintenance of minimum lake levels (MLL) at 19 lakes within
the Polk Uplands and Lake Wales Ridge. Aquifer monitoring near MLL lakes is essential to enhancing
the District’s understanding of these lakes and will be used to correlate changes in lake water levels
with changes in aquifer water levels due to groundwater withdrawals. Such data is necessary to
ensure compliance with adopted minimum lake levels, such as Lake Star, making the installation of
a monitoring well adjacent to the lake necessary.

The easement area is a  10-foot wide access strip with a 100-square-foot area to be used as a data
collection well site. The property is owned by Mr. and Mrs. Scelp and is located in southeastern Polk
County. Staff first explored the requested area for property owners that are more apt to donate a
parcel. This includes parcels that are not on the tax roll (state and local government, non-profits, etc.)
and non-residential tracts of more than one-acre where a wellsite may be inconsequential. Staff also
considers city, county, or state right- of- ways, when the cost to install a well is less than $20,000.
Staff contacted four property owners who declined to donate land.  In this instance Mr. and Mrs. Scelp
were unwilling to entertain a donation but agreed to an offer amount of $2,500 for an easement over
the proposed well site area and access to the site and existing lake gauge.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 7 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

A valuation of the easement was completed utilizing the “value in use” method related to the property 
interests necessary to support the proposed improvements to the site.  Value in use is a form of 
appraisal for special purpose properties that takes into consideration the value of installed features, 
such as a monitoring well, that better reflect the unique purpose of the parcel.  In accordance with 
District Policy, a State certified appraiser completed the appraisal estimating the use value of the site 
to be in the range of $2,158 to $4,316 and concluded that the negotiated amount is within the range 
of acceptable compensation.  The appraisal is available upon request. 

Acquisition Terms 
• Mr. and Mrs. Scelp agreed to the sale and conveyance of an easement interest of the

parcel necessary for construction, maintenance and monitoring activities on the site.
• The Easement will be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances objectionable to the

District.
• The District will pay transactional costs for closing, including the title insurance and recording

fees.
• Access to the Easement areas shall be made using the platted right-of-way adjacent to the

property. If at any time in the future the current owner or any adjacent owner should make
application to vacate the right-of-way, Polk County will require an Easement be dedicated to
the District to ensure continued access to the easement area(s).

Data from the Lake Venus wells and lake level gauge will improve the District’s understanding of 
the hydrologic conditions and provide for improved assessments of potential withdrawal-related 
impacts to water resources within the SWUCA and the CFWI areas. Transactional costs to the 
District for closing, including the title insurance and recording fees are expected to be approximately 
$450, capital improvements are not expected to exceed $16,000 and operation and maintenance of 
the site is not expected to exceed $1,000 per year. 

Staff recommends the Board: 
• Accept the valuation appraisal;
• Accept the Easement and any future Easements associated with right-of-way vacation;
• Approve the Purchase/Sale Agreement and authorize the Executive Director or Division

Director to sign on behalf of the District;
• Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in accordance

with the approved terms.

16. Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake Aurora,
SWF Parcel No. 20-020-129
The minimum lake levels for Lake Aurora became effective in February of 2018. Data from this
monitoring well site will improve the District’s ability to assess the annual lake level status relative
to its adopted minimum lake levels. The minimum lake level assessments allow for the
determination of the sustainable limits of traditional groundwater that can be used without causing
unacceptable harm to the water resources and associated natural systems.

The CFWI is a collaborative water supply planning effort designed to identify sustainable water
sources and develop strategies to address water demands within a five-county region in east-
central Florida. As part of the District’s role in this effort, additional groundwater data collection
sites are being pursued to support adoption and maintenance of minimum lake levels (MLL) at 19
lakes within the Polk Uplands and Lake Wales Ridge. Aquifer monitoring near MLL lakes is essential
to enhancing the District’s understanding of these lakes and will be used to correlate changes in
lake water levels with changes in aquifer water levels due to groundwater withdrawals.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 8 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

The easement a rea  is a 10-foot-wide access strip with a 150-square-foot area to be used as a 
data collection well site. The property is owned by Lake Aurora Christian Assembly (Assembly) and 
is located in southeastern Polk County. Staff first explores the requested area for property owners 
that are more apt to donate a parcel. This includes parcels that are not on the tax roll (state and local 
government, non-profits, etc.) and non-residential tracts of more than one-acre where a wellsite may 
be inconsequential. Staff also considers city, county, or state right- of- ways, when the cost to install 
a well is less than $20,000. Staff contacted several property owners who declined to donate land. 
Staff also contacted Polk County who owns a small boat ramp in the area, but it was determined to 
be insufficient in size. Staff then contacted the Assembly. They were unwilling to entertain a donation 
but agreed to an offer amount of $5,500 for an easement over the proposed well site area along with 
access to the site and the existing lake staff gauge. 

A valuation of the easement was completed utilizing the “value in use” method related to the 
property interests necessary to support the proposed improvements to the site.  Value in use is a 
form of appraisal for special purpose properties that takes into consideration the value of installed 
features, such as a monitoring well, that better reflect the unique purpose of the parcel. In 
accordance with District Policy, a State certified appraiser completed the appraisal estimating the 
use value of the site to be in the range of $4,843 to $9,685. The appraisal is available upon request. 

Acquisition Terms 
• The property owner has agreed to the sale and conveyance of an easement interest of the

parcel necessary for construction, maintenance and monitoring activities on the site.
• The Easement will be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances objectionable to the

District.
• The District will pay transactional costs for closing, including the title insurance and recording

fees.

Data from the Lake Aurora wells and lake level gauge will improve the District’s understanding of the 
hydrologic conditions and provide for improved assessments of potential withdrawal-related impacts 
to water resources within the SWUCA and the CFWI areas. The purchase of this easement will 
ensure the continued access to the existing staff gage as required by Rule and allow for CFWI Data 
Monitoring and Investigations Team workplan to proceed by allowing the District to immediately 
access, construct, maintain and monitor the wells at this location. Transactional costs to the District 
for closing, including the title insurance and recording fees are expected to be less than $700, capital 
improvements are not expected to exceed $62,000. and operation and maintenance of the site is not 
expected to exceed $1,000 per year. 

Staff recommends the Board: 
• Accept the valuation appraisal;
• Accept the Easement;
• Approve the Purchase/Sale Agreement and authorize the Executive Director or Division

Director to sign on behalf of the District;
• Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in accordance

with the approved terms.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 9 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

17. Offer of Surplus Land – Weekiwachee Preserve (WW-6), SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S
On May 19, 2015, the Governing Board declared SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S (WW-6) as surplus
property. The District received an offer for the purchase of WW-6 from Evelio and Marisol Calzadilla
for $57,000. The District acquired WW-6 in 1995 as part of the Weekiwachee Preserve project at a
prorated cost of $1,240 ($2,481 per acre). The parcel has frontage on Shoal Line Boulevard and is
zoned CV (Conservation). The future land use designation is commercial.

Saunders Real Estate listed the property and advertised it through multiple media and personal
contacts since April 11, 2017. This negotiation represents the only party who has made an offer on
this parcel. This is an offer at 4 percent above the appraised value without any contingency. Below is
a summary of the total and per acre cost information for WW-6.

Total Per Acre 
Offer Amount $57,000 $114,000 
Appraised Value $55,000 $110,000 
Listing Price $125,000 $250,000 
Property Appraiser Just Value $60,000 $120,000 
Total Purchase Basis (1996) $1,240 $2,481 

Woodman S. Herr, MAI, and Brian E. Zamorski, MAI with Herr Valuation Advisors, Inc. appraised the 
property on August 29, 2017 for $55,000. A summary of comparable values used to calculate the final 
value is attached as Exhibit 4. The appraiser determined that the highest and best use would be to 
build-to-suit for a specific commercial user or to hold for future development of a small retail or office 
building. The market value of the property determined in the appraisal is based on the title being free 
and clear of interests and encumbrances that impact value. There are no encumbrances on the 
property and title to the property includes the subsurface rights. Upon the request of a buyer, and in 
accordance with Section 270.11(3), Florida Statutes, the District may release its interest in all 
phosphate, minerals, metals and petroleum that may be in, on or under the property.  

Sale Terms 
• The District will deliver title to the buyer by Quit Claim Deed.
• There will be no adjustment in price for actual acreage as determined by a survey, if obtained by

the buyer.
• The buyer will pay the real estate commission of $3,420 to Saunders Real Estate.
• The buyer will bear all expenses of the transaction except for the appraisal and advertising costs.
• The buyer will have a period of 60 days to perform due diligence and the sale will close 90 days

after execution of the contract by the District.

This property is very well located, with considerable frontage on Shoal Line Boulevard. The 
appraisers’ opinion of a reasonable marketing time was twelve months, and the property has been 
on the market for 12.5 months. 

Staff recommends the Board: 
• Accept the offer of $57,000;
• Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Contract for Sale and Purchase on the behalf

of the District;
• Approve the conveyance of the District’s interest in all phosphate, minerals, metals and

petroleum in, on or under the land upon request of the buyer; and
• Authorize staff to execute any other documents necessary to complete the transaction in

accordance with the approved terms.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 10 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

18. Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease, SWF Parcel No. 19-441-112X, Award for the Request for
Offers (RFO) 18-02
On May 17, 2018, the District advertised Request for Offers 18-02, Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease
(RFO), covering approximately 203 acres in northwestern Sumter County. The lease area consists
of approximately 135 acres of fair condition pasture and approximately 68 acres of depression/basin
marshes and scattered oaks. The maximum stocking rate for the property is 35 Animal Units (an
Animal Unit is one bull or one cow with or without one un-weaned calf). The lessee may stock any
number of Animal Units at or below the maximum without adjustment to the annual rent payment.

The term of the lease is five years, with an option for the lessee to request renewal for an additional
term of five years at the District’s discretion. On June 12, 2018, 10 responses were received to RFO
18-02. The highest offer was submitted by Daniel Moen in the amount of $43.15 per acre, for an
annual lease amount of $8,759.45.

Staff recommends the Board approve the award of the Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease to Daniel 
Moen and authorize the Chairman to execute the lease on behalf of the District. 

Regulation Committee 
19. Individual Water Use Permits Referred to the Governing Board – None

General Counsel’s Report 
20. Administrative, Enforcement and Litigation Activities that Require Governing Board Approval

a. Interagency Agreement between SWFWMD and SFWMN – Designation of Regulatory
Responsibility – WUP – Grenelefe Golf and Tennis Club – Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc..
–Polk County
Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. submitted Water Use Permit (“WUP”) Application No. 20005251.009
(the “Application”) to the Southwest Florida Water Management District (“SWFWMD”) to renew
and modify its existing WUP for its operations supplying water to the Grenelefe Resort and Tennis
Club in Haines City, Polk County, Florida (the “Property”).  The Application requests authorization
to withdraw 1,043,506 gallons per day on an annual average basis and 2,206,366 gallons per day
on a peak month basis for public supply and irrigation.  Although the predominant portion of the
Property lies within the SWFWMD, a smaller portion of the Property lies within the jurisdictional
boundaries of the South Florida Water Management District (“SFWMD”), as depicted on the map
attached to the Interagency Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” More
specifically, two water wells on the Property were previously permitted by SFWMD. When that
SFWMD permit expired, SFWMD instructed Grenelefe to modify its permit with SWFWMD to add
those two wells to its SWFWMD WUP. This interagency agreement is necessary for that addition
to occur.

Section 373.046(6), Florida Statutes, authorizes a water management district to designate, 
through an interagency agreement, regulatory responsibility to another water management district 
over a project located within the jurisdictional boundaries of both districts.  Because a majority of 
the Project boundary lies within the SWFWMD, both districts agree that responsibility should be 
assumed by the SWFWMD for review and issuance of the WUP for the entirety of the Project.  An 
interagency agreement approved by both district governing boards is necessary to authorize 
SWFWMD to issue a WUP to the applicant for the entire Project.

Staff recommends the Board approve the Interagency Agreement Between the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District and the South Florida Water Management District for Designation of 
Regulatory Responsibility for a WUP for Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. for the above-described 
Project. 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 11 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

b. Amendment to Conservation Easement for Hilochee Mitigation Bank – ERP No.
43042047.000 – Polk County
On October 4, 2016, the District issued Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) No. 43042047.000
(Permit) to Hilochee Mitigation Bank, LLC (Hilochee) authorizing the establishment of a mitigation
bank known as the Hilochee Mitigation Bank (Project), located in Polk County, Florida. The Permit
requires Hilochee to grant a Conservation Easement (CE) over the Project to the District. During
the review of Hilochee’s ERP application, District staff reviewed and determined the draft CE
submitted by Hilochee met the permitting requirements in Chapter 62-342, Florida Administrative
Code.  The CE that is recorded by Hilochee must match the draft CE approved by District staff in
order to comply with the Permit.

On April 30, 2018, Hilochee submitted an executed and recorded CE to the District. The recorded
CE does not match the draft CE approved by District staff. Hilochee subsequently submitted to
District staff a draft Amended Deed of Conservation Easement to address the differences
between the approved draft CE and the recorded CE. After reviewing the submittal, District staff
had concerns with the proposed amendment which were expressed to Hilochee. Hilochee agreed
to the changes requested by District staff. The amendment to the recorded CE will conform the
terms of the recorded CE to the terms of the draft CE approved by the District. In addition, because
the amendment is altering an interest in land previously conveyed to the District, the District must
join in with Hilochee in executing the amendment. The final version of the Amended Deed of
Conservation Easement is not yet complete as of the drafting of this recap, but District staff
anticipates that it will provided to the Governing Board for its review prior to the meeting.

Staff recommends the Board approve, accept, and execute the attached Amended Deed of
Conservation Easement for the Hilochee Mitigation Bank.

21. Rulemaking
a. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., to Revise Form

LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License
Rule 40D-3.037(5), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), incorporates by reference Form LEG-
R.003.02, Application for A Water Well Contractor’s License. Currently, Form LEG-R.003.02,
section “C” states: Enclosed with the completed application is a letter from a water well contractor
and a letter from a water well inspector employed by a governmental agency providing evidence
of the length of time the applicant has been engaged in the business of construction, repair, or
abandonment of water wells as a major activity.

In 2016 the legislature amended Section 373.323(3)(b)1, Florida Statutes (F.S.) to require an
applicant for a water well contractor’s license to provide evidence of experience with a letter from
a water well contractor or a water well inspector employed by a governmental agency, but not
both. Therefore, Form LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License is
inconsistent with Section 373.323(3)(b), F.S., as amended, and should be revised by changing
the word “and” to “or” in section “C” of the application as follows: Enclosed with the completed
application is a letter from a water well contractor or and a letter from a water well inspector
employed by a governmental agency providing evidence of the length of time the applicant has
been engaged in the business of construction, repair, or abandonment of water wells as a major
activity.

Because the application form is incorporated by reference into Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., the
rule must be amended by revising section “C” of the application so it is consistent with Section
373.323(3)(b), F.S.



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 12 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Staff recommends the Board approve final rule language and authorize the initiation of rulemaking 
to amend Rule 40D-3.037(5), to revise section “C” of Form No. LEG-R.003.02 (9/14), The 
Application for Water Well Contractor’s License, to make the application consistent with Section 
373.323(3)(b)1, F.S., and authorize staff to make any necessary minor clarifying technical 
changes that may result from the rulemaking process. 

Executive Director’s Report 
22. Approve Governing Board Meeting Minutes – May 22, 2018

Staff recommends the Board approve the minutes as presented.

Discussion 
23. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

24. Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative
The Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative (WRWI) was established to better understand the
dynamics of the river and watershed, identify how alterations have affected the system, and evaluate
alternatives to better manage the resources. On October 27, 2015, staff presented the results of the
WRWI to the Governing Board. Prior to the Governing Board presentation, the WRWI was presented
to the public at five workshops in 2015. At the public workshops and Governing Board presentation,
staff discussed the comprehensive analysis of the entire Withlacoochee River and surrounding
watershed that had been completed to address numerous concerns expressed over the past few
decades related to water levels and flow. Staff also described the results of a number of computer
model scenarios, which were evaluated to determine the effects of historical modifications to the
watershed. In addition, the model was used to determine the impacts of potential future changes
designed to improve management of the river, including impacts of restoration activities in the Green
Swamp.

In general, model results indicate that changing rainfall patterns and the region’s natural topography
have the greatest impact on water levels and flow along the Withlacoochee River. Since the October
2015 Governing Board presentation, three additional model scenarios have been evaluated based
on feedback from the public workshops, providing valuable insight into the recent flooding from
Hurricane Irma. Understanding gained through this effort has also resulted in two new District
Initiatives, which began in 2018, and will improve our ability to manage the water resources in this
system. These District Initiatives include restoration work in the Orange State Canal and a
modification to the Golf Course Structure in the Tsala Apopka Chain-of-Lakes.

The WRWI has also enhanced the operation of over a dozen water control structures throughout the
river and watershed by providing the tools to take a regional approach to structure operations and
evaluate ways to improve our operational guidelines. In addition, a continued emphasis on outreach
has resulted in effective stakeholder communication and stronger relationships between the public
and the District.

This item is for the Board’s information only, and no action is required.

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (TAB C)



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 13 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Submit & File Reports - None 

Routine Reports 
The following items are provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 
25. Minimum Flows and Levels Status Report
26. Significant Water Resource and Development Projects

Discussion   
27. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

28. Fiscal Year 2019 Recommended Annual Service Budget
Pursuant to Section 373.536(2), Florida Statutes (F.S.), the District is required to submit a tentative
budget, covering its proposed operations and funding requirements for the ensuing fiscal year, for
consideration by the Governing Board.  On June 26, staff will present the recommended budget to
the Governing Board.  Any changes in the tentative budget, subsequent to the June meeting, will be
presented to the Governing Board for approval at the July 24 meeting to include in the tentative
budget.

The District’s expenditure budget is divided into two major components: (1) operating and (2) projects.
The operating component of the budget includes salaries and benefits, operating expenses,
contracted services for operational support and maintenance, and operating capital outlay.  The
projects component of the budget includes contracted services for District projects, Cooperative
Funding Initiative (CFI) projects recommended for funding by the Governing Board Regional Sub-
committees, District grants, and fixed capital outlay.

The FY2019 recommended budget meets the following goals established by the Governing Board:

• Project expenditures equal at least 50 percent of budget - 57 percent achieved.
• Operating expenditures do not exceed 80 percent of ad valorem revenue - 69 percent

achieved.
• Salaries and benefits do not exceed 50 percent of ad valorem revenue - 45 percent achieved.

Pursuant to Section 373.536(5)(d), F.S., by August 1 of each year, the District is required to submit 
for review a tentative budget and a description of any significant changes from the preliminary budget 
submitted to the Executive Office of the Governor (EOG), President of the Senate, Speaker of the 
House of Representatives, chairs of all legislative committees and sub-committees having 
substantive or fiscal jurisdiction over water management districts, Secretary of the Department of 
Environmental Protection, and the governing body of each county from which the water management 
districts derive funds.   

Discussion 
The recommended budget for FY2019 is $176.3 million.  Staff will provide an overview of the FY2019 
recommended budget including a review of proposed expenditures and revenues.  Expenditures will 
be reviewed by category, program and area of responsibility.  

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE (TAB D)



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 14 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Operating Budget 
The operating budget of $76.2 million for FY2019 is a decrease of $68,107 or 0.1 percent from $76.3 
million in FY2018. As a result of the District’s efforts in implementing efficient, cost-saving 
opportunities, the District has fiscal capacity to continue the necessary annual investment in critical 
water resource management projects.   

Project Budget 
The project budget of $100.1 million for FY2019 is a decrease of $7.3 million from $107.4 million in 
FY2018. This includes contracted services for District projects, District grants, CFI and fixed capital 
outlay expenditure categories. 

Contracted services for District projects total $12.1 million, a decrease of $1.1 million from the FY2018 
budget of $13.2 million. This budget includes $2.4 million for Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
Feasibility/Pilot Testing, $1.6 million for Minimum Flows and Minimum Water Levels Recovery, $1.4 
million for Florida Department of Transportation Mitigation, and $1.1 million for Restoration Initiative 
projects. In general, these projects are managed by the District. The recommended budget includes 
a summary chart of all contracted services for District projects by category and a detailed description 
of each project.   

District grants and CFI projects total $65.9 million, a decrease of $13.8 million from the FY2018 
budget of $79.7 million. This budget includes $53.2 million for CFI projects, $7.7 million in grants for 
District-sponsored projects, and $5 million for the funding of the Polk Partnership. The District’s funds 
leveraged with its partners will result in a total regional investment of approximately $129 million for 
water resource management projects. The CFI projects are all recommended by the Governing 
Board’s Regional Sub-committees. The recommended budget includes a summary chart of all CFI 
projects followed by District grants by category and a detailed description of each project.   

Fixed capital outlay totals $22.1 million, an increase of $7.6 million from the FY2018 budget of $14.5 
million. This budget includes $17 million for acquisitions of land and land easements, $2.7 million for 
District facility improvements and renovations, $1.5 million for structure improvements and 
replacements, and $882,826 for well construction. The recommended budget includes a summary 
chart of all fixed capital outlay projects and a detailed description of each project. 

Ad Valorem Revenue 
The recommended budget includes ad valorem revenue of $110.9 million, an increase of $2.8 million 
from the FY2018 budget of $108.1 million based on a projected 2.55 percent increase in new 
construction. The June 1 estimates indicate property values have increased 8 percent.  Ad valorem 
revenue will be adjusted based on the July 1 certifications of taxable property value by the 16 county 
property appraisers, and the millage rate will be adjusted to the rolled-back rate to account for new 
construction only. 

At the July 24 Governing Board meeting, staff will present the 16-county property appraisers 
certifications of taxable value and the proposed FY2019 millage rate in compliance with s. 373.503(4) 
and s. 200.065, F.S.  The Governing Board will be requested to adopt the proposed FY2019 millage 
rate for certification to the county property appraisers by August 4. The proposed millage rate is the 
rate that will be used for Truth in Millage (TRIM) Notices of Proposed Property Taxes. In addition, the 
Governing Board will be requested to authorize staff to submit the District’s Standard Format 
Tentative Budget Submission for FY2019 to the EOG, Florida Legislature and other parties, as 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 15 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

required by statute, to be received by August 1, 2018. 

The District’s FY2019 budget will be adopted in September following two public budget hearings. The 
first hearing is scheduled for September 11, 2018 at 5:01 p.m. at the Tampa Office. Written 
disapproval of any portion of the Tentative Budget Submission must be received from the EOG or the 
Legislative Budget Commission at least five business days prior to the final budget hearing. The 
second and final hearing is scheduled for September 25, 2018 at 5:01 p.m. also at the Tampa Office. 

Exhibit of the recommended budget is provided under separate cover. 

Staff recommends the Board authorize staff to prepare the Standard Format Tentative Budget 
Submission for FY2019 based on the recommended budget as presented, adjusted for any 
modifications made by the Governing Board on June 26, changes in estimated ad valorem revenue 
based on the July 1 certifications of taxable value and any additional funding provided by the state.   

Submit & File Reports 
29. Payroll (Overtime) Budgeting
30. Travel Procedure Review

Routine Reports 
The following items are provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 
31. Treasurer's Report and Payment Register
32. Monthly Financial Statement
33. Monthly Cash Balances by Fiscal Year
34. Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Related Reviews Report
35. Development of Regional Impact Activity Report

Discussion 
36. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

Submit & File Reports 
37. Hydrologic Conditions Report

Routine Reports 
The following items are provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 
38. Surplus Lands Update
39. Structure Operations
40. Significant Activities

OPERATIONS, LANDS & RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE (TAB E)



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 16 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

Discussion 
41. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

42. Denials Referred to the Governing Board
District Rule 40D-1.6051, Florida Administrative Code, provides that if District staff intends to deny
a permit application, the applicant will be advised of the opportunity to request referral to the
Governing Board for final action. Under these circumstances, if an applicant or petitioner requests
their application or petition be referred to the Governing Board for final action, that application or
petition will appear under this agenda item for consideration. As these items will be presented at
the request of an outside party, specific information may not be available until just prior to the
Governing Board meeting.

If any denials are requested to be referred to the Governing Board, these will be presented at the
meeting.

Submit & File Reports - None 

Routine Reports 
The following items are provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 
43. Dover/Plant City Water Use Caution Area Flow Meter and Automatic Meter Reading (AMR)

Equipment Implementation Program Update
44. Overpumpage Report
45. Individual Permits Issued by District Staff

Discussion 
46. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

47. Revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal – Delegation of Authority to General Counsel for Certain
Administrative Hearing Matters
Pursuant to Section 373.083(5), Florida Statutes (“F.S.”), the District’s Governing Board is authorized
to delegate authority to District staff for the purpose of executing any of the powers, duties, and
functions vested in the Governing Board by statute. The Governing Board has delegated certain
matters to District staff through adoption of Board Policies aimed at improving the efficiency of District
processes. One such process is the administration of Section 120.569, F.S., relating to petitions for
administrative hearing challenging agency action.

When a petition is filed with the District pursuant to Section 120.569, F.S., the District must carefully
review the petition to determine if the petition contains a defect that cannot be cured. If it conclusively
appears from the face of the petition that the defect cannot be cured, the District will dismiss the
petition. Board Policy 160-4 currently does not delegate authority to the General Counsel to dismiss
a petition without leave to amend when the General Counsel determines conclusively from the face
of the petition that a defect cannot be cured. The authority to enter a final order dismissing the petition
without leave to amend remains with the Governing Board. The efficiency of the District’s procedure
for processing petitions for administrative hearing will be improved by delegating this authority to the

REGULATION COMMITTEE (TAB F) 

GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT (TAB G) 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 17 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

General Counsel. Delegation of this authority will allow the District to meet the 15-day timeframe for 
acting upon a petition filed at or near the date of a District Governing Board meeting that would other 
otherwise result in an extended period of time elapsing before the Governing Board has the 
opportunity to consider the matter at the following Board meeting. Additionally, this delegation will 
provide the General Counsel with the authority to determine and act upon a purely legal issue 
regarding a petition for administrative hearing, similar to the procedure established by the Department 
of Environmental Protection in Rule 62-113.200(3)(b), Florida Administrative Code. 

The proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4 will improve the efficiency of the District’s procedure for 
processing petitions for administrative hearing pursuant to Section 120.569, F.S. This improved 
efficiency will better enable the District to comply with statutory requirements. Accordingly, District 
staff recommend approval of the proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4, attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A.” 

Staff recommends the Board approve the proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal - Delegation 
of Authority to General Counsel for Certain Administrative Hearing Matters authorizing the General 
Counsel to enter a final order dismissing a petition for administrative hearing with prejudice if it 
conclusively appears from the face of the petition that a defect cannot be cured. 

Submit & File Reports – None 

Routine Reports 
The following items are provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 
48. June 2018 – Litigation Report
49. June 2018 – Rulemaking Update

50. Agricultural and Green Industry Advisory Committees
51. Committee/Liaison Reports

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (TAB I) 
52. Executive Director’s Report

53. Chair's Report
54. Other
55. Employee Milestones

   RECESS PUBLIC HEARING   

COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS (TAB H)

CHAIR’S REPORT (TAB J) 



SWFWMD BOARD MEETING EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ~ 18 ~ JUNE 26, 2018 

ANNOUNCEMENTS http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/calendar 

• Governing Board Meetings Schedule
Meeting – Clearwater, Tampa Bay Water .............................................................. July 24, 2018 
Meeting – Tampa ............................................................................................. August 28, 2018 
Meeting – Tampa ....................................................................................... September 25, 2018 
Meeting – TBD .................................................................................................................... TBD 

• Governing Board Public Budget Hearings Schedule:
Tentative Budget – Tampa  .......................................................................  September 11, 2018 
Final Budget – Tampa  ..............................................................................  September 25, 2018 

• Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule:
Environmental – Tampa ........................................................................................ July 10, 2018 
Well Drillers – Tampa ............................................................................................ July 11, 2018 
Industrial – Tampa ........................................................................................... August 14, 2018 
Public Supply – Tampa .................................................................................... August 14, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/calendar


Monthly
Dashboard

May
2018

Southwest Florida Water Management District

$363.4 million
(current budget)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REGULATION

0.0

2.5

5.0

7.5

10.0

12.5

15.0

Regulation
Budget $14.2M

$7.5M Spent

$1.2M
Encumbered

$5.5M
Remaining
Budget

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

General Counsel
Budget $2.4M

$0.8M Spent

$0.4M
Encumbered

$1.2M
Remaining
Budget

$15.8M Spent

$196.3M
Encumbered

$54.7M
Remaining
Budget

0

55

110

165

220

275

Resource
Management
Budget $266.8M

$3.4M Spent

$0.9M
Encumbered

$3.2M
Remaining
Budget

Emp. & Ext.
Relations
Budget $7.5M

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

$10.9M Spent

$6.6M
Encumbered

$23.6M
Remaining
Budget

0

10

20

30

40

50

Operations, Lands &
Resource Monitoring
Budget $41.1M

$16.4M Spent

$3.9M
Encumbered

$9.6M
Remaining
Budget

Management
Services
Budget $29.9M

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Very dry

Drier than normal

Normal

Wetter than normal

Very wet

OPERATIONS, LANDS AND
RESOURCE MONITORING

$12.6M Spent

$28.5M
Encumbered for Future
PRWC Projects

Total Number of Projects: 374

$40.3M
To Be Encumbered

$5.7M
Lapsed at Year-End

$166.7M
Encumbered

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Resource Management
Project Budget: $253.8M 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Consumptive Use Permitting
*Active Staff Processing Time,

All Individually-Processed Permits

SWFWMD

SWFWMD

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 2

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 3

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 4

Fiscal Year 18, Quarter 1

Annualized Median 18

DEP Goal 33 Days

DEP Goal 25 Days

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Environmental Resource Permitting
*Active Staff Processing Time, All Individually-Processed Permits

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 2

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 3

Fiscal Year 17, Quarter 4

Fiscal Year 18, Quarter 1

Annualized Median 38.25

*Excludes time awaiting response from applicant, legal challenges, etc.

Days Without an At-Fault Accident  384

Days Without a Lost-Time Injury  549

RAINFALL DISTRIBUTION

Jun 2017 – May 2018

364

0

180 180

90

270

110

270
36

70
309

56

Revenues  Expenditures

Revenues  Expenditures

EXTERNAL & EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Voluntary Turnover — Rolling 12 Months

Fuel Cost

M
ay

 1
6

Ju
n

e 
16

Ju
l 1

6
A

u
g
 1

6
Se

p
 1

6
O

ct
 1

6
N

o
v 

16
D

ec
 1

6
Ja

n
 1

7
Fe

b 1
7

M
ar

 1
7

A
p
r 

17
M

ay
 1

7
Ju

n
 1

7
Ju

l 1
7

A
u

g
 1

7
Se

p
 1

7
O

ct
 1

7
N

o
v 

17
D

ec
 1

7
Ja

n
 1

8
Fe

b 1
8

M
ar

 1
8

A
p
r 

18

0

2

4

6

8

10

7.4 7.1

4.44.2

Total Footage YTD

FY2018 Goal

CORE
DRILLING

FY2018 Land-Based Revenue

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

Renewable
Resources

Leases Other

FY2018 Goal

YTD

$360,000

$183,000 

$67,041

$24,024$29,000 

$286,346

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

2017

May MayJun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr
$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
Tampa Bay Region Stormwater Projects

(last 5 years and cost)

1,412

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800
2,000
2,200
2,400
2,600
2,800

Very wet

G

Complete 

Ongoing

C

District Funding

Water Quality $19,638,318

2013-Current

$30,238,518

Flood Protection $45,247,258 $22,204,134

Total $64,885,576 $52,442,652

Complete (64) Ongoing (22)





Governing Board Meeting

June 26, 2018

9:00 a.m.

  CONVENE MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD    

AND PUBLIC HEARING

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

3. Employee Recognition

4. Additions/Deletions to Agenda

5. Public Input for Issues Not Listed on the Published Agenda

PUBLIC HEARING AND MEETING



Items 1 - 5
Governing Board Meeting 
June 26, 2018

1. Call to Order
The Board Chair calls the meeting to order. The Board Secretary confirms that a quorum is
present. The Board Chair then opens the public hearing. Anyone wishing to address the
Governing Board concerning any item listed on the agenda or any item that does not appear
on the agenda should fill out and submit a speaker's card. Comments will be limited to
three minutes per speaker, and, when appropriate, exceptions to the three-minute limit may
be granted by the Chair. Several individuals wishing to speak on the same issue/topic
should designate a spokesperson.

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
An invocation is offered. The Board Chair conducts the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the
United States of America.

3. Employee Recognition
Staff that have reached 20 or more years of service at the District will be recognized.

• 20 years - Jeff Whealton, Agricultural Regulation Program Coordinator
• 20 years - Tim Major, Geomatics Technician
• 20 years - Gene Altman, Senior Professional Engineer
• 25 years - David Carr, Staff Environmental Scientist
• 25 years - Don Ellison, Senior Hydrogeologist
• 30 years - Steve DeSmith, Senior Professional Geologist
• 35 years - Jim Marshall, Regulatory Field Technician IV

Presenter: Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair

4. Additions/Deletions to Agenda
According to Section 120.525(2), Florida Statutes, additions to the published agenda will
only be made for "good cause" as determined by the "person designated to preside." Based
upon that authority, the Chair has determined that good cause exists to make certain
changes to the agenda. These changes are being made in order to permit the Governing
Board to efficiently accomplish necessary public business at this meeting and to reflect the
items on the agenda that have been requested or suggested to be deleted, revised,
supplemented or postponed.

ADDITIONS: The items that have been added to the agenda were received by the District
after publication of the regular agenda. The Board was provided with the information filed and
the District staff's analyses of these matters. Staff has determined that action must be taken
on these items prior to the next Board meeting. Therefore, it is the District staff's
recommendation that good cause has been demonstrated and should be considered during
the Governing Board's meeting.

Staff Recommendation:
Approve the recommended additions and deletions to the published agenda if necessary.

Presenter: Brian J. Armstrong, P.G., Executive Director
5. Public Input for Issues Not Listed on the Published Agenda

At this time, the Board will hear public input for issues not listed on the published agenda.

Presenter: Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair







Governing Board Meeting 
June 26, 2018 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and action will be taken by one 
motion, second of the motion and approval by the Board.  If discussion is requested by a Board 
member, that item(s) will be deleted from the Consent Agenda and moved to the appropriate 
Committee or Report for consideration. 

Resource Management Committee 

6. Pinellas County – McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane – Scope
Change (N828) ............................................................................................................................. 6 

7. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative
Code, to Correct Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After
August 7, 2000, and Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels Adopted Prior to August 7, 2000 ........... 7  

8. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative
Code, to Adopt Minimum and Guidance Levels for Lakes Dosson and Sunshine in
Hillsborough County (P256) ....................................................................................................... 16 

Finance/Outreach & Planning Committee 

9.    Lakes Appreciation Month ......................................................................................................... 19 

10.  Independent Auditing Services .................................................................................................. 21 

11.  Adopt Resolutions to Identify New Slate of Officers for Financial Documents .......................... 22 

12.  Governing Board Travel – Annual Environmental Permitting Summer School ......................... 30 

13.  Budget Transfer Refundable Deposit for Relocation ................................................................. 31 

14.  Budget Transfer Report ............................................................................................................. 33 

Operations, Lands and Resource Monitoring Committee 

15. Purchase and Sale Agreement- Central Florida Water Intiative (CFWI) Project,
Lake Venus, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-131 ................................................................................. 36 

16. Purchase and Sale Agreement- Central Florida Water Intiative (CFWI) Project,
 Lake Aurora, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-129 ................................................................................ 46 

17.  Offer for Surplus Land – Weekiwachee Preserve (WW-6) , SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S ..... 57 

18. Panasofkee Outlet Cattle Lease, SWF Parcel No. 19-441-112X, Award for the Request
 for Offers (RFO) 18-02 .............................................................................................................. 69 

Regulation Committee 

19. Individual Water Use Permits Referred to the Governing Board – None

CONSENT AGENDA 



Governing Board Meeting Consent Agenda 
June 26, 2018 Page 2 

General Counsel’s Report 

20. Administrative, Enforcement and Litigation Activities that Require Governing Board Approval
a. Interagency Agreement Between SWFWMD and SFWMD – Designation of Regulatory

Responsibility – WUP – Grenelefe Golf and Tennis Club – Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. –
 Polk County ........................................................................................................................... 83 

b. Amendment to Conservation Easement for Hilochee Mitigation Bank – ERP No.
 43042047.000 – Polk County  ............................................................................................... 87 

21. Rulemaking
a. Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., to Revise

 Form LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License .............................. 88 

Executive Director’s Report 

22. Approve Governing Board Meeting Minutes – May 22, 2018 ..................................................... 93 



Item 6 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Pinellas County - McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane - Scope 
Change (N828) 

Purpose 
The purpose of this item is to request approval to revise the scope of work to the agreement 
with Pinellas County for the McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane 
(N828) project.   

Background/History  
The Board approved this Pinellas County (County) project during the fiscal year (FY) 2017 and 
2018 cooperative funding initiative (CFI) budget cycles. The total estimated project cost for 
McKay Creek Water Quality Improvements is $600,000 with the District, Florida Department of 
Transportation and County each contributing $200,000. The project, as approved by the Board, 
includes construction of stormwater Best Management Practices (BMPs) to treat contributing 
drainage areas of approximately 3,824 acres, with pollutant reductions of 6,301 lbs/yr  of total 
suspended solids (TSS) and 157 lbs/yr of Total Nitrogen (TN). BMPs will be implemented for the 
area along McKay Creek and Hickory Lane reducing stormwater impacts to McKay Creek. 

The County requested a revision to the resource benefits included in the scope of work. During 
design, the geotechnical findings resulted in a change to the project footprint which lowered the 
resource benefit.  Removal efficiency estimates have decreased to 5,560 lbs/yr TSS and 131 
lbs/yr TN. The approved and revised resource benefits are included in the table below. 

Resource Benefit Approved Revised 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) lbs/yr 6,301 5,560 

Total Nitrogen (TN) lbs/yr 157 131 

Benefits/Costs 
The project objectives and cost effectiveness ranking has not changed. The project cost 
remains $600,000 with the District providing one-third ($200,000). The project, as originally 
approved by the Board, had an overall ranking of Medium.  The requested change from the 
County will not change the overall ranking. 

Staff Recommendation: 

1) Approve the revision to decrease the pollutant removal estimates from 6,301 lbs./yr. TSS
and 157 lbs./yr. TN to 5,560 lbs./yr. TSS and 131 lbs./yr.TN for the McKay Creek Water
Quality Improvements Near Hickory Lane project, which is the resource benefit in the
cooperative agreement.

Presenter:   Randy Smith, PMP, Bureau Chief, Natural Systems & Restoration 

Packet Pg. 6



Item 7 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative 
Code, to Correct Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After 
August 7, 2000, and Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels Adopted Prior to August 7, 2000 

Purpose 
To request the Board initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.), to update Tables 8-2 and 8-3 in order to address scrivener’s 
errors in the information for some lakes currently listed in the tables. 

Background/History/Requested Corrections 
Table 8-2 is a list of lakes for which Minimum and Guidance Levels have been established by 
the District. Table 8-3 is a list of lakes for which only Guidance Water Levels have been 
established by the District.  This rule amendment revises these tables to correct inadvertent 
scrivener’s errors. These corrections consist of the following: 

1. Revise Table 8-2 to add the lake Category (CAT 3) associated with the High Minimum
and Minimum Lake Levels for Lake Aurora and Lake Easy.

2. Delete Lake Raleigh and associated Guidance Levels from Table 8-3. Guidance Levels
for Lake Raleigh in Table 8-3 were replaced by Minimum and Guidance Levels included
in Table 8-2 that were developed in more recent assessments.

3. Delete Lake Rogers and “No Levels Recommended” from Table 8-3. Minimum and
Guidance Levels that were developed in more recent assessments for Lake Rogers were
included in Table 8-2.

4. Delete lakes Bonable, Little Bonable, and Tiger from Table 8-3. Minimum and Guidance
Levels for these three lakes developed in more recent assessments were included in
Table 8-2.

5. Re-list Lake Ellen, located in Section 10, Township 28S, Range 18E, in Hillsborough
County, and the associated Guidance Levels, in Table 8-3.  Lake Ellen was incorrectly
deleted from Table 8-3 when Minimum and Guidance Levels were approved and added
to Table 8-2 for a different Lake Ellen located in Section 19, Township 27S, Range 18E.

6. Revise Table 8-3 to add the Section, Township, and Range for 73 lakes.
7. Revise Table 8-3 to correct spelling of Lake Whistler

These corrections do not include approval of any new Minimum or Guidance Levels not 
previously approved by the Governing Board, therefore support documents such as studies are 
not provided. 

Benefits/Costs 
Upon Governing Board approval of the scrivener’s errors listed above, staff will submit a notice 
to the Governor’s Office of Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Reform (OFARR) and proceed 
with formal rulemaking without further Governing Board action. If substantive changes are 
necessary as the result of comments received from the public or from reviewing entities such as 
OFARR or the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee, this matter will be brought back to 
the Governing Board for consideration. 

Packet Pg. 7



Item 7 

Staff Recommendation: 

Initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., to include the proposed 
changes to Tables 8-2 and 8-3, as shown in the Exhibit. 

Presenter:   Mark K. Hurst, Sr. Environmental Scientist, Water Resources Bureau 

Packet Pg. 8



EXHIBIT 

40D-8.624 Guidance and Minimum Levels for Lakes. 
(1) through (11) No change.

(12) Levels for lakes established during or after August 7, 2000, are set forth in the following table. After
the High Minimum Lake Level and Minimum Lake Level elevation for each lake is a designation indicating 
the Method used, as described in subsection 40D-8.624(8), F.A.C., to establish the level. Compliance with 
the High Minimum and Minimum Lake Levels is determined pursuant to paragraphs (6)(b) and (7)(b), above. 
Guidance Levels established prior to August 7, 2000, are set forth in Table 8-3 in subsection 40D-8.624(13), 
F.A.C., below. 

Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After August 7, 2000. 
Levels are elevations, in feet above the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929. 

Location by County and 
Basin 

Name of Lake 
and Section, 
Township and 
Range 
Information 

High 
Guidance 
Level 

High 
Minimum 
Lake Level 

Minimum 
Lake Level 

Low 
Guidance 
Level 

(a) through (z)
No change
(aa) In Polk County Within 
the Peace River Basin 

Annie, Lake 
S-3, T-29S, R-
27E
No change
Aurora, Lake 
S13, T30S, R28E 

101.1' 110.3' 
(CAT 3) 

97.3' 
(CAT 3) 

96.1' 

Easy, Lake 
S19, T30S, R28E 

110.6' 109.8' 
(CAT 3) 

106.5' 
(CAT 3) 

105.4' 

Eva, Lake 
S-32, T-27S, R-
27E
through Wailes
Lake
S-01, T-30S,
R-27E
No change

(bb) through (dd) 
No change 

(13) Guidance Levels established for lakes prior to August 7, 2000, are set forth in the following table:

Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

(a) through (i)
No change.

Packet Pg. 9

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

(j) In Hillsborough County Within the
Alafia River Basin
LAKES
Carlton, Lake 
S7, T32, R21 

93.50' 90.50' 88.00' 

Edward Medard Reservoir 
S36, T29, R21 

62.75' 57.50' 56.00' 

Grady, Lake 
S26, T30, R20 

39.00' 36.00' 34.00' 

Hickory Hammock Lake 
S34, T29, R20 

32.25' 30.50' 29.00' 

Unnamed Lake #2 
S22, T32, R21 

56.00' NO RECOMMENDATION 

(k) In Hillsborough County Within the
Hillsborough River Basin
LAKES
Bellows Lake (East Lake) 
S2, T29, R19 

23.75' 21.50' 19.00' 

Burrell Lake 
S31, T27, R19 

50.00' 47.50' 45.00' 

Commiston, Lake 
S12, T27, R18 

63.00' 60.50' 59.00' 

Eckles, Lake 
S11, T28, R18 

32.50' 30.00' 28.00' 

Egypt Lake 
S27, T28, R18 

37.50' 35.00' 32.50' 

Gornto Lake 
S21, T29, R20 

38.50' 36.00' 34.00' 

Hart Lake 
S6, T27, R19 

66.00' 64.00' 63.00' 

Hog Island Lake 
S1, T27, R18 

66.00' 64.00' 61.00' 

Kathy, Lake 
S20, T29, R20 

43.50' 42.50' 42.00' 

Long Lake 
S36, T27, R18 

50.25' 48.00' 46.00' 

Long Pond 
S13, T29, R20 

46.50' 44.00' 42.00' 

Mud Lake (Lake Walden) 
S6, T29, R22 

115.00' 112.50' 110.50' 

Thonotosassa, Lake 
S14, T28, R20 

37.00' 34.50' 33.00' 

Unnamed Lake 
S18, T27, R19 

63.00' 60.50' 59.00' 

Packet Pg. 10

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Unnamed Lake 
S7, T27, R19 

61.00' 58.50' 57.00' 

Valrico Lake 
S24, T29, R20 

45.00' 42.50' 41.00' 

Weeks, Lake 
S2, T29, R20 

43.25' 41.00' 39.50' 

(l) In Hillsborough County Within the
Northwest Hillsborough Basin
LAKES
Sec. Twsp. Rng.
SWEETWATER CREEK WATERSHED 

Avis, Lake 
S15,  T28S,  R18E 
No Change. 
Bay Lake 
S3, T28, R18 

46.75' 44.00' 42.50' 

Boat Lake 
S15, T28, R18 

35.50' 33.75' 31.25' 

Brooker, Lake 
S2, T27, R18 

64.25' 61.00' 59.00' 

Chapman Lake 
S25, T27, R18 

52.25' 49.50' 48.00' 

Cooper Lake 
S11, T27, R18 

61.75' 59.75' 57.00' 

Elaine, Lake 
S15,  T28S,  R18E 
No change 
Ellen, Lake 
S15,  T28S,  R18E 

41.50’ 39.00’ 37.00’ 

Gass, Lake 
S36, T27, R18 

49.50' 46.25' 44.50' 

George, Lake 
S10, T28, R18 

48.00' 45.00' 42.00' 

Geraci, Lake 
S15, T27, R18 

63.50' 61.50' 59.50' 

Halls, Lake 
S3, T28S,  R18E 
No change 
Lipsey, Lake 
S10, T28, R18 

41.50' 39.00' 37.00' 

Magdalene, Lake 
S35, T27, R18 

50.00' 47.50' 46.00' 

Thomas, Lake 
S11, T27, R18 

63.50' 61.25' 59.25' 

Packet Pg. 11

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Twin Lake 
S22, T28, R18 

32.00' 30.00' 27.75' 

White Trout Lake 
S15, T28, R18 

36.50' 34.00' 32.50' 

ROCKY CREEK WATERSHED 

Armistead, Lake 
S25, T27, R17 

44.00' 40.50' 39.00' 

Browns Lake 
S2, T27, R18 

63.50' 60.75' 59.00' 

Josephine, Lake 
S25, T27, R17 

46.00' 42.75' 40.00' 

LeClare, Lake 
S30, T27, R18 

52.00' 49.50' 47.00' 

Rock Lake 
S25, T27, R17 

46.00' 42.75' 40.00' 

Turkey Ford Lake 
S18, T27, R18 

54.00' 51.50' 50.00' 

DOUBLEBRANCH CREEK WATERSHED 
Hixon Lake 
S3, T28, R17 

36.50' 33.25' 31.00' 

Unnamed Lake #1 through Unnamed 
Lake #2 
No change  
BROOKER CREEK WATERSHED 

Artillery, Lake 
S3, T27S,  R17E 
No change 
Buck Lake 
S28, T27, R17 

35.00' 32.00' 29.50' 

Elizabeth, Lake 
S11, T27, R17 

53.00' 51.00' 49.00' 

Fern, Lake 
S10, T27, R17 

46.00' 43.00' 41.50' 

Frances, Lake 
S4, T27, R17 

40.50' 38.00' 36.00' 

Island Ford Lake 
S10, T27, R17 

41.50' 39.00' 37.00' 

James Lake 
S23,  T27S,  R17E 
Keystone Lake 
S15, T27, R17 

42.00' 39.75' 39.00' 

Little, Lake 
S23,  T27S,  R17E 
No change 

Packet Pg. 12

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Raleigh, Lake 42.50’ 38.00’ 35.00' 

Rogers, Lake NO LEVELS 
RECOMMENDED 

Velburton Lake 
S21, T27, R17 

40.00' 37.25' 35.00' 

ANCLOTE RIVER WATERSHED 
Hiawatha, Lake 
S2, T27, R17 

50.50' 48.00' 45.00' 

Osceola Lake 
S3, T27, R17 

46.50' 44.50' 42.50' 

(m) through (o)
No change.
(p) In Marion County Within the
Withlacoochee River Basin
Bonable, Lake 
S31,  T15S,  R18E 
Little Bonable, Lake 
S30, T15S,  R18E 
Tiger, Lake 
S32,  T15S,  R18E 
(q) through (v)
No change
(w) In Polk County Within the Alafia
River Basin
LAKES
Scott Lake 
S17, T29, R24 

168.00' 165.00' 164.25' 

(x) In Polk County Within the Green
Swamp Basin
LAKES
Agnes, Lake 
S4, T27, R25 

135.75' 134.75' 130.75' 

Alfred, Lake 
S30,  T27S,  R26E 
No change 
Arietta, Lake 
S27, T27, R25 

144.00' 141.00' 138.00' 

Camp, Lake 
S20, T27, R26 

134.50' 132.00' 130.00' 

Clearwater Lake 
S5, T27, R25 

143.50' 141.00' 139.00' 

Packet Pg. 13

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Cummings, Lake 
S31,  T27S,  R26E 
through 
Eva, Lake 
S29,  T27S,  R26E 
No change 
Grassy Lake (Big Glades) 
S19, T27, R26 

132.00' 129.50' 128.00' 

Griffin, Lake 
S30,  T27S,  R26E 
No change 
Gum Lake 
S17, T27, R26 

131.00' 128.50' 126.00' 

Haines, Lake 
S33, T27, R26 

128.75' 126.50' 124.50' 

Helene, Lake 
S34, T26, R25 

144.00' 141.00' 139.00' 

Juliana, Lake 
S15, T27, R25 

132.50' 130.00' 127.50' 

Little Lake Agnes 
S3, T27, R25 

136.00' 133.00' 131.00' 

Little Van, Lake 
S26, T27, R25 

139.00' 136.50' 135.50' 

Mattie, Lake 
S14, T27, R25 

132.50' 130.00' 127.50' 

Mud Lake 
S6, T27, R25 

141.50' 137.75' 136.00' 

Myrtle, Lake 
S32, T27, R25 

141.00' 138.50' 136.50' 

Swoope, Lake 
S29, T27, R26 

132.50' 130.00' 128.00' 

Tennessee, Lake 
S9, T27, R25 

134.00' 130.00' 128.00' 

Van, Lake 
S26, T27, R25 

132.75' 130.00' 128.00' 

Whistler, Lake 
S33, T27, R25 

137.50' 135.00' 133.75' 

(y) In Polk County Within the
Hillsborough River Basin
LAKES
Bonnet, Lake 
S14, T28, R23 

148.00' 145.00' 142.50' 

Hunter, Lake 
S24, T28, R23 

162.75' 160.25' 159.00' 

Packet Pg. 14

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Table 8-3 Guidance Water Levels adopted prior to August 7, 2000 
Location of Impoundment by County 
and Basin 

High Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

Low Level in Feet 
Above Mean Sea Level 
(msl) 

Extreme Low Level in 
Feet Above Mean Sea 
Level (msl) 

(z) In Polk County Within the Peace
River Basin
Ada, Lake 
S33,  T28S,  R27E 
through 
Link, Lake 
S27,  T28S,  R26E 
No change 
Little Aurora 
S13, T30, R28 

100.50' 98.00' 96.00' 

Little Gum, Lake 
S35,  T29S,  R28E 
through 
Winterset, Lake 
S11,  T29S,  R26E 
No change 
(aa) through (cc) 
No change 

Rulemaking Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.036, 373.042, 373.0421, 
373.086, 373.709 FS. History–New 6-7-78, Amended 1-22-79, 4-27-80, 10-21-80, 12-22-80, 3-23-81, 4-
14-81, 6-4-81, 10-15-81, 11-23-81, 1-5-82, 3-11-82, 5-10-82, 7-4-82, 9-2-82, 11-8-82, 1-10-83, 4-3-83, 7-
5-83, 9-5-83, 10-16-83, 12-12-83, 5-8-84, 7-8-84, 12-16-84, 2-7-85, 5-13-85, 6-26-85, 11-3-85, 3-5-86, 6-
16-86, Formerly 16J-8.678, Amended 9-7-86, 2-12-87, 9-2-87, 2-18-88, 6-27-88, 2-22-89, 3-23-89, 9-26-
89, 7-26-90, 10-30-90, 3-3-91, 9-30-91, 10-7-91, 7-26-92, 3-1-93, 5-11-94, 6-6-96, 2-23-97, 8-7-00, 1-8-
04, 12-21-04 (13), 12-21-04 (13), 6-5-05, 5-2-06, 1-1-07, 2-12-07, 1-10-08, 2-18-08, 4-7-08, 5-20-08, 5-
10-09, 4-13-11, 3-12-12, 11-25-12, 2-21-13 (12)(f), 2-21-13 (12)-(13), 9-3-13, 1-7-15, 7-1-15, 9-21-15, 11-
30-16, 12-28-16, 2-12-17 (12)(s), 2-12-17 (12)(z), 2-12-17 (12)(z), 2-19-17 (12)(l), 2-19-17 (12)(q), 3-2-17
(12)(l), 3-2-17 (12)(z), 3-22-17, 4-2-17 (12)(q), 4-2-17 (12)(z), 4-20-17 (12)(i), 4-20-17 (12)(i), ___.

Packet Pg. 15

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
ul

e 
am

m
en

dm
en

t 4
0D

-8
 to

 C
or

re
ct

 T
ab

le
 8

-2
 E

xh
  (

37
77

 : 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
m

en
d 

R
ul

e 
40

D
-8

.6
24

, F
A

C
, C

or
re

ct
 T

ab
le

 8
-2

 a
nd

 T
ab

le



Item 8 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida Administrative 
Code, to Adopt Minimum and Guidance Levels for Lakes Dosson and Sunshine in 
Hillsborough County (P256) 

Purpose 
To request the Board initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.), to adopt Minimum and Guidance levels for Dosson and Sunshine 
Lakes in Hillsborough County and accept the report entitled: “Revised Minimum and Guidance 
Levels Based on Reevaluation of Levels Adopted for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes in 
Hillsborough, Florida,” dated April 30, 2018. 

Background/History 
Minimum levels are water levels at which further withdrawals would be significantly harmful to 
the water resources of the area. Guidance levels are used to describe expected water level 
fluctuations and serve as advisory information for the construction of lakeshore development, 
water dependent structures, and operation of water management structures. Minimum and 
Guidance levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes were adopted into Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., in 
July 18, 2000. Section 373.0421(3), Florida Statutes, requires that minimum flows and levels 
shall be reevaluated periodically and revised as needed. 

Dosson and Sunshine Lakes are included in the Northern Tampa Bay group of lakes selected 
for Minimum and Guidance level reevaluation. These reevaluations are being completed using 
up-to-date hydrologic, biologic, and survey data; recently-developed hydrologic models; and 
peer-reviewed methodologies to determine if any revisions are needed for currently adopted 
levels. Based on this reevaluation, and as shown in the attached Exhibit (Table 8-2), the 
Guidance and Minimum levels for both lakes are proposed to increase by 0.4 to 0.5 feet. 

The technical report outlining the development of the proposed levels for Dosson and Sunshine 
Lakes was posted on the District's website prior to the public workshop held on May 8, 2018. 
The workshop was held in the vicinity of the lake. District staff addressed questions and 
concerns at the workshop relating to the proposed Minimum and Guidance levels. No specific 
recommendations or comments that warranted changes to the proposed minimum levels were 
made by workshop participants. A summary of the public workshop, including comments and 
discussion, is available upon request. 

An updated assessment of status was performed, and Dosson and Sunshine Lakes water levels 
were determined to be 0.5 feet below the proposed Minimum Lake Level and at the High 
Minimum Lake level. Dosson and Sunshine Lakes are within the Northern Tampa Bay Water 
Use Caution Area and are considered part of the recovery strategy that is outlined in Rule 40D-
80.073, F.A.C. The District plans to continue regular monitoring of water levels in Dosson and 
Sunshine Lakes and will also routinely evaluate the status of the lakes’ water levels with respect 
to adopted minimum levels for the lakes included in Chapter 40D-8, F.A.C. 

Packet Pg. 16



Item 8 

Adoption of Minimum Levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes will support the District's water 
supply planning, Water Use Permitting, and Environmental Resource Permitting programs. 
Adoption of Guidance Levels will provide advisory information for the construction of lakeshore 
development, water dependent structures, and operation of water management structures. A 
Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs is not required for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes as 
this rulemaking is not expected to result in any direct or indirect cost increases for small 
businesses or increased regulatory costs in excess of $200,000 within one year of 
implementation.  

Upon Governing Board approval of the proposed levels, staff will submit a notice to the 
Governor’s Office of Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Reform (OFARR) and proceed with 
formal rulemaking without further Governing Board action. If substantive changes are necessary 
as the result of comments received from the public or from reviewing entities such as OFARR or 
the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee, this matter will be brought back to the 
Governing Board for consideration. 

Staff Recommendation: 

A. Accept the report entitled, “Revised Minimum and Guidance Levels Based on Reevaluation
of Levels Adopted for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes in Hillsborough County, Florida.”

B. Authorize staff to make any necessary minor clarifying edits that may result from the
rulemaking process and to complete report finalization.

C. Initiate and approve rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-8.624, F.A.C., to include the proposed
Minimum and Guidance Levels for Dosson and Sunshine Lakes in Hillsborough County, as
shown in the Exhibit.

Presenter:   David W. Carr, Staff Environmental Scientist, Water Resources Bureau 

Packet Pg. 17

Benefits/Costs 



EXHIBIT 

40D-8.624 Guidance and Minimum Levels for Lakes. 
(1) through (11) No change.
(12) Levels for lakes established during or after August 7, 2000, are set forth in the following table. After

the High Minimum Lake Level and Minimum Lake Level elevation for each lake is a designation indicating 
the Method used, as described in subsection 40D-8.624(8), F.A.C., to establish the level. Compliance with 
the High Minimum and Minimum Lake Levels is determined pursuant to paragraphs (6)(b) and (7)(b) above. 

Table 8-2 Minimum and Guidance Levels Established During or After August 7, 2000. Levels are elevations, 
in feet above the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929. 

Location by 
County and 
Basin 

Name of Lake and 
Section, Township 
and Range 
Information 

High 
Guidance 
Level 

High Minimum 
Lake Level 

Minimum Lake 
Level 

Low 
Guidance 
Level 

(a) through
(k)
No change.

(l) In
Hillsborough
County Within
the Northwest
Hillsborough
Basin

Dosson, Lake 
Dosson Lake 
S-20, T-27S,
R-18E

53.4' 
53.9’ 

53.4' (CAT 2) 
53.9’ (CAT 2) 

52.4' (CAT 2) 
52.8’ (CAT 2) 

51.3' 
51.8’ 

Sunshine, Lake 
Sunshine Lake 
S-20, T-27S,
R-18E

53.4' 
53.9’ 

53.4' (CAT 2) 
53.9’ (CAT 2) 

52.4' (CAT 2) 
52.8’ (CAT 2) 

51.3' 
51.8’ 

Rulemaking Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.036, 373.042, 373.0421, 373.086, 
373.709 FS. History–New 6-7-78, Amended 1-22-79, 4-27-80, 10-21-80, 12-22-80, 3-23-81, 4-14-81, 6-4-81, 10-15-
81, 11-23-81, 1-5-82, 3-11-82, 5-10-82, 7-4-82, 9-2-82, 11-8-82, 1-10-83, 4-3-83, 7-5-83, 9-5-83, 10-16-83, 12-12-83, 
5-8-84, 7-8-84, 12-16-84, 2-7-85, 5-13-85, 6-26-85, 11-3-85, 3-5-86, 6-16-86, Formerly 16J-8.678, Amended 9-7-86,
2-12-87, 9-2-87, 2-18-88, 6-27-88, 2-22-89, 3-23-89, 9-26-89, 7-26-90, 10-30-90, 3-3-91, 9-30-91, 10-7-91, 7-26-92, 3-
1-93, 5-11-94, 6-6-96, 2-23-97, 8-7-00, 1-8-04, 12-21-04 (13), 12-21-04 (13), 6-5-05, 5-2-06, 1-1-07, 2-12-07, 1-10-08,
2-18-08, 4-7-08, 5-20-08, 5-10-09, 4-13-11, 3-12-12, 11-25-12, 2-21-13 (12)(f), 2-21-13 (12)-(13), 9-3-13, 1-7-15, 7-1-
15, 9-21-15, 11-30-16, 12-28-16, 2-12-17 (12)(s), 2-12-17 (12)(z), 2-12-17 (12)(z), 2-19-17 (12)(l), 2-19-17 (12)(q), 3-
2-17 (12)(l), 3-2-17 (12)(z), 3-22-17, 4-2-17 (12)(q), 4-2-17 (12)(z), 4-20-17 (12)(i), 4-20-17 (12)(i), 2-5-18, 3-20-18.

Packet Pg. 18

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

P2
56

 M
FL

 D
os

so
n 

an
d 

Su
ns

hi
ne

 H
ill

 C
o 

Ex
h 

 (3
71

4 
: R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
to

 A
do

pt
 M

in
im

um
 a

nd
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

Le
ve

ls
 fo

r L
ak

es
 D

os
so

n 
an

d



Item 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Lakes Appreciation Month 

Purpose 
To request that the Governing Board sign a resolution declaring July 2018 as “Lakes 
Appreciation Month.” 

Background/History 
The North American Lake Management Society (NALMS) annually proclaims July as Lakes 
Appreciation Month. The intent of the annual resolution is to raise awareness of the importance 
and benefits lakes provide. In addition, NALMS conducts its annual Secchi Dip-In each July. 
Started in the United States, the Secchi Dip-In is now an international effort in which volunteers 
produce a “snapshot” of water clarity in lakes around the world.   

By adopting proclamations, Florida’s water management districts recognize the importance of 
increasing public awareness of the value of Florida’s lakes and encouraging behaviors that will 
enhance lakes’ health. 

The resolution for the Governing Board’s consideration is attached. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve and execute Resolution No. 18-07 declaring July 2018 as “Lakes Appreciation Month.” 

Presenter:   Robyn Felix, Bureau Chief, Communications & Board Services 

Packet Pg. 19



SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-07 

WHEREAS, Florida’s lakes are essential to the environment, economy, and citizens of, and 
visitors to, this state; and 

WHEREAS, Florida has more than 7,000 natural lakes; and 

WHEREAS, the Southwest Florida Water Management District has 1,800 identified and 
documented lakes; and 

WHEREAS, lakes are among Florida’s most valuable natural resources; and 

WHEREAS, lakes provide drinking water, irrigation, recreation, scenic beauty, and habitat for 
wildlife; and 

WHEREAS, these beneficial uses have been of vital importance to Florida’s history, growth, and 
financial health; and 

WHEREAS, our lakes improve the quality of life for all of Florida’s residents and their importance 
should not go unnoticed; and 

WHEREAS, the District recognizes the need to protect these lakes for future generations; and 

WHEREAS, the goal of the Southwest Florida Water Management District is to ensure lakes 
have adequate clean water. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District hereby proclaims July 2018 as Lakes Appreciation Month and is 
committed to implementing projects to conserve and restore the water quality and ecological 
balance of lakes, thereby supporting regional economies and quality of life. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED in Brooksville, Hernando County, Florida, on this 26th day of 
June 2018. 

SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

By: ______________________________ 
           Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair 

        Attest: ___________________________________ 
Bryan K. Beswick, Secretary

Packet Pg. 20

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

La
ke

s 
A

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

M
on

th
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
Fi

na
l  

(3
80

4 
: L

ak
es

 A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
M

on
th

)



Item 10 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Independent Auditing Services 

Purpose 
Exercise first renewal option within the current contract to amend the agreement to engage 
James Moore & Co., P.L.(JMCO) to perform the fiscal year 2017-18 auditing services.  

Background 
On July 25, 2017, the Governing Board approved the hiring of JMCO, Certified Public 
Accountants, to perform the annual audit of the District’s financial statements and the necessary 
federal and state single audits as a result of the District’s bid.  The contract was awarded to 
JMCO for one-year, with four one-year renewals in accordance with the provisions of the bid. 
This renewal represents the first one-year renewal.   

JMCO has agreed to keep the fees the same as the previous year.  With the fees remaining the 
same, there are no significant changes to the contract other than the time requirements, 
reflecting that the audit is for the fiscal year 2017-18 financial audit. 

Staff Recommendation: 

(1) Exercise the first renewal option within the current contract to amend the agreement to
engage JMCO to perform the fiscal year 2017-18 auditing services; and

(2) Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with JMCO to perform the fiscal year
2017-18 auditing services.

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 21



Item 11 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Adopt Resolutions to Identify New Slate of Officers for Financial Documents 

Purpose 
(1) Authorize the new slate of officers to apply their signatures to the required financial

documents and;
(2) Request that the Governing Board adopt District Resolution No. 18-08 authorizing the

signatures of the newly elected officers of the Governing Board of the District and the use of
facsimile or manual signatures on all warrants or checks of the District and;

(3) Adopt the SunTrust Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization for Business Entities
document to identify the new slate of officers as authorized signers on existing accounts and
give the officers the authority to give direction or confirmation to the Bank on all matters
regarding the District’s deposit account(s).

(4) Adopt the SunTrust Corporate Resolution document to identify the new slate of officers as
authorized signers on existing accounts and give the officers the authority to give direction
or confirmation to the Bank on all matters regarding the District’s custody accounts.

Background 
Following its annual election of officers in May, the new officers assume their offices twenty-four 
(24) hours prior to the June Governing Board meeting. Resolutions must be adopted to give the
new slate of officers the authority to sign and countersign all District warrants or checks. Section
373.553, Florida Statutes, requires District funds to be disbursed by check or warrant signed by
the treasurer or assistant treasurer (secretary) and countersigned by the chair or vice chair of
the board. The newly elected officers for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary/Assistant Treasurer, and
Treasurer/Assistant Secretary are identified by adoption of the resolutions, which will provide
their signatures to SunTrust.

The District’s Custody Agreement retains and employs SunTrust Bank, through its Wealth and 
Investment Management Division, to act as custodian of certain securities and funds of the 
District. Following the annual election of officers in May, a new Corporate Resolution must be 
adopted to give the new slate of officers the authority to give direction or confirmation to the 
Bank on all matters regarding the Custody Agreement and Account. The newly elected officers 
for Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary and Treasurer are identified by adoption of the resolution, which 
will provide their signatures to the Wealth and Investment Management Division of SunTrust 
Bank. 

Staff Recommendation: 

(1) Authorize the new slate of officers to apply their signatures to the required financial
documents and;

(2) Adopt Resolution No. 18-08 authorizing the signatures of the newly elected officers of
the Governing Board of the District and the use of facsimile or manual signatures on all
warrants or checks of the District.

Packet Pg. 22



Item 11 

(3) Adopt the SunTrust Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization for Business Entities
document to identify the new slate of officers as authorized signers on existing accounts and
give the officers the authority to give direction or confirmation to the Bank on all matters
regarding the District’s deposit accounts.

(4) Adopt the SunTrust Corporate Resolution document to identify the new slate of officers as
authorized signers on existing accounts and give the officers the authority to give direction
or confirmation to the Bank on all matters regarding the District’s custody accounts.

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 23



SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 18-08 

AUTHORIZING THE SIGNATURES OF OFFICERS OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 
OF THE SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

AND THE USE OF FACSIMILE OR MANUAL SIGNATURES 
ON ALL WARRANTS OR CHECKS OF THE DISTRICT 

 WHEREAS, the Southwest Florida Water Management District is a public corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, Section 373.553, Florida Statutes, requires District funds to be disbursed by check or warrant 
signed by the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer and countersigned by the Chair or Vice Chair of the Governing 
Board to effect payment of money in the name of the Southwest Florida Water Management District. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District that the following officers of the Governing Board have assumed their offices effective 
June 25, 2018, and shall have the authority, pursuant to Section 373.553, F.S., to sign all warrants or checks of 
the District: 

________________________________________, Treasurer and Assistant Secretary SIGNS 
Michelle Williamson 

________________________________________, Secretary and Assistant Treasurer SIGNS 
Bryan Beswick 

________________________________________, Chair COUNTERSIGNS 
Jeffrey M. Adams 

________________________________________, Vice Chair COUNTERSIGNS 
Ed Armstrong III 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District hereby authorizes the use of either facsimile or manual signatures of the officers designated above for all 
warrants or checks of the District; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of the Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District is hereby authorized and directed to deliver to the designated depositories of the District, 
specimens of the facsimile and manual signatures as described above. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2018, by the Governing Board of the Southwest 
Florida Water Management District. 

SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SEAL 
By:

Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair 
Attest:

______________________________
Bryan Beswick, Secretary 

DRAFT
ave aave

553, F.S., 553, 

rer and Assistant Secrerer and Assistant Secre

Secretary and AssistanSecretary and As

______, Chair ______, Chair 

____________, Vice C_________, Vice C

SOLVEDSOL  that the Govat the Gov
use of either facsimuse of either fa
ct; and ct; and

DD thth

Packet Pg. 24

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



316617 (01/11) DRES 
SunTrust Corporate Forms Page 1 of 4 
 

Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization 
for Business Entities 

I. Business Entity Account Information
Name Business Type 
Southwest Florida Water Management District PF State/Local 

Governed By Taxpayer ID Number Date Resolution and Authorization Adopted 
59-0965067 6/26/2018 

Account Number(s) 

(4 District Accounts)
The undersigned in Section IX or X hereby certify to SunTrust Bank (“Bank”) that the above named Business Entity is organized and 
existing under the laws of the state of  Florida and has been registered in  
the manner prescribed by law and is currently in full compliance with all requirements relating to its organization and continued 
existence under applicable law. 
These resolutions and authorizations apply to the above referenced deposit account(s) (hereinafter “Account”) currently open with the 
Bank and any additional Accounts opened in the future in the name of the Business Entity. For purposes of this resolution and 
authorization, Accounts will include any certificates of deposit in the name of the Business Entity. These resolutions and 
authorizations shall remain in full force and effect until written notice in a form acceptable to the Bank of their rescission or 
modification certified by the appropriate authorized individual(s) applicable to the Business Entity has been received by Bank and the 
Bank has had a reasonable time to act on said change. Receipt of such notice shall not affect any action taken by Bank prior thereto 
and Bank shall be held harmless from any claims, demands, expenses, loss, or damage resulting from, or growing out of, honoring 
the acts or instructions of any individual so certified or authorized in these resolutions to sign by delegation of authority in accordance 
herewith or refusing to honor any signature not so certified or authorized. 

II. Authority to sign, act, give instructions, access information, use Bank’s services, perform transactions, enter into
agreements and delegate authority on behalf of Business Entity. Resolved, that Bank be and is hereby designated a depository
for the Business Entity; that any one of the individuals or entities named in Section III below is an “Authorized Signer” and is
authorized to act, give instructions, access information, use Bank’s services, and perform transactions on behalf of Business Entity
with respect to any Accounts of Business Entity with Bank or services provided to Business Entity by the Bank, to enter into on behalf
of the Business Entity any of Bank’s agreements including checking, savings, certificates of deposit, wire or electronic funds transfer,
night deposit, cash management, or other treasury management services agreements and to delegate to any other individual or entity
his or her authority to act, give instructions, access information, use Bank’s services, perform transactions, and enter into agreements
on behalf of the Business Entity, including agreements that delegate his or her authority to other individuals or entities with respect to
the Business Entity’s Accounts or Bank’s services; that the Business Entity shall be bound by the terms and conditions of all such
agreements and Bank’s Rules and Regulations for Deposit Accounts related thereto, all as now existing or as amended from time to
time; and that any Authorized Signer named in Section III, is authorized on behalf of this Business Entity to sign and to endorse for
deposit, negotiation or collection, any and all checks, drafts, certificates of deposit, savings certificates, items or other instruments or
written orders for the payment of money payable by or to the order of this Business Entity. Signatures and endorsements, if any, may
be in writing, by stamp, or otherwise affixed, with or without designation or signature of the person so endorsing, it being understood
that all prior endorsements on such items are guaranteed by this Business Entity, regardless of the lack of an express guarantee in
the endorsement of this Business Entity.
Further Resolved, Bank is hereby directed to honor, pay and charge to the Accounts of this Business Entity, without inquiry as to the
circumstances of the issuance or application of the proceeds of, any checks, drafts, items or other written orders on any of this
Business Entity’s Accounts with Bank, whether payable to, endorsed or negotiated by or for the credit of any person signing the same
or any other of the Authorized Signers named in Section III when signed by any of the Authorized Signers named in Section III.

III. Officers/Owner/General Partners/Members/Managers/Governors authorized to act, give instructions, access information,
use Bank’s services, perform transactions, enter into agreements, and delegate authority on behalf of the Business Entity
The full name, title, and signature of each person authorized to act, give instructions, access information, use Bank’s services,
perform transactions, enter into agreements, and delegate his or her authority on behalf of the Business Entity as described in the
resolutions set forth in this document is immediately below. [Instruction: If the General Partner, Member or Manager is also an entity
(e.g., a corporation, LLC, or partnership), the name of the entity is entered in the column headed “Name”, applicable title of General
Partner, Member or Manager is entered in the column headed “Title”, and the name of the individual signing on behalf of that entity
and individual’s title or position are entered in the column headed “Signature” and the individual signs directly underneath his/her
name and title. The individual must provide a resolution on that entity reflecting the individual’s authority.]

User ID UFET49 Account Number 

DRAFT
EntEnt

usiness usine
cceptable to tccept

the Business Entitthe Busine
tice shall not tice shall not affect any aff

loss, or damage resulting floss, or damage resu
hese resohese lutions to sign by dign by

orized. orized
n, use Bank’s services, pee Bank’s s

s Entity. Resolved, that BaResolv
ntities named in Sectintities named in Sec on III 

use Bank’s services, and pe Bank’s services, and 
Bank or ser services provided tes provided t

ncluding checkincluding checking, savings,ng, savings,
ury management servury management se ices a

ccess informatccess inform ion, use Banuse
agreements that deleagreements that d gate hgate

s services; that the Busiervices; that the Businesnes
egulations for Deposit Accogulations for Deposit Acco

er named iner named in Section III, is aSection
n, any and all checks, draftsn, any and all checks, dra

t of money payable by or tot of money payable by or to
rwise affirwise xed, with or wth o

ch items are guarach items are gua
ntity.ntity.

ted toted to

Packet Pg. 25

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



316617 (01/11) DRES 
SunTrust Corporate Forms Page 2 of 4 
 

Name  Title Signature 

E.D ARMSTRONG III VICE CHAIR 

JEFFREY M. ADAMS  CHAIR 

MICHELLE WILLIAMSON TREASURER 

BRYAN BESWICK SECRETARY 

IV. Facsimile Signatures (Complete this section only if machine or facsimile stamped signatures are to be used on items.) Further
Resolved, that Bank is hereby requested, authorized and directed to honor any check, draft, item or other written order on any of this
Business Entity’s Accounts with Bank when bearing or purporting to bear the following authorized machine or facsimile signature of
any of the above named individuals whose signatures are reproduced below, regardless of by whom or by what means the actual or
purported machine or facsimile signatures may have been affixed. The Business Entity shall indemnify and hold the Bank harmless
from any and all claims, expenses, losses, damages and costs, including attorneys’ fees, resulting from, or growing out of the Bank’s
honoring the facsimile signature of any of the following individuals, its refusal to honor any facsimile signature of an individual not
named below, or resulting from the unauthorized use of the instrument used to provide the facsimile signatures by persons other than
authorized individuals.

Name of Authorized Signer Listed in Section III  Machine/Facsimile Stamped Signature of Authorized Signer 

Michelle Williamson  See samples 
Jeffrey M. Adams  See samples 

V. Additional Signatories on Business Entity’s Accounts. Further resolved, the following individual(s) are authorized as additional
signatories only to sign and to endorse for deposit or collection any checks, drafts, or other instruments or written orders for the
payment of money payable to the order of the Business Entity and to sign checks, drafts, items or other written orders, and initiate
wire or funds transfers and execute Bank’s Funds Transfer Authorization wire request and disclosure form on any of the Business
Entity’s Accounts with Bank. [Instruction: If an additional signatory is not authorized to sign on all Accounts, specify the Account
Number applicable to the signatory as indicated below.] Refer to the Signature Card(s) on the Account(s) for signatures of the
Additional Signatories.
Additional Signatory's Name  Position with Entity Specific Deposit Account Number(s) Applicable to 

Signatory (Complete only if signatory is not authorized on 
all accounts)

VI. Qualification Certification for Public Fund, Organization, Political Organization, Homeowners and Condominium Owners
Association or Corporation Not Operated for Profit to earn interest on a checking account (NOW Account)
Mark this section with an “X” only if Business Entity is eligible to earn interest on a checking account.

 I/We further certify that the above named Business Entity is eligible to earn interest on a checking account (referred to as a 
Negotiable Order of Withdrawal or NOW Account) in compliance with Regulation D of the Federal Reserve Act (12CFR 204) as a 
Public Fund or a Non-Profit Organization that is operated primarily for Religious, Philanthropic, Charitable, Educational, Political or 
other similar purposes under one of the following sections: Organization – Section 501 (C) (3) through (13), and (19) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (26 USC (IRC 1954) 501 (C) (3) – (13) and (19). Political Organization – Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code 
(26 USC (IRC 1954) 527). Homeowners and Condominium Owners Associations – Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 
USC (IRC 1954) 528). 

VII. Power to Act. The undersigned certifies that there are no limits to the undersigned’s powers to adopt this Authorization and to attest
that the resolutions stated herein are accurate and that this Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization is in conformity with the
provisions of the organizational instruments, which include the Business Entity’s charter, bylaws, operating agreement, partnership
agreement, shareholders’ agreement or similar agreements by which the Business Entity or the undersigned party may be bound and
does not violate the provisions thereof.

 VIII. Prior Acts. All previous acts of or on behalf of the Business Entity as provided for above are hereby approved and ratified.
IX. Certification—Corporation or Professional Corporation. I, the undersigned, hereby certify to Bank that the above is a true copy of

resolutions and authorizations of said Business Entity and that such resolutions and authorizations are in full force and effect and
have not been amended or rescinded.

User ID UFET49 Account Number 

DRAFT
or anor an

ovide ovide the f

/Facsimile Stamped SFacsimile Sta

samplessam
See samplesSee samplesFTFTther resolved, the following esolved, th

on any checks, drafts, or oton any checks, d
ntity and to sign checks, drantity and to sign check

sfer AuthorAuthorization wire requization wire req
onal signatory is not authorinatory is not authoriAelow.] elow.] Refer to the Signatur to the Signatu

ition with Entity ition with Entity 

DDRDDRDDDic Fund, Oic Fund, O
ated fated f

Packet Pg. 26

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



316617 (01/11) DRES 
SunTrust Corporate Forms Page 3 of 4 
 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of the Corporation this of , 
. 

(Affix Seal here, if available) 

Authorized Signature 
This section not applicable 
Name and Title of President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary or 
Other Officer as designated in the Corporation’s Bylaws 

X. Certification—Limited Liability Company, Partnership, Public Fund, Sole Proprietorship, Unincorporated Organization or 
Association, or Other Entity. I/We, the undersigned, hereby certify to Bank that the above is a true copy of resolutions and 
authorizations of said Business Entity and that such resolutions are in full force and effect and have not been amended or rescinded. 
[Instruction: If the General Partner, Member or Manager is also an entity (e.g., a corporation, LLC, or partnership), the name of the 
entity and the word “By” are entered in the column headed “Signature”; the individual signing on behalf of that entity signs directly 
below the name of the entity; and the name of the individual and individual’s title or position are entered in the column headed “Title”. 
The individual must provide a resolution on that entity reflecting the individual’s authority.]

Name and Title Signature Date 

JEFFREY M. ADAMS / Chair 6/26/2018

ED ARMSTRONG / Vice Chair 6/26/2018

BRYAN BESWICK/ Secretary 6/26/2018

MICHELLE WILLIAMSON / Treasurer 6/26/2018

Signature Requirement instructions 
The following signatures are required to complete and certify the Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization to be correct:  
● Corporations: Corporate Officers authorized to act on behalf of the corporation named in Section III should include the President and

Secretary and any other applicable corporate officers, such as Vice President or Treasurer. The President, Secretary, Assistant 
Secretary, or other corporate officer as designated in the bylaws of the corporation is required to certify the Deposit Account 
Resolution and Authorization under Section IX. 

● Limited Liability Companies: Section III and X require the signatures of all members/managers/board members, unless the Operating
Agreement authorizes one or more members/managers/board members to conduct banking business, in which case the signatures of 
all such authorized members/managers/board members are sufficient. 

● Public Fund Entities: Section III requires the signatures of individuals authorized to sign on behalf of the Public Fund Entity as 
designated by the governing unit, e.g., Board of County Commissioners, Mayor, Secretary of State, etc. The individual(s) authorized 
to represent the governing unit is required to certify the Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization under Section X. 

● Partnerships: Section III and X require the signatures of all General Partners, unless the Partnership Agreement designates one or 
more partners to conduct banking business and perform banking transactions. In such cases, the designated general partner(s) are 
named in Section III as the General Partners authorized to act on behalf of the entity and these same General Partners will certify the 
Deposit Account Resolution and Authorization under Section X. 

● Sole Proprietorships: Section III and X require the signature of the proprietor (owner) or in the case of a spousal proprietorship, the
signatures of the husband and wife who own the Business Entity.

● Unincorporated Organizations or Associations: Section III requires the signatures of the Officers or Positions designated in the
Organization or Association’s bylaws or charter as authorized to act on behalf of the organization or association. The President or
Secretary of the organization or association (or other individual designated to do so) is required to certify the Deposit Account
Resolution and Authorization under Section X.

Bank Use Only 
Bank Number Cost Center Number Cost Center Name 
0175 6560250 Government-tampa 
Prepared By Phone Number Date 
ESTHER TORRES (813) 224-2183 6/6/2018 
Account Number(s) 

(4 district accounts) 
Verification Method 

User ID UFET49 Account Number 

DRAFTTTFTFT
AFAFe Requirement instructionquirement instructio

d certify the Deposit Accothe Deposit Acc
on behalf on beh of the corporation he corporation 

ficers, ficers, such as Vice Presidesuch as Vice 
signated in the bylaws of tsignated in the bylaws 

IX. X. 
and X require the signaturesequire the signatures

embers/members/managers/board mnagers
agers/board members are sagers/board members a

requires the signatures of irequires the signatures of i
nitnit, e.g., Board of Coun, e.g., Board of C

required to certifyrequired to certi
the signatuthe signatu

ss andss and

Packet Pg. 27

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



316617 (01/11) DRES 
SunTrust Corporate Forms Page 4 of 4 
 

Packet Pg. 28

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



CORPORATE RESOLUTION

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Southwest Florida Water Management District (the “District”), which is organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Florida and having its principal place of business at the below named address, hereby
certify to SUNTRUSTBank (the “Bank) that the following is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the governing authority
of this entity in accordance with its By-Laws, at a meeting held on June 26, 2018, and not subsequently modified.

RESOLVED:

1) That the Wealth and Investment Management Division of the Bank is designated as a depository for funds and securities
of this entity, under an Agreement signed on behalf of this entity:

2) That any of the officers or representative whose titles are listed below are hereby authorized on behalf of this entity:

To sign and execute a/anInvestment Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the Bank and to establish the
appropriate account(s) (the “Account(s)’),

To deposit, transfer or withdraw funds; to agree to the purchase, sale or exchange of any funds or assets held in the
Account(s); to provide instructions, when needed, to the Bank with respect to the management or investment of
such funds or assets; and to sign checks, drafts, stock powers, bond powers or other orders with respect to assets of,
or being added to, the Account(s); and

To appoint by Addendum agents of the District with limited or full authority to give instructions or confirmations
to the Bank on matters regarding the Agreement and Account, requiring that an appointee with full authority may
not make changes to the Addendum regarding their own delegated authority; and

To transact any and all other business relating to the Accounts(s), which at any time may be deemed advisable
pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement; and

3) That any such transactions made on behalf of this entity with the Bank are hereby ratified, and Bank may rely upon the
authority conferred by this Resolution until it is revoked or modified.

I further certify that the following officers or representatives are currently authorized to act on behalf of this entity in
accordance with the terms of this Resolution as outlined.

Officer or Representative Title Name Signature

Chair Jeffrey M. Adams 

Vice Chair Ed Armstrong III 

Secretary Bryan Beswick 

Treasurer Michelle Williamson 

Number of signatures required, if applicable: 1   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder subscribed my name and affixed the seal of this entity if applicable.

Southwest Florida Water ManagementDistrict   
Entity Name Bryan Beswick, Secretary

2379 Broad Street
Address Date

Brooksville, FL 34604-6899
City, State and ZIP

(Corporate Seal)

DRAFT
ee oror exchan

withwith respectrespe to th
bondbond powersers oror other o

h limited or full authority mited or full
and Account, requiring thunt, re

their own delegated authheir own delegated a

relating to thethe Accounts(Accounts(
eement;eement; aandn

behalfehalf of thishis entityentity withwith
ution until it is revoked ontil it is revoked o

inging officers officers gg oror representeprese
his Resolution ashis Resolution as outlineoutline

Packet Pg. 29

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 M
ee

tin
g 

Ex
hi

bi
t f

or
 A

do
pt

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

- N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 - 
6.

26
.1

8 
 (3

81
4 

: A
do

pt
 R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 Id
en

tif
y 

N
ew

 S
la

te
 o

f O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r



Item 12 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Governing Board Travel - Annual Environmental Permitting Summer School 

District policy states that in accordance with Chapters 112 and 373, Florida Statutes, travel 
expenses may be incurred for official District business or for a public purpose beneficial to the 
District. Travel to any conference or convention requires prior approval. 

Within the geographic boundaries of the District, Governing Board members may incur travel 
expenses to attend Governing Board meetings or for other purposes beneficial to the District, 
excluding conferences and conventions. Scheduled travel for Governing Board members 
outside the District or to attend conferences or conventions requires prior approval through the 
consent agenda of a regular monthly Governing Board meeting. Non-scheduled travel outside 
the District or to attend any conference or convention requires prior approval of the Governing 
Board Chair, or in his absence, the Vice Chair. 

32th Annual Environmental Permitting School 
Marco Island  July 16- July 20, 2018 

These are approximate costs 
Name Registration Lodging $175/Night Mileage Cost Meals 

Randy Maggard Registration $560 $700  $185  $115 

Paul Senft Registration $560 
Early Bird $75  

$700 $155 $115 

Mark Taylor Registration $560 
Early Bird $75 

$700 $202 $115 

Jim Murphy Registration $560 
Early Bird $75 

$700 $142 $115 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve Governing Board travel as presented.

Presenter:   Cara S. Martin, Board and Executive Services Manager 

Packet Pg. 30



Item 13 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Budget Transfer Refundable Deposit for Relocation 

Purpose 
Staff requests approval for a budget transfer of $115,000 from the Sarasota Skylight 
Replacements project for the purpose of funding a refundable deposit, not to exceed five 
percent of the advertised price of a replacement property, and ancillary costs (inspections, 
appraisals, etc.) to hold the property for Governing Board consideration of a lease or purchase 
and sale agreement. 

Background/History 
The District acquired the property for the Sarasota Office in 2000 and constructed the office in 
2001. The Sarasota Office is located on a 4.6-acre site and has approximately 19,540 gross 
square feet of office and storage space. The Sarasota Office exceeds the size requirements for 
the 36 staff that are assigned to this location. 

At the May 22, 2018 Governing Board Meeting, Staff recommended and the Governing Board 
approved the following items: 

• In accordance with Fla. Stat. §373.089, declare the Sarasota Office as surplus.
• Authorize the Executive Director, with the concurrence of the Office of General Counsel,

to deliver a Letter of Intent to an owner or representative for the potential lease or
purchase of a candidate property, before bringing a Lease or Purchase and Sale
Agreement to the Governing Board for consideration.

• Payment of a refundable deposit of not more than 5 percent of the advertised price, if
necessary, to secure a property before Governing Board consideration of a Lease or
Purchase and Sale Agreement.

• Authorize staff to prepare a budget amendment in an amount not to exceed $2.3 million
and submit the budget amendment to the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection for review and approval by the Executive Office of the Governor.

Budget Considerations 
Pursuant to the May 2018 Governing Board approval of the above items, staff are actively 
searching for a replacement facility for lease or purchase in the Sarasota area.  When a suitable 
property has been located, budget authority would be required for payment of a refundable 
deposit and any ancillary costs associated with due diligence activities, to hold a property prior 
to bringing a lease or purchase to the Governing Board for consideration. Staff requests transfer 
of funds of $115,000 (5 percent of $2.3 million) from the Sarasota Skylight Replacements 
project for this purpose. 

Packet Pg. 31



Item 13 

Presenter:   John J. Campbell, Director, Management Services 

Packet Pg. 32

Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the transfer of $115,000 from the Sarasota Skylight Replacements project for the purpose of 
funding a refundable deposit and any ancillary due diligence costs to hold a property prior to Governing 
Board consideration of a lease or purchase and sale agreement. 



Item 14 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Budget Transfer Report 

Purpose 
Request approval of the Budget Transfer Report covering all budget transfers made during the 
month of May 2018. 

Background 
In accordance with Board Policy, Budget Authority Transfer of Funds, all transfers approved by 
the Executive Director and Finance Bureau Chief under delegated authority are regularly 
presented to the Finance/Outreach & Planning Committee for approval on the Consent Agenda 
at the next scheduled meeting.  The exhibit for this item reflects all such transfers executed 
since the date of the last report for the Committee's approval. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Request approval of the Budget Transfer Report covering all budget transfers for May 2018. 

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 33



SO
U

TH
W

ES
T 

FL
O

R
ID

A
 W

A
TE

R
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

B
ud

ge
t T

ra
ns

fe
r R

ep
or

t 
M

ay
 2

01
8

B
ur

ea
u

/
B

ur
ea

u
/

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 C

at
eg

or
y

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 C

at
eg

or
y

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
1

4
W

at
er

 U
se

 P
er

m
itt

in
g

4
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l R

es
ou

rc
e 

Pe
rm

it
46

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

31
11

C
on

su
lta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

31
11

C
on

su
lta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
11

,5
95

.0
0

46
02

M
ai

nt
/R

ep
ai

r o
f B

ld
gs

/S
tru

ct
ur

es
64

03
Eq

ui
pm

en
t -

 O
ut

si
de

3
5

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

5
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
14

,5
00

.0
0

81
01

G
ra

nt
 - 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

31
11

C
on

su
lta

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

4
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
24

,1
50

.0
0

46
02

M
ai

nt
/R

ep
ai

r o
f B

ld
gs

/S
tru

ct
ur

es
64

03
Eq

ui
pm

en
t -

 O
ut

si
de

5
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
6

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 &

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
10

,6
60

.0
0

64
03

Eq
ui

pm
en

t -
 O

ut
si

de
64

03
Eq

ui
pm

en
t -

 O
ut

si
de

6
0

G
en

er
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
0

G
en

er
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
15

,0
00

.0
0

44
04

R
en

ta
l o

f O
th

er
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
34

31
C

on
tra

ct
ed

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Tr
an

sf
er

Am
ou

nt
R

ea
so

n 
Fo

r T
ra

ns
fe

r
Ite

m
N

o.

---
 T

R
AN

SF
ER

R
ED

 F
R

O
M

 --
-

---
 T

R
AN

SF
ER

R
ED

 T
O

 --
-

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
om

at
ic

 M
et

er
 

R
ea

di
ng

 (A
M

R
) I

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
.  

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
.  

Th
e 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 fo
r o

ut
si

de
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

ith
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

pe
rm

its
 d

ue
 to

 u
na

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

va
ca

nc
ie

s.
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 L
ak

e 
H

an
co

ck
 O

ut
fa

ll 
W

et
la

nd
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t p
um

p 
st

at
io

n.
  T

he
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

du
e 

to
 in

st
al

la
tio

n-
re

la
te

d 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

pu
m

p 
be

in
g 

w
or

ke
d 

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
ve

nd
or

; t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-r
el

at
ed

 
fu

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
.  

Fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 fo
r t

he
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

an
d 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

ai
r c

om
pr

es
so

r a
t t

he
 W

ys
on

g-
C

oo
gl

er
 W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

th
at

 h
ad

 a
n 

un
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 
fa

ilu
re

.  
Th

is
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

is
 a

n 
in

fla
ta

bl
e 

da
m

 u
se

d 
to

 re
gu

la
te

 th
e 

flo
w

 o
f t

he
 W

ith
la

co
oc

he
e 

R
iv

er
.  

Th
e 

co
m

pr
es

so
r, 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 s

ur
pa

ss
ed

 it
s 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
, c

an
no

t b
e 

re
pa

ire
d 

an
d 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l f

or
 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

e.

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 P

as
co

 C
ou

nt
y 

R
iv

er
si

de
 V

illa
ge

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t f
is

ca
l y

ea
r (

FY
) 2

01
8 

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
(C

FI
) p

ro
je

ct
.  

Th
e 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
no

 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

de
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y.
  F

un
ds

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

fo
r t

he
 

br
oa

de
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 p
ee

r r
ev

ie
w

 e
ffo

rt 
fo

r t
he

 E
xp

an
si

on
 o

f t
he

 C
en

tra
l F

lo
rid

a 
Ar

ea
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

(E
C

FT
X)

 m
od

el
 a

s 
di

re
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l F
lo

rid
a 

W
at

er
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

(C
FW

I) 
m

ul
ti-

di
st

ric
t m

od
el

in
g 

te
am

.  
Th

e 
tw

o 
st

ep
 m

od
el

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

re
ad

y 
by

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
8 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
20

40
 w

at
er

 d
em

an
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

FW
I a

re
a.

  C
al

ib
ra

tio
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
do

ne
 b

y 
in

-h
ou

se
 s

ta
ff 

fro
m

 th
re

e 
se

pa
ra

te
 w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t d

is
tri

ct
s 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
s 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t e
xt

er
na

l p
ee

r r
ev

ie
w

 a
t e

ac
h 

ca
lib

ra
tio

n 
st

ep
 a

nd
 m

aj
or

 m
ile

st
on

e.
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 L
ak

e 
H

an
co

ck
 O

ut
fa

ll 
W

et
la

nd
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t p
um

p 
st

at
io

n.
  T

he
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

du
e 

to
 in

st
al

la
tio

n-
re

la
te

d 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

pu
m

p 
be

in
g 

w
or

ke
d 

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
ve

nd
or

; t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-r
el

at
ed

 
fu

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
.  

Fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 re

pl
ac

e 
an

 8
0-

fo
ot

 a
qu

a 
ba

rr
ie

r t
ha

t i
s 

no
 lo

ng
er

 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 p
ro

pe
rly

 a
nd

 h
as

 s
ur

pa
ss

ed
 it

s 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

.  
Tw

o 
sm

al
le

r a
qu

a 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 w

ill 
be

 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 g
re

at
er

 fl
ex

ib
ilit

y 
fo

r s
m

al
l a

nd
 la

rg
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r a

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t u

til
ity

 ta
sk

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

d 
in

 s
up

po
rt 

of
 th

e 
Pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 F
ire

 P
ro

gr
am

 to
 b

e 
10

0%
 re

im
bu

rs
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Fl
or

id
a 

Fo
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 (F

FS
). 

 C
ha

ng
es

 
to

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

s 
by

 th
e 

FF
S 

no
 lo

ng
er

 a
llo

w
 fo

r t
he

 re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t o
f u

til
ity

 ta
sk

 
ve

hi
cl

es
.  

Th
e 

fu
nd

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
FF

S 
w

ill
 b

e 
ut

ili
ze

d 
fo

r t
he

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f f
iv

e 
hi

gh
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

w
ild

fir
e 

pu
m

ps
 o

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

Pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 F

ire
 P

ro
gr

am
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

FY
20

19
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bu
dg

et
. 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r r

en
ta

l o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t i
n 

su
pp

or
t o

f m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 D
is

tri
ct

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

.  
Ad

di
tio

na
l f

un
ds

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

w
ar

d 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f B

ro
ok

sv
ill

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
1 

to
 th

e 
lo

w
es

t b
id

de
r. 

 T
he

se
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 
du

e 
to

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 u

til
iz

ed
 fo

r a
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
ur

ve
y 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 s

co
pe

 o
f w

or
k,

 a
nd

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t l

ow
es

t b
id

 c
om

in
g 

in
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

.  
Th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 d

el
ay

ed
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

fir
st

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

fo
r b

id
s 

be
in

g 
un

su
cc

es
sf

ul
.

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 3

4

Attachment: 06-18 FO&P-FIN Exhibit-BT Rpt MAY2018  (3811 : Budget Transfer Report)



SO
U

TH
W

ES
T 

FL
O

R
ID

A
 W

A
TE

R
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

B
ud

ge
t T

ra
ns

fe
r R

ep
or

t 
M

ay
 2

01
8

B
ur

ea
u

/
B

ur
ea

u
/

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 C

at
eg

or
y

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 C

at
eg

or
y

Tr
an

sf
er

Am
ou

nt
R

ea
so

n 
Fo

r T
ra

ns
fe

r
Ite

m
N

o.

---
 T

R
AN

SF
ER

R
ED

 F
R

O
M

 --
-

---
 T

R
AN

SF
ER

R
ED

 T
O

 --
-

7
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 R

is
k 

M
gm

t
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 R

is
k 

M
gm

t
8,

80
6.

72
12

01
Sa

la
rie

s
34

24
Te

m
p 

C
on

tra
ct

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

To
ta

l E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
13

0,
71

1.
72

$ 
   

   

Fi
na

nc
e 

B
ur

ea
u 

C
hi

ef
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

1
0

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0
G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ffa
irs

11
1,

64
2.

87
$ 

   
   

sb
Sa

la
rie

s 
& 

Be
ne

fit
s

sb
Sa

la
rie

s 
& 

Be
ne

fit
s

xx
xx

Va
rio

us
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 C

at
eg

or
ie

s
xx

xx
Va

rio
us

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 C
at

eg
or

ie
s

To
ta

l F
in

an
ce

 B
ur

ea
u 

C
hi

ef
 A

pp
ro

ve
d

11
1,

64
2.

87
$ 

   
   

To
ta

l T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fo

r G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 R
at

ifi
ca

tio
n

24
2,

35
4.

59
$ 

   
   

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

tra
ns

fe
rs

 m
ad

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

m
on

th
 th

at
 d

id
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

 a
dv

an
ce

 G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 
 T

he
se

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

ei
th

er
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
r d

es
ig

ne
e 

or
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
B

ur
ea

u 
C

hi
ef

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 B

oa
rd

 P
ol

ic
y 

13
0-

8,
 a

nd
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 ra

tif
ic

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

C
on

se
nt

 A
ge

nd
a.

  E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

r d
es

ig
ne

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
fo

r a
 

pu
rp

os
e 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

t i
nt

en
t, 

bu
t a

re
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 in
di

vi
du

al
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

gr
ea

te
r t

ha
n 

$5
,0

00
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

$5
0,

00
0.

  F
in

an
ce

 B
ur

ea
u 

C
hi

ef
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

tra
ns

fe
rs

 a
re

 u
p 

to
 $

5,
00

0 
or

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

re
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 o

rig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

t i
nt

en
t. 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f f

un
ds

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

al
ar

y 
of

 a
 H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n.
  

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 v
ac

an
cy

.  
Th

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 fo

r a
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 w

or
ke

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 R

ec
ru

itm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f b

ud
ge

te
d 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r t
he

 re
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

's
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fu
nc

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Bu
re

au
 to

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ffa

irs
 O

ffi
ce

.  
Th

is
 tr

an
sf

er
 d

oe
s 

no
t c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
s 

no
r t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f D

is
tri

ct
 

fu
ll-

tim
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s.

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 3

5

Attachment: 06-18 FO&P-FIN Exhibit-BT Rpt MAY2018  (3811 : Budget Transfer Report)



Item 15 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake 
Venus, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-131 

Purpose 
Lake Venus has minimum lake levels adopted in Rule (40D-8.624, F.A.C.), is within the 
Southern Water Use Caution Area (SWUCA), and the Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) 
planning area. A monitoring well adjacent to the lake is necessary to support water resource 
evaluations of the lake and surrounding area. The District negotiated an offer with Mr. and Mrs. 
Scelp in the amount of $2,500 for an easement over the proposed well site area, and access to 
the well site and existing lake gauge. The purpose of this item is to recommend the Governing 
Board approve the Purchase and Sale Agreement, included as Exhibit 1, for a perpetual 
easement for a 100-square foot (10 feet by 10 feet) area to be used as a monitoring well site, 
permanent access to the site, as well as permanent access to the existing staff gauge for Lake 
Venus. General location and site maps of the property are included in the Board packet as 
Exhibits 2 and 3. 

Background and History 
The minimum lake levels for Lake Venus became effective in 2008. Data from this monitoring 
well site will improve the District’s ability to assess the annual lake level status relative to its 
adopted minimum lake levels. The minimum lake level assessments allow for the determination 
of the sustainable limits of traditional groundwater that can be used without causing 
unacceptable harm to the water resources and associated natural systems. As such, this site is 
used by the District to make regulatory decisions and conduct regional water supply planning 
such as the CFWI efforts.  

The CFWI is a collaborative water supply planning effort designed to identify sustainable water 
sources and develop strategies to address water demands within a five-county region in east-
central Florida. As part of the District’s role in this effort, additional groundwater data collection 
sites are being pursued to support adoption and maintenance of minimum lake levels (MLL) at 
19 lakes within the Polk Uplands and Lake Wales Ridge. Aquifer monitoring near MLL lakes is 
essential to enhancing the District’s understanding of these lakes and will be used to correlate 
changes in lake water levels with changes in aquifer water levels due to groundwater 
withdrawals. Such data is necessary to ensure compliance with adopted minimum lake levels, 
such as Lake Star, making the installation of a monitoring well adjacent to the lake necessary. 

Property Description 
The easement area is a 10-foot wide access strip with a 100-square-foot area to be used as a 
data collection well site. The property is owned by Mr. and Mrs. Scelp and is located in 
southeastern Polk County.  

Negotiations  
Staff first explored the requested area for property owners that are more apt to donate a parcel. 
This includes parcels that are not on the tax roll (state and local government, non-profits, etc.) 
and non-residential tracts of more than one-acre where a wellsite may be inconsequential. Staff 

Packet Pg. 36



Item 15 

also considers city, county, or state right- of- ways, when the cost to install a well is less than 
$20,000. Staff contacted four property owners who declined to donate land.  In this instance Mr. 
and Mrs. Scelp were unwilling to entertain a donation but agreed to an offer amount of $2,500 
for an easement over the proposed well site area and access to the site and existing lake 
gauge.   

Summary of Appraisals and Value Comparisons 
A valuation of the easement was completed utilizing the “value in use” method related to the 
property interests necessary to support the proposed improvements to the site.  Value in use is 
a form of appraisal for special purpose properties that takes into consideration the value of 
installed features, such as a monitoring well, that better reflect the unique purpose of the parcel. 
In accordance with District Policy, a State certified appraiser completed the appraisal estimating 
the use value of the site to be in the range of $2,158 to $4,316 and concluded that the 
negotiated amount is within the range of acceptable compensation.  The appraisal is available 
upon request. 

Acquisition Terms 
· Mr. and Mrs. Scelp agreed to the sale and conveyance of an easement interest of the

parcel necessary for construction, maintenance and monitoring activities on the site.
· The Easement will be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances objectionable to the

District.
· The District will pay transactional costs for closing, including the title insurance and

recording fees.
· Access to the Easement areas shall be made using the platted right-of-way adjacent to the

property. If at any time in the future the current owner or any adjacent owner should make
application to vacate the right-of-way, Polk County will require an Easement be dedicated
to the District to ensure continued access to the easement area(s).

Benefit/Costs 
Data from the Lake Venus wells and lake level gauge will improve the District’s understanding 
of the hydrologic conditions and provide for improved assessments of potential withdrawal-
related impacts to water resources within the SWUCA and the CFWI areas. The purchase of 
this easement will ensure the continued access to the existing staff gage as required by Rule 
and allow for CFWI Data Monitoring and Investigations Team workplan to proceed by allowing 
the District to immediately access, construct, maintain and monitor the wells at this location. 
Transactional costs to the District for closing, including the title insurance and recording fees are 
expected to be approximately $450, capital improvements are not expected to exceed $16,000 
and operation and maintenance of the site is not expected to exceed $1,000 per year. 

Packet Pg. 37



Item 15 

Presenter:   Carmen Sanders, Operations and Land Management Assistant Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 38

· Accept t he valuation appraisal;

· Accept the Easement and any future Easements associated with right-of-way vacation;

· Approve the Purchase/Sale Agreement and authorize the Executive Director or Division
Director to sign on behalf of the District;

· Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in
accordance with the approved terms.

Staff Recommendation: 



Packet Pg. 39

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



Packet Pg. 40

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



Packet Pg. 41

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



Packet Pg. 42

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



Packet Pg. 43

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



Lake Venus CFWI Data Collection Site 

±
0 200 400

Feet

Proposed Staff 
Gage Access

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P
Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

¬«60

£¤27

§̈¦4

Subject Area

Polk County, Florida

Proposed Well Site

Packet Pg. 44

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 V

en
us

 E
xh

ib
it 

M
in

Tr
ac

  (
38

27
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
Ve

nu
s)



CF KINNEY RD

E
xh

ib
it 

3
La

ke
 V

en
us

 D
at

a 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
S

ite
 

P
ro

po
se

d 
W

el
l S

ite

P
ro

po
se

d 
S

ta
ff 

G
ag

e 
A

cc
es

s 
A

re
a

0
50

10
0

25

Fe
et

¯
Pa

ck
et

 P
g.

 4
5

Attachment: Lk Venus Exhibit MinTrac  (3827 : Purchase Sale Agreement Lake Venus)



  Item 16 
 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Purchase and Sale Agreement – Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Project, Lake 
Aurora, SWF Parcel No. 20-020-129 

Purpose 
Lake Aurora has minimum lake levels adopted in Rule (40D-8.624, F.A.C.), is within the 
Southern Water Use Caution Area (SWUCA), and the Central Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) 
planning area. A monitoring well adjacent to the lake is necessary to support water resource 
evaluations of the lake and surrounding area.  The purpose of this item is to recommend the 
Governing Board approve the Purchase and Sale Agreement, included as Exhibit 1, for a 
perpetual easement for a 150-square foot (10 feet by 15 feet) area to be used as a monitoring 
well site, permanent access to the site as well as permanent access to an existing lake staff 
gauge for Lake Aurora in the amount of $5,500.  General location and site maps of the property 
are included in the Board packet as Exhibits 2 and 3.  
 
Background and History 
The minimum lake levels for Lake Aurora became effective in February of 2018. Data from this 
monitoring well site will improve the District’s ability to assess the annual lake level status 
relative to its adopted minimum lake levels. The minimum lake level assessments allow for the 
determination of the sustainable limits of traditional groundwater that can be used without 
causing unacceptable harm to the water resources and associated natural systems. As such, 
this site is used by the District to make regulatory decisions and conduct regional water supply 
planning such as the CFWI efforts.  
 
The CFWI is a collaborative water supply planning effort designed to identify sustainable 
water sources and develop strategies to address water demands within a five-county region 
in east-central Florida. As part of the District’s role in this effort, additional groundwater 
data collection sites are being pursued to support adoption and maintenance of minimum 
lake levels (MLL) at 19 lakes within the Polk Uplands and Lake Wales Ridge. Aquifer 
monitoring near MLL lakes is essential to enhancing the District’s understanding of these 
lakes and will be used to correlate changes in lake water levels with changes in aquifer 
water levels due to groundwater withdrawals. Such data is necessary to ensure compliance 
with adopted minimum lake levels, such as Lake Aurora, making the installation of monitoring 
wells adjacent to the lake necessary. 
 
Property Description 
The easement area  is a 10-foot-wide access strip with a 150-square-foot area to be used as 
a data collection well site. The property is owned by Lake Aurora Christian Assembly 
(Assembly) and is located in southeastern Polk County.  
 
Negotiations   
Staff first explores the requested area for property owners that are more apt to donate a parcel. 
This includes parcels that are not on the tax roll (state and local government, non-profits, etc.) 
and non-residential tracts of more than one-acre where a wellsite may be inconsequential. Staff 
also considers city, county, or state right- of- ways, when the cost to install a well is less than 

Packet Pg. 46



  Item 16 
 

$20,000. Staff contacted several property owners who declined to donate land. Staff also 
contacted Polk County who owns a small boat ramp in the area, but it was determined to be 
insufficient in size. Staff then contacted the Assembly. They were unwilling to entertain a 
donation but agreed to an offer amount of $5,500 for an easement over the proposed well site 
area along with access to the site and the existing lake staff gauge. 
 
Summary of Appraisals and Value Comparisons 
A valuation of the easement was completed utilizing the “value in use” method related to the 
property interests necessary to support the proposed improvements to the site.  Value in use is 
a form of appraisal for special purpose properties that takes into consideration the value of 
installed features, such as a monitoring well, that better reflect the unique purpose of the 
parcel.  In accordance with District Policy, a State certified appraiser completed the appraisal 
estimating the use value of the site to be in the range of $4,843 to $9,685. The appraisal is 
available upon request. 
 
Acquisition Terms 
· The property owner has agreed to the sale and conveyance of an easement interest of 

the parcel necessary for construction, maintenance and monitoring activities on the site. 
· The Easement will be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances objectionable to the 

District. 
· The District will pay transactional costs for closing, including the title insurance and 

recording fees. 
 
Benefit/Costs 
Data from the Lake Aurora wells and lake level gauge will improve the District’s understanding 
of the hydrologic conditions and provide for improved assessments of potential withdrawal-
related impacts to water resources within the SWUCA and the CFWI areas. The purchase of 
this easement will ensure the continued access to the existing staff gage as required by Rule 
and allow for CFWI Data Monitoring and Investigations Team workplan to proceed by allowing 
the District to immediately access, construct, maintain and monitor the wells at this location. 
Transactional costs to the District for closing, including the title insurance and recording fees are 
expected to be less than $700, capital improvements are not expected to exceed $62,000. and 
operation and maintenance of the site is not expected to exceed $1,000 per year. 

Staff Recommendation: 

· Accept the valuation appraisal;

· Accept the Easement;

· Approve the Purchase/Sale Agreement and authorize the Executive Director or Division 
Director to sign on behalf of the District;

· Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in 
accordance with the approved terms.

Presenter:   Carmen Sanders, Operations and Land Management Assistant Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 47



Packet Pg. 48

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 49

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 50

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 51

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 52

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 53

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Packet Pg. 54

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Lake Aurora CFWI Data Collection Site (SWF Parcel No. 20-020-129)

±
0 300 600

Feet

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P
Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

¬«60

£¤27

§̈¦4

Subject Area

Polk County, Florida

Data Collection 
Site and Access 

Area

Packet Pg. 55

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



A
C

A
C

I A
 W

A
L

K

Lake Aurora Data Collection Site

2017 Photography
¯0 30 60

Feet

Proposed Well Site

Proposed Access

Proposed Lake Staff Gauge 
Access Area

Date: 4/18/2018
Packet Pg. 56

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 A

ur
or

a 
Ex

hi
bi

t M
in

Tr
aq

  (
38

00
 : 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 S
al

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t L
ak

e 
A

ur
or

a)



Item 17 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Offer for Surplus Land – Weekiwachee Preserve (WW-6), SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S 

Purpose 
On May 19, 2015, the Governing Board declared SWF Parcel No. 15-773-233S (WW-6) as 
surplus property. The District received an offer for the purchase of WW-6 from Evelio and 
Marisol Calzadilla for $57,000. The purpose of this item is to recommend the Governing Board 
approve the Contract for Sale and Purchase, included as Exhibit 1. This reflects an offer price of 
$114,000 per acre for approximately 0.50 acres. A general location map and aerial map are 
attached as Exhibits 2 and 3.   

Background 
The District acquired WW-6 in 1995 as part of the Weekiwachee Preserve project at a prorated 
cost of $1,240 ($2,481 per acre). The parcel has frontage on Shoal Line Boulevard and is zoned 
CV (Conservation). The future land use designation is commercial.  

Saunders Real Estate listed the property and advertised it through multiple media and personal 
contacts since April 11, 2017. This negotiation represents the only party who has made an offer 
on this parcel. This is an offer at 4% above the appraised value without any contingency. Below 
is a summary of the total and per acre cost information for WW-6.  

Total Per Acre 

Offer Amount $57,000 $114,000 

Appraised Value $55,000 $110,000 

Listing Price $125,000 $250,000 

Property Appraiser Just Value $60,000 $120,000 

Total Purchase Basis (1996) $1,240 $2,481 

Appraisal and Minimum Price 
Woodman S. Herr, MAI, and Brian E. Zamorski, MAI with Herr Valuation Advisors, Inc. 
appraised the property on August 29, 2017 for $55,000. A summary of comparable values used 
to calculate the final value is attached as Exhibit 4. The appraiser determined that the highest 
and best use would be to build-to-suit for a specific commercial user or to hold for future 
development of a small retail or office building. The market value of the property determined in 
the appraisal is based on the title being free and clear of interests and encumbrances that 
impact value. There are no encumbrances on the property and title to the property includes the 
subsurface rights. Upon the request of a buyer, and in accordance with Section 270.11(3), 
Florida Statutes, the District may release its interest in all phosphate, minerals, metals and 
petroleum that may be in, on or under the property. The full appraisal is available upon request. 

Packet Pg. 57



Item 17 

· The District will deliver title to the buyer by Quit Claim Deed.
· There will be no adjustment in price for actual acreage as determined by a survey, if

obtained by the buyer.
· The buyer will pay the real estate commission of $3,420 to Saunders Real Estate.
· The buyer will bear all expenses of the transaction except for the appraisal and advertising

costs.
· The buyer will have a period of 60 days to perform due diligence and the sale will close 90

days after execution of the contract by the District.

Considerations 
This property is very well located, with considerable frontage on Shoal Line Boulevard. The 
appraisers’ opinion of a reasonable marketing time was twelve months, and the property has 
been on the market for 12-½ months. 

Benefits/Costs 
The sale of surplus lands will allow the District to acquire lands that are environmentally 
significant. Funds derived from the sale of surplus land may only be used for the purchase of 
other lands meeting the criteria in Section 373.139, Florida Statutes and Governing Board, Land 
Acquisition Policy 610-1, resulting in more effectively meeting the District’s core mission. There 
are no ongoing maintenance costs for this parcel. 

Staff Recommendation: 

· Accept the offer of $57,000;

· Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Contract for Sale and Purchase on the
behalf of the District;

· Approve the conveyance of the District’s interest in all phosphate, minerals, metals and
petroleum in, on or under the land upon request of the buyer; and

· Authorize staff to execute any other documents necessary to complete the transaction in
accordance with the approved terms.

Presenter:   Carmen Sanders, Operations and Land Management Assistant Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 58

Sale Terms 



EXHIBIT 1

Packet Pg. 59

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 60

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 61

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 62

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 63

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 64

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Packet Pg. 65

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



 Sources: Esri, DeLorme, HERE, TomTom, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance
Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, and the GIS
User Community

WW-6

0 0.5 1

Miles

SWF Parcel No.
15-773-233S

SWFWMD Fee Acquisition

Other Conservation Lands

SWF Parcel Nos. 15-773-233S & 234S

SWFWMD Easement 

Packet Pg. 66

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



SH
O

A
L 

LI
N

E
 B

LV
D

SH
O

A
L 

LI
N

E
 B

LV
D

WW-6

0 30 60

Feet2014 Photography

WW-6 (15-773-233S)

DISTRICT FEE OWNERSHIP

EXHIBIT 3

Packet Pg. 67

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Exhibit 4 

 

 

Packet Pg. 68

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

W
W

 E
x 

M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

98
 : 

O
ffe

r S
ur

pl
us

 L
an

d 
W

W
)



Item 18 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease, SWF Parcel No. 19-441-112X, Award for the Request for 
Offers (RFO) 18-02 

Purpose 
The purpose of this item is to request the Governing Board approve the award of the 
Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease, Request for Offers 18-02, to the respondent with the highest 
offer and authorize the Chairman to execute the lease on behalf of the District. 

Background/History 
On May 17, 2018, the District advertised Request for Offers 18-02, Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle 
Lease (RFO), covering approximately 203 acres in northwestern Sumter County. The lease 
area consists of approximately 135 acres of fair condition pasture and approximately 68 acres of 
depression/basin marshes and scattered oaks. A general location map is included in the Board 
packet as Exhibit A.  

The maximum stocking rate for the property is 35 Animal Units (an Animal Unit is one bull or 
one cow with or without one un-weaned calf). The lessee may stock any number of Animal Units 
at or below the maximum without adjustment to the annual rent payment.  

The term of the lease is five years, with an option for the lessee to request renewal for an 
additional term of five years at the District’s discretion. A copy of the lease is included in the 
Board packet as Exhibit B. 

Benefits/Costs 
On June 12, 2018, 10 responses were received to RFO 18-02. The highest offer was submitted 
by Daniel Moen in the amount of $43.15 per acre, for an annual lease amount of $8,759.45. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve the award of the Panasoffkee Outlet Cattle Lease to Daniel Moen and authorize the 
Chairman to execute the lease on behalf of the District. 

Presenter:   Carmen Sanders, Operatoins and Land Management Assistant Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 69



Packet Pg. 70

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 71

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 72

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 73

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 74

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 75

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 76

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 77

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 78

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 79

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 80

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 81

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Packet Pg. 82

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Lk
 P

an
 C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
 M

in
Tr

ac
 E

x 
 (3

80
3 

: P
an

as
of

fk
ee

 O
ut

le
t C

at
tle

 L
ea

se
)



Item 20a 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Interagency Agreement between SWFWMD and SFWMD -- Designation of Regulatory 
Responsibility – WUP - Grenelefe Golf and Tennis Club – Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. – 
Polk County 

Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. submitted Water Use Permit (“WUP”) Application No. 
20005251.009 (the “Application”) to the Southwest Florida Water Management District 
(“SWFWMD”) to renew and modify its existing WUP for its operations supplying water to the 
Grenelefe Resort and Tennis Club in Haines City, Polk County, Florida (the “Property”).  The 
Application requests authorization to withdraw 1,043,506 gallons per day on an annual average 
basis and 2,206,366 gallons per day on a peak month basis for public supply and irrigation. 
Although the predominant portion of the Property lies within the SWFWMD, a smaller portion of 
the Property lies within the jurisdictional boundaries of the South Florida Water Management 
District (“SFWMD”), as depicted on the map attached to the Interagency Agreement, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” More specifically, two water wells on the Property were 
previously permitted by SFWMD. When that SFWMD permit expired, SFWMD instructed 
Grenelefe to modify its permit with SWFWMD to add those two wells to its SWFWMD WUP. 
This interagency agreement is necessary for that addition to occur.  

Section 373.046(6), Florida Statutes, authorizes a water management district to designate, 
through an interagency agreement, regulatory responsibility to another water management 
district over a project located within the jurisdictional boundaries of both districts.  Because a 
majority of the Project boundary lies within the SWFWMD, both districts agree that responsibility 
should be assumed by the SWFWMD for review and issuance of the WUP for the entirety of the 
Project.  An interagency agreement approved by both district governing boards is necessary to 
authorize SWFWMD to issue a WUP to the applicant for the entire Project. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve the Interagency Agreement Between the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District and the South Florida Water Management District for Designation of Regulatory 
Responsibility for a WUP for Grenelefe Resort Utility, Inc. for the above-described Project. 

Presenter:   Michael R. Bray, Assistant General Counsel 

Packet Pg. 83



Packet Pg. 84

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
EC

A
P 

Ex
hi

bi
t 0

6-
07

-1
8 

 (3
80

9 
: J

un
e 

20
18

 - 
IA

 G
re

ne
le

fe
 R

es
or

t -
 M

ik
e 

B
ra

y)



Packet Pg. 85

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
EC

A
P 

Ex
hi

bi
t 0

6-
07

-1
8 

 (3
80

9 
: J

un
e 

20
18

 - 
IA

 G
re

ne
le

fe
 R

es
or

t -
 M

ik
e 

B
ra

y)



Packet Pg. 86

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

R
EC

A
P 

Ex
hi

bi
t 0

6-
07

-1
8 

 (3
80

9 
: J

un
e 

20
18

 - 
IA

 G
re

ne
le

fe
 R

es
or

t -
 M

ik
e 

B
ra

y)



Item 20b 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Amendment to Conservation Easement for Hilochee Mitigation Bank – ERP No. 
43042047.000 – Polk County 

On October 4, 2016, the District issued Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) No. 
43042047.000 (Permit) to Hilochee Mitigation Bank, LLC (Hilochee) authorizing the 
establishment of a mitigation bank known as the Hilochee Mitigation Bank (Project), located in 
Polk County, Florida.  The Permit requires Hilochee to grant a Conservation Easement (CE) 
over the Project to the District.  During the review of Hilochee’s ERP application, District staff 
reviewed and determined the draft CE submitted by Hilochee met the permitting requirements in 
Chapter 62-342, Florida Administrative Code.  The CE that is recorded by Hilochee must match 
the draft CE approved by District staff in order to comply with the Permit.  

On April 30, 2018, Hilochee submitted an executed and recorded CE to the District.  The 
recorded CE does not match the draft CE approved by District staff.  Hilochee subsequently 
submitted to District staff a draft Amended Deed of Conservation Easement to address the 
differences between the approved draft CE and the recorded CE.  After reviewing the submittal, 
District staff had concerns with the proposed amendment which were expressed to Hilochee. 
Hilochee agreed to the changes requested by District staff.  The amendment to the recorded CE 
will conform the terms of the recorded CE to the terms of the draft CE approved by the District. 
In addition, because the amendment is altering an interest in land previously conveyed to the 
District, the District must join in with Hilochee in executing the amendment.  The final version of 
the Amended Deed of Conservation Easement is not yet complete as of the drafting of this 
recap, but District staff anticipates that it will be provided to the Governing Board for its review 
prior to the meeting.   

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve, accept, and execute the attached Amended Deed of Conservation Easement for the 
Hilochee Mitigation Bank. 

Presenter:   Adrienne E. Vining, Assistant General Counsel 

Packet Pg. 87



Item 21a 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Initiation and Approval of Rulemaking to Amend Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., to Revise 
Form LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License 

Rule 40D-3.037(5), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), incorporates by reference Form LEG-
R.003.02, Application For A Water Well Contractor’s License.  Currently, Form LEG-R.003.02, 
section “C” states:  

Enclosed with the completed application is a letter from a water 
well contractor and a letter from a water well inspector employed 
by a governmental agency providing evidence of the length of time 
the applicant has been engaged in the business of construction, 
repair, or abandonment of water wells as a major activity. 

In 2016 the legislature amended Section 373.323(3)(b)1, Florida Statutes (F.S.) to require an 
applicant for a water well contractor’s license to provide evidence of experience with a letter 
from a water well contractor or a water well inspector employed by a governmental agency, but 
not both.  Therefore, Form LEG-R.003.02, Application for a Water Well Contractor’s License is 
inconsistent with Section 373.323(3)(b), F.S., as amended, and should be revised by changing 
the word “and” to “or” in section “C” of the application as follows: 

Enclosed with the completed application is a letter from a water 
well contractor or and a letter from a water well inspector 
employed by a governmental agency providing evidence of the 
length of time the applicant has been engaged in the business of 
construction, repair, or abandonment of water wells as a major 
activity. 

Because the application form is incorporated by reference into Rule 40D-3.037(5), F.A.C., the 
rule must be amended by revising section “C” of the application so it is consistent with Section 
373.323(3)(b), F.S. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve final rule language and authorize the initiation of rulemaking to amend Rule 40D-
3.037(5), to revise section “C” of Form No. LEG-R.003.02 (9/14), The Application for Water Well 
Contractor’s License, to make the application consistent with Section 373.323(3)(b)1, F.S., and 
authorize staff to make any necessary minor clarifying technical changes that may result from 
the rulemaking process. 

Presenter:   Jodi A. Thompson, Staff Attorney 

Packet Pg. 88



Packet Pg. 89

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ex
hi

bi
t A

 to
 R

ec
ap

  (
38

26
 : 

Ju
ne

 - 
40

D
-3

.0
37

(5
) R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
- J

od
i)



Packet Pg. 90

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ex
hi

bi
t B

 to
 R

ec
ap

  (
38

26
 : 

Ju
ne

 - 
40

D
-3

.0
37

(5
) R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
- J

od
i)



Packet Pg. 91

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ex
hi

bi
t B

 to
 R

ec
ap

  (
38

26
 : 

Ju
ne

 - 
40

D
-3

.0
37

(5
) R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
- J

od
i)



Packet Pg. 92

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ex
hi

bi
t B

 to
 R

ec
ap

  (
38

26
 : 

Ju
ne

 - 
40

D
-3

.0
37

(5
) R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
- J

od
i)



Item 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Consent Agenda 
Approve Governing Board Minutes - May 22, 2018 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve minutes are presented. 

Presenter:   Brian J. Armstrong, P.G., Executive Director 

Packet Pg. 93



 

BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA                                  MAY 22, 2018
 

The Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management District (District) met for its 
regular meeting at 9:00 a.m., on May 22, 2018, at the Brooksville Office. The following persons 
were present: 
 

A list of others in attendance, who signed the attendance roster, is filed in the permanent records 
of the District. This meeting was available for viewing through Internet streaming. Approved 
minutes from previous meetings can be found on the District's website (www.WaterMatters.org). 
 

(Audio – 00:00) 
 

Chair Maggard called the meeting to order and opened the public hearing. Treasurer Armstrong 
stated a quorum was present. 

 

Chair Maggard offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United 
States of America. 

 
Chair Maggard introduced each member of the Governing Board. He noted that the Board meeting 
was recorded for broadcast on government access channels, and public input was only taken during 
the meeting onsite. 

 
Chair Maggard stated that anyone wishing to address the Governing Board concerning any item listed 
on the agenda or any item that does not appear on the agenda should fill out and submit a “Request to 
Speak” card.  To assure that all participants have an opportunity to speak, a member of the public may 
submit a speaker’s card to comment on agenda items only during today's meeting. If the speaker wishes 
to address the Board on an issue not on today's agenda, a speaker’s card may be submitted for 
comment during "Public Input." Chair Maggard stated that comments would be limited to three minutes 
per speaker, and, when appropriate, exceptions to the three-minute limit may be granted by the chair. 

Board Members Present  
Randall S. Maggard, Chair  
Jeffrey M. Adams, Vice Chair 
Ed Armstrong, Treasurer 
H. Paul Senft, Member 
Michael A. Babb, Member 
Kelly S. Rice, Member 
John Henslick, Member 
Michelle Williamson, Member 
Mark Taylor, Member 
Joel Schleicher, Member 
Rebecca Smith, Ph.D., Member 
James G. Murphy, Member 
 
Board Members Absent 
Bryan Beswick, Secretary 

Staff Members 
Brian J. Armstrong, Executive Director 
Amanda Rice, Assistant Executive Director 
Karen E. West, General Counsel 
Kurt P. Fritsch, Inspector General 
John J. Campbell, Division Director 
Ken L. Frink, Division Director 
Alba E. Más, Division Director 
Michael Molligan, Division Director 
Jennette Seachrist, Division Director  
 
Board Administrative Support 
Cara Martin, Board & Executive Services Manager 
Lori Manuel, Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 94

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 2 of 16  
 
He also requested that several individuals wishing to speak on the same issue/topic designate a 
spokesperson.    

 

Chair Maggard recognized employees who have reached at least 20 years of service with the District 
and thanked them for their service. The following staff was recognized: Rita Harrod and Lynn Nipper 

 
This item was provided for the Board's information and no action was required. 
 

Chair Maggard provided an overview of the items that were accomplished during his tenure as 
Governing Board Chair. These items included: adoption of a rolled-back millage rate; investing 
more than 58 percent of the District budget for FY2017 and FY2018 for Cooperative Funding and 
District projects; reducing costs through better use of technology; improvement of business 
processes; clearly identifying priorities; reducing spending costs; promoting the use of reclaimed 
water; meeting the needs in the Southern Water Use Caution Area (SWUCA) while still reducing 
groundwater use; assisted the Polk County Water Cooperative solidify its entity; assisted in 
identifying new water supplies; amended the state statue governing the surplus lands by the 
water management districts; and developed joint Surface Water Improvement Management plans 
(SWIM) with key stakeholders for first-magnitude springs.   
 
Chair Maggard explained that although much has been accomplished there remain many 
challenges.   
 

 (Audio: 00:14:04) 
  

Mr. Brian Armstrong, Executive Director, stated the following item was deleted from the Consent 
Agenda: 

 

 

 
 Mr. Armstrong stated the following item was added:  
 
 

Mr. Armstrong stated a change was made to the staff recommendation for the following item:  
 

This item was presented for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 
 
 Board Member Schleicher asked for the following items to be moved to Discussion: 
 
 

Packet Pg. 95

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 3 of 16  
 

(Audio 00:25:58) 

Chair Maggard noted at this time, the public is given an opportunity to comment on any topic not 
listed on the agenda.   
 
Chair Maggard stated he received three Request to Speak cards. 
 
Mr. Bruce Cavell, resident, spoke regarding flooding and restoration of recharge in the Green Swamp 
area. He referenced Orange Lake.    
 
Ms. Jennette Seachrist stated this is part of the Withlacoochee Initiative and the project alternatives 
that were evaluated. An update will be provided at the June Governing Board meeting.   
 
Mr. Richard Fraker, resident, spoke regarding a petition that was submitted to the Governing Board 
to request that the District review a 1964 study that was conducted by the Army Corps of Engineers 
(ACOE) for the Green Swamp prior to channelization.  
 
Chair Maggard asked Ms. Seachrist to meet with Mr. Cavell and Mr. Fraker.  Ms. Seachrist 
responded in the affirmative.   
 
Mr. David Geddis resident, spoke regarding the channelization of the Green Swamp, draining of 
wetlands and Roosevelt’s New Deal.  
 

Chair Maggard asked that before the Board considers action on the Consent Agenda whether there 
was anyone in the audience who wished to address the Board regarding an item listed on the 
Consent Agenda. 

 
 

Staff recommended the Board’s approval of the Budget Transfer Report covering all budget 
transfers for April 2018. 

 Staff recommended the Board authorize submittal of the preliminary FIRMs for the Duck Lake  
 watershed in Pasco County to FEMA. 

Staff recommended the Board authorize submittal of the preliminary FIRMs for the Double 
Hammock Creek watershed in Pasco County to FEMA. 

Staff recommended the Board approve the revised project scope and benefits to remove the 
Surface Water Resource Assessment from the project scope and specify completion of flood 

Packet Pg. 96

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 4 of 16  
 

protection alternative analysis for the Pearce Drain/Gap Creek (N759) Watershed Management 
Plan with no change in cost. 

Staff recommended the Board approve the revised project scope and benefits to remove the 
Surface Water Resource Assessment from the project scope and specify completion of flood 
protection alternative analysis for the Bowlees Creek (N809) Watershed Management Plan with no 
change in cost. 

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 1) Approve the Bethel Farms, LLLP - Hog Bay Farm project for a not-to-exceed project 

reimbursement of $191,662 with $191,662 provided by the Governing Board; 
 2) Authorize the transfer of $191,662 from fund 010 H017 Governing Board FARMS Fund to 

the H770 Bethel Farms, LLLP - Hog Bay Farm project fund; 
 3) Authorize the Assistant Executive Director to sign the agreement. 

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 1) Approve the 734 LMC Groves, LLC - Lily Grove project for a not-to-exceed project 

reimbursement of $74,184 with $74,184 provided by the Governing Board; 
 2)  Authorize the transfer of $74,184 from fund 010 H017 Governing Board FARMS Fund to the 

H771 734 LMC Groves, LLC - Lily Grove project fund; 
 3) Authorize Division Director to sign the agreement. 
 

 

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 Accept the donation; 
 Designate SWF Parcel No. 11-709-153 as having been acquired for conservation 

  purposes; 
 Authorize staff to execute any other documents necessary to complete the  

 transaction in accordance with the approved terms; and 
 Authorize staff to make minor changes or corrections to conform documents or  

 correct errors; any substantive changes would be subject to Governing Board review  
 and approval. 

 Staff recommended the Board:  
 Accept the donation; 
 Designate SWF Parcel No. 19-707-108 as having been acquired for conservation purposes; 
 Authorize staff to execute any other documents necessary to complete the transaction in  

 accordance with the approved terms, and 
 Authorize staff to make minor changes or corrections to conform documents or correct errors;  

 any substantive changes would be subject to Governing Board review and approval.

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 Accept the Easement; 
 Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in  

 accordance with the approved terms. 
Packet Pg. 97

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 5 of 16  
 

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 Accept the Easement; 
 Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in 

accordance with the approved terms. 
 

 Staff recommended the Board: 
 Accept the valuation appraisal; 
 Approve the Purchase/Sale Agreement and authorize the Executive Director or designee to 

sign on behalf of the District; 
 Authorize staff to sign documents at closing necessary to complete the transaction in 

accordance with the approved terms. 

 Staff recommended the Board authorize the Executive Director to decline the Right of First  
 Refusal on SWF Parcel 10-200-1218C. 

 

  Staff recommended the Board approve the proposed permit attached as an exhibit. 
 

  Staff recommended the Board approve the proposed permit attached as an exhibit. 
 

 

  Staff recommended the Board approve the Consent Order and authorize the initiation of  
litigation against Antonio A. Santos, Jr. and Maria A. Santos and any other necessary parties to 
obtain compliance with the terms of the Consent Order, recover an administrative fine, civil 
penalty, and recover District enforcement costs, litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, if it 
becomes necessary.   

 – None 

Staff recommended the Board approve the minutes as presented. 

 Staff recommended the Board approve the minutes as presented. 

 Staff recommended the Board approve the minutes as presented. 
Packet Pg. 98

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 6 of 16  
 

 Staff recommended the Board approve the minutes as presented. 

 Staff recommended the Board approve the minutes as presented. 
 

 (Audio 00:26:18) 
 

(Audio 00:26:30)

 - None 

 Ms. Melissa Gulvin, Communications manager, provided a presentation for the Springs Community 
Partner Award. Ms. Gulvin presented the award to Mr. Earnie Olsen, Supervisor of Marine Science 
Station in Crystal River. This presentation included a video.   

 
 This item was provided for the Committee’s information and no action was required. 

 Mr. John Campbell, Management Services director, provided a presentation regarding FY18-19 ad 
valorem new growth projections. Mr. Campbell provided a graph that depicted new growth 
projections from 2001 through 2018. Mr. Campbell explained that the average growth rate for new 
construction for 2001 through 2018 was 2.46 percent. He stated the growth rate for the last nine 
years has been 1.64 percent. Mr. Campbell explained graphs depicting correlation analysis for 
construction earnings versus new construction rate and unemployment rate versus new 
construction.  He provided a graph depicting new construction rate forecast through FY23.  

 
 Staff recommended the Board approve the ad valorem tax revenue based on the updated new unit 

construction projection for development of the Recommended Annual Service Budget. 

  (Audio 00:37:35) 
 

 Mr. Tom Hughes, Information Technology Bureau chief, provided a presentation regarding the 
ePermitting system replacement project update. Mr. Hughes stated this is a multi-step approach, 
determine Business Process Management (BPM) application; determine source of services; train 
staff; and begin development.  

 
 Mr. Hughes stated that the District has conducted research with Gartner Consulting. He explained 

the process of the BPM selection process. He outlined the criteria that was used by the Information 
Technology (IT) and Governance Committee to select the vendor. He stated that the vendor 
Appian has been selected. Mr. Hughes provide estimated costs for first year and ongoing. He 
outlined the next steps which include: begin procurement process; develop a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for services; train IT and Regulation staff with a small training project in FY18; and begin full 
project in FY19. 

 
 Board Member Schleicher asked how long Appian has been in business, how large is the 

company, what is the company’s growth rate and current earnings. Mr. Hughes responded that 
Packet Pg. 99

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 7 of 16  
 

Appien has over three thousand customers. He stated he did not have the information at this time 
but would be happy to provide it. Board Member Schleicher asked who the hosting provider would 
be. Mr. Hughes responded Amazon web services.  

 
 Board Member Senft asked about what other Districts are doing.  Mr. Hughes responded South 

Florida Water Management (SFWMD) is the only other agency and they are using a different 
vendor.    

 
 Board Member Williamson asked if customer users will be included in providing feedback.   

Ms. Michelle Maxey, Regulatory Support Bureau chief, responded in the affirmative.   
 
 Board Member Schleicher asked if the SFWMD has provided any feedback for the system they 

have been utilizing. Ms. Maxey responded that the software they are utilizing is currently in 
development. They provided positive feedback on the software but had concerns about the service 
provider’s customer service.   

 
 Board Member Taylor asked the range of cost associated with the other vendors. Mr. Hughes 

stated he did not have the exact numbers but could provide them. Board Member Taylor asked for 
an estimation. Mr. Hughes provided an estimate of approximately more than double on an ongoing 
basis. He asked the vendors to provide a five-year cost estimate. The significant reduction is in the 
number of licenses. This vendor has an engine already running in Amazon.  

 
 Board Member Taylor asked what the current costs are. Mr. Hughes responded that real costs 

currently are in maintaining the application as opposed to doing any new development, 
approximately $20 million.   

 
 Committee Chair Armstrong asked Mr. Hughes to copy all committee members on his response to 

the Board members questions. Mr. Hughes responded in the affirmative.   
 
 This item was provided for the Committee’s information and no action was required. 

    Mr. Earl Rich, General Services Bureau chief, provided a presentation regarding the options 
associated with the Sarasota Office.   

 
 Mr. Rich provided a history of the Sarasota Office, explaining the District has maintained a physical 

presence in the Sarasota County area since 1988. He stated the office site was acquired from 
Sarasota County in 2000 for $175,000 and construction of improvements were completed in 2001 
for $2,434,161. Mr. Rich stated the District intends to maintain in office in the Manatee/Sarasota 
area to continue to serve the water resource needs of the public. This includes 19 percent of Data 
Collection Bureau (DCB) data collection sites and 100 percent of Quality Water Improvement 
Program (QWIP) sites.   

 
 There is a total of 19,540 gross square feet of office and storage space on the property.  Based on 

current needs, the size of the building and parcel are approximately twice as much as needed. The 
Sarasota County Property Appraiser currently assesses the value of the property at $2,875,300.  
Staff believe the property will be valued higher than this due to its proximity to an I-75 interchange. 

 
 Board Member Henslick expressed his support for staff morale and would like to see them 

consulted regarding the location of the possible office. Chair Maggard affirmed that staff is in the 
consideration process. 

 
 Board Member Smith expressed her support for maintaining the current office location. 
 
 Board Member Murphy expressed his support for maintaining the current office location.   

Packet Pg. 100

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 8 of 16  
 
 
 Board Member Senft stated he would like to ensure that staff is included in the communications 

regarding the options that are being discussed. 
 
 Board Member Schleicher expressed his support for a decision that ensures the District’s fiduciary 

role to the tax payers. 
 
 Board Member Taylor expressed his concern for the District becoming a landlord.   
 
 Mr. Brian Armstrong, executive director, stated that communication has been occurring with the 

staff regarding this issue. The District is committed to staying in the general area. The final 
decision will be brought to the Governing Board for their approval.   

 
 Staff recommended the Governing Board approve of the following items: 

• In accordance with Fla. Stat. §373.089, declare the Sarasota Office as surplus. 
• Authorize the Executive Director, with the concurrence of the Office of General Counsel, to 

deliver a Letter of Intent to an owner or representative for the potential lease or purchase of a 
candidate property, before bringing a Lease or Purchase and Sale Agreements to the 
Governing Board for consideration. 

• Payment of a refundable deposit of not more than 5% of the advertised price, if necessary, to 
secure a property before Governing Board consideration of a lease or Purchase and Sale 
Agreement. 

• Authorize Staff to prepare a budget amendment in an amount not to exceed $2.3 million and 
submit the Budget amendment to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for 
review and approval by the Executive Office of the Governor. 

 

.   (Audio 01:30:08) 

Mr. Earl Rich, General Services Bureau chief, provided a presentation on a fire incident that 
occurred at the Lake Hanock field office. Mr. Rich explained that a vehicle fire occurred at the 
District’s Lake Hancock Field office on April 16. The fire originated in, or near, the engine 
compartment of a District vehicle but the Fire Department officials were unable to determine the 
initial root-cause of the fire. Mr. Rich provided an overview of the damage and a status of the 
claims process.   

 
 Staff recommended Board authorize staff to negotiate and accept insurance settlement offers, 

surplus damaged/destroyed equipment and to execute a budget transfer for $76,000 from the 
Pasco County Riverside Village Drainage Improvement Project (N857) to procure one replacement 
vehicle, enclosed trailer, and a zero-turn commercial lawn mower destroyed in the fire. 

 

 (01:35:52) 

The following items were provided for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 

Packet Pg. 101

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 9 of 16  
 

(Audio 01:37:10) 
 

 

   

Please note that agenda items 11 and 12 were discussed collectively were but voted on 
separately.  

 
 Mr. JP Marchand, Water Resource Bureau chief, provided a presentation that updated the 

Board on proposed scope changes for projects N759 and N809 that were discussed at the 
February Board meeting. Manatee County’s (County) initial cooperative funding request was 
for water quality issues. Mr. Marchand stated the District has coordinated with the County 
regarding cooperative funding to assist with flooding concerns. The County will request 
additional funding for the water quality aspect during the Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) funding 
cycle.   

 
 Board Members questioned why the flood protection aspect of the project was not included in 

the original project submission. Mr. Marchand responded the County indicated its priority at the 
time of submission was water quality.  

 
 Mr. Marchand reminded the Board that this is the planning and analysis portion of the project, 

not the construction portion.  
 
 Staff recommended the Board approve the revised project scope and benefits to remove the 

Surface Water Resource Assessment from the project scope and specify completion of flood 
protection alternative analysis for the Pearce Drain/Gap Creek (N759) Watershed Management 
Plan with no change in cost. 

 

(Audio 01:51:16) 
 
 

 Staff recommended the Board approve the revised project scope and benefits to remove the 
Surface Water Resource Assessment from the project scope and specify completion of flood 
protection alternative analysis for the Bowlees Creek (N809) Watershed Management Plan 
with no change in cost. 

 

. (Audio 01:51:33) 
 
 
 

Please note that agenda items 13 and 14 were discussed collectively were but voted on 
separately.  

 
 Board Member Schleicher explained he is supportive of the Facilitating Agricultural Resource 

Management Systems (FARMS) program but he has concerns regarding the cost sharing ratio 
of 75 percent for the District and 25 percent for the applicant. Packet Pg. 102

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 10 of 16  
 

 
 Mr. Armstrong explained that criteria was set by previous Governing Boards for regional 

priorities. The 75/25 percent sharing ratio is within the Southern Water Use Caution Area 
(SWUCA). He stated that staff can provide a presentation at an upcoming Board meeting.  

 
  Staff recommended the Board: 
  1) Approve the Bethel Farms, LLLP - Hog Bay Farm project for a not-to-exceed project 

reimbursement of $191,662 with $191,662 provided by the Governing Board; 
  2) Authorize the transfer of $191,662 from fund 010 H017 Governing Board FARMS Fund to  
   the H770 Bethel Farms, LLLP - Hog Bay Farm project fund; 
  3) Authorize the Assistant Executive Director to sign the agreement. 
 

. (Audio 01:53:53) 
 

  Staff recommended the Board: 
  1) Approve the 734 LMC Groves, LLC - Lily Grove project for a not-to-exceed project 

reimbursement of $74,184 with $74,184 provided by the Governing Board; 
  2) Authorize the transfer of $74,184 from fund 010 H017 Governing Board FARMS Fund to 

the H771 734 LMC Groves, LLC - Lily Grove project fund; 
  3) Authorize Division Director to sign the agreement. 
 

. (Audio 01:54:16) 
 

Mr. Tom Frick, Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), provided a presentation 
regarding the Basin Management Action Plan (BMAP) update as related to the springs water 
quality restoration. Mr. Frick outlined the water quality framework for the State of Florida (State) 
and explained the Watershed Restoration Act and the Florida Springs and Aquifer Protection Act. 
He displayed a map of the Outstanding Florida Springs (OFS). Mr. Frick explained the biggest 
water quality challenge to springs is nitrogen. He stated that excessive nitrogen from multiple 
sources infiltrates to groundwater and comes out in spring vents.  This causes excessive growth of 
algae and an ecological imbalance in the spring runs. He outlined Priority Focus Areas (PFA) and 
explained this is the area where the aquifer is most vulnerable. Mr. Frick explained that the biggest 
contributors of nitrates is wastewater from public and private systems, and urban and agricultural 
fertilizer. He explained that wastewater remediation plans have been developed by the FDEP, the 
Florida Department of Health (DOH) and local governments. These plans require that new 
construction on lots less than 1-acre will be required to utilize an upgraded (nitrogen-reducing) 
septic system, which will be approved by the DOH or connect to sewer.  He added that when an 
existing septic system fails, the system will be required to be upgraded. Mr. Frick explained there 
will be a funding assistance program to aid with the costs for upgraded nitrogen reducing systems. 

 
Mr. Will Bryant, DOH, provided a presentation regarding the Onsite Sewage Treatment and 
Disposal Systems (OSTDS).  He explained how a conventional septic tank contributes to nitrogen 
in groundwater. He explained that modern conventional septic and drain field systems are effective 
at removing organic carbon, suspended solids and bacteria. However, these systems are not 
designed to effectively remove nitrogen. He outlined Florida Statute 381.006 which mandates 
OSTDS requirements. He stated that the use of upgraded systems becomes effective July 1.  
Mr. Bryant provided examples of the types of upgraded septic systems that will be available.   
 
Board Member Taylor asked if July 1 is the deadline or will there be a gradual implementation 
process. Mr. Bryant responded the July 1 deadline pertains to systems within a PFA. He explained 
that if sewer hook-up is available, that would be the first option.    

Packet Pg. 103

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 11 of 16  
 

 
Board Member Taylor asked if there are suppliers for the advanced septic tanks. Mr. Bryant 
responded in the affirmative. Discussion ensued regarding the funding assistance that is being 
offered by the State. Mr. Bryant responded in the affirmative if it is within a PFA. He explained that 
if sewer hook-up is available, that would be the first option. Mr. Bryant responded in the affirmative 
if it is within a PFA. He explained that if sewer hook-up is available, that would be the first option.    
 
Board Member Murphy asked if there is an option for additional vendor submittals that may offer 
alternative systems. Mr. Bryan responded in the affirmative. He explained that the DOH has 
programs that are available to allow for the submittal of new technology with third-party testing. He 
referenced this site to obtain further information: http://www.floridahealth.gov/environmental-
health/onsite-sewage/index.html.   
 
Mr. Frick stated that the DEP partnered with the DOH, Northwest Florida Water Management 
District (NWFWMD) and Leon County to develop a pilot program that promotes the development of 
other innovative technology.   
 
This item was presented for the Committee’s information, and no action was required.  

Mr. Jay Hoecker, project manager, provided a presentation regarding the FY2018-19 CFI update. 
He provided an overview of the CFI schedule, subcommittee structure, comparison of requests, 
comparison of requests by region, a map depicting application by region, breakdown of funding by 
Area of Responsibilities (AOR) and subcommittee summaries.  
 
Mr. Eric DeHaven, assistant division director, provided an overview of three projects that the 
subcommittees requested be presented at this Board meeting.  
 
Mr. DeHaven presented information regarding project N842, Bradenton Aquifer Protection 
Recharge Well. He explained this is a feasibility investigation of injecting reclaimed water into the 
non-potable portions of the Upper Floridan aquifer. This is a high ranked project.   
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Approve the staff recommendation to fund project N842, City of Bradenton Aquifer Protection 
Recharge Well. 

  (Audio 02:57:18) 
 
Mr. DeHaven presented information regarding project N492, Lower Hillsborough River Dam 
Control Gate Facilities.  This project is part of the effort to meet minimum flow for the Lower 
Hillsborough River. The Board first approved funding for this project in FY2013, then approved a 
change to the project scope in July 2017 and the District has an executed agreement with the City 
of Tampa to fund the project. This project is under construction. The overall cost effectiveness is 
ranked high and is based on bid prices. However, the project has experienced a cost increase of 
greater than 20 percent from the July Board approval of the Scope of Work (SOW) change to the 
CFI application submittal in October 2017. This exceeds the cost increase metric, of 20 percent, 
that was presented to the Board in August 2014, therefore, staff have ranked this project low. 
 
Chair Babb stated he had one Request to Speak Card.  
 
Mr. Chuck Weber, City of Tampa, spoke in favor of project N492. He provided a presentation that 
explained the project and associated costs.   
 

Packet Pg. 104

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 12 of 16  
 

Board Member Smith asked if the project could be amended and resubmitted under the 20 percent 
threshold. Ms. Karen West, general counsel, stated it would be at the Board’s discretion.  
 
Mr. Armstrong stated that the 20 percent threshold is a policy decision. The project is 29.2 percent.  
He explained this project is ranked High by staff. The recommended Low ranking is only for the 
additional funds being requested.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the staff recommendation to keep N492, Lower Hillsborough River Dam Control Gates 
Facilities, ranked Low and not recommended for funding.  

 

(Video: 03:34:49) 

  (Video 03:35:34/03:40:28) 

(Video: 03:41:13) T  (Video: 
03:44:45) 
 
It was agreed staff would address the concerns stated in the withdrawn motion, through the 
cooperative funding process with applicants.  
 
Mr. DeHaven presented information for project Q021, Pasco County Cypress Preserve Phase 2 
Grand Oak reclaimed water transmission line. He stated this is a construction project which was 
originally ranked low due to the cooperator’s inability to identify a new measurable benefit, so staff 
was unable to identify a cost effectiveness. This project is related to previously funded project 
N837.    
 
Mr. Charles Cullen, Pasco County Utilities, provided information regarding project Q021.   
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Consider the Tampa Bay Regional Subcommittee request to change the ranking for Q021 – Pasco 
County Cypress Preserve Phase 2 Grand Live Oak Reclaimed Water Transmission to High and 
provide FY2019 funding. 

 

(Video 04:03:40) 
 

(Video 04:05:13) 

(Video: 
04:07:17) 

Packet Pg. 105

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 13 of 16  
 
 

Ms. Jennette Seachrist, Resource Management director, provided an update on an item that was 
presented at the March 27, 2018 Governing Board meeting regarding Hurricane Irma storm debris 
management on the Peace Creek Canal. She stated there is an agreement with the United States 
Department of Agriculture/Natural Resources Conservation Service (USDA-NRCS) that is being 
finalized. She stated if the agreement is not finalized, this item will be presented at the June 
Governing Board meeting.     

 
- None 

The following items were provided for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 

(Audio 04:36:30) 
 

 

 - None 
 

Mr. Jerry Mallams, Operations and Land Management Bureau chief, provided a presentation on 
the 2018 hurricane preparedness. Mr. Mallams stated that hurricane season begins on June 1 and 
ends on November 30. He provided a history of the 2017 the Atlantic hurricane season and the 
response from the District’s Emergency Operation Center (EOC).  
 
Mr. Mallams stated that Colorado State University has predicted the 2018 Atlantic Hurricane 
season will be another above normal season and is likely to produce 14 named storms, of which 
seven are expected to become hurricanes, three of those are expected to develop into major 
hurricanes of category three or higher.   
 
Mr. Mallams explained that the District does not have the primary responsibility in hurricane 
response, and therefore is typically not a first responder. Emergency response responsibilities start 
at the local level and are elevated to the state then federal governments, when necessary. The 
District is a member of the State Emergency Response Team (SERT).  SERT is responsible for 
coordinating the response, recovery and mitigation of emergency events. For Hurricanes, the five 
water management districts (WMDs) serve a supporting role though the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) for transportation, public works & engineering needs, and through the 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) for environmental protection needs. In 
conjunction with the District’s supporting role in the SERT, the District may be called upon to 
provide mutual aid to other Florida state and local agencies during a hurricane. 
 
The District has the primary responsibility for 81 water control structures which the District owns 
and operates 62 are water conservation structures and 19 are flood control structures.  Associated 
with the structures, the District has 63 miles of canals and seven miles of earthen dams to monitor 
and maintain during hurricane events. 
 
The District aids the public in regulatory matters by issuing emergency field authorizations, 
handling flooding complaints and, time permitting, checking known high-risk flooding areas. The 
District collects flooding and rainfall data to field document the hurricane events so that the data 
can be used to better calibrate flood models and guide flood improvement projects in the future 

Packet Pg. 106

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 14 of 16  
 

The District is also responsible for effective communications with the State, counties and other 
local governments, private entities such as utilities, as well as the public. 
 
Mr. Mallams stated that staff is completing the 2018 Flood Event Guideline, which is a guide to 
planning, managing, and responding to flood events.  Staff is also finalizing the 2018 Emergency 
Operations Directory, which is an essential document for ensuring efficient communications during 
a hurricane event.  
 
The District continues to address the after-action items identified from the Hurricane Irma 
response. This process of capturing and addressing areas of improvement ensures that the 
District’s response to emergency events continuously improves. Staff will have completed its 
inspection and exercising of all remotely operated water control structures and generators prior to 
June 1. Staff will continue to do daily communication checks with all remotely operated water 
control structures throughout the hurricane season. 
 
Preparedness checklists have been updated and pre-hurricane season tasks were completed by 
each bureau which included activities such as stocking essential supplies, equipment inventories 
and maintenance, computer systems backups, tree trimming at the all District campuses, and staff 
skills list updates. 
 
Coordination with other agencies is an important hurricane season preparedness activity. Over the 
past few weeks staff have participated in several pre-hurricane season events including the  
WMD pre-season coordination meeting where all five WMDs were present, the Tampa Partners 
meeting which included National Weather Service forecasters and their Southeast River 
forecasters, United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and United States Geological 
Survey (USGS), In addition, the District met one-on-one with the USACE, attended the Hernando 
County EOC Exercise, held a purchasing and procurement summit, and attended the 2018 
Governor's Hurricane Conference where 62 of Florida’s 67 counties were in attendance. 

 
 This item was presented for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 
 

Mr. Granville Kinsman, Hydrologic Data manager, provided a presentation on the hydrologic 
conditions. Mr. Kinsman stated that the recent tropical moisture has ended the dry season early 
and has caused early local flooding issues. Rainfall in May has been above-normal in May, with 
the heaviest amounts falling in the central and southern regions of the District. Groundwater levels 
throughout the District remain in the normal range and are showing improvements from the recent 
rains. Lake levels for northern, Tampa Bay and Lake Wales Ridge lakes have fallen below normal. 
Polk Upland lakes are in the normal range. Flows on the Withlacoochee, Hillsborough, Alafia and 
Peace rivers remain within the normal range. The Hillsborough, Bill Young and the Peace River 
reservoirs remain at healthy levels.  The climate forecast indicates above normal rainfall with a 
shift to El Niño.   
 
This report provided information on the general state of the District's hydrologic conditions, by 
comparing rainfall, surface water, and groundwater levels for the current month to comparable data 
from the historical record.  There is currently a potential tropical disturbance may increase 
localized flooding risks. Hurricane season may be active. 
 

 This item was presented for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 
 

 - None 

The following items were provided for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 

Packet Pg. 107

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 15 of 16  
 

 

(Audio 04:24:36) 
 

 - None 

 No denials were referred to the Board. 
 

No water shortage orders were presented. 
 
Committee Chair Adams stated he received one Request to Speak card. 
 
Mr. Chester Bradshaw spoke regarding the setting of the minimum flows and levels in the Green  
Swamp area. Ms. Seachrist stated staff will provide an update at the June meeting which includes this  
concern.   
 

 - None 
 

The following items were provided for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 

 
(04:31:40) 

 
 - None

Ms. West informed the Board that seven petitions have been received regarding the modification of 
renewal of the Peace River Manasota Water Supply Authority (PRMWSA) water use permit. The 
petitions were received from Polk County, the Polk Regional Water Cooperative (PRWC), the City 
of Bartow, the City of Winter Haven, the City of Lakeland, the City of Fort Meade and the City of 
Wachula. These petitions are requesting an administrative hearing. The Office of General Counsel 
is currently reviewing the petitions for sufficiency.  
 

 – None 

The following items were provided for the Committee’s information, and no action was required. 

 

Packet Pg. 108

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)



Minutes of the Meeting              May 22, 2018 
SWFWMD Governing Board     Page 16 of 16  
 

A written report was provided for the May 15 meeting. 
 

A written report was provided for the May 15 meeting. 
 

Board Member Williamson stated the Environmental Advisory Committee toured Rock Pond on 
May 2.   

 Mr. Armstrong thanked Chair Maggard for his tenure as chair. 
 

Chair Maggard spoke regarding the Auditor General’s Office request for clarification for a possible 
finding related to the District’s Inspector General.   

. (Audio: 04:35:23) 
 
The next Board meetings are scheduled for June 26 in the Brooksville Office, July 24 in Clearwater 
at Tampa Bay Water and August 28 in the Tampa Office.

 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:36 p.m. 

 
 

________________________________________ 
                Chair 
Attest:  
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary  
 

Packet Pg. 109

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

G
B

 0
52

22
01

8 
- D

ra
ft 

 (3
78

5 
: A

pp
ro

ve
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 M

in
ut

es
 - 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

8)





Governing Board Meeting
June 26, 2018

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Discussion Items 

23. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

24. Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative ................................................................................. 111

Submit & File Reports – None 

Routine Reports 

25. Minimum Flows and Levels Status Update ................................................................................ 112

26. Significant Water Resource and Development Projects ............................................................ 114



Item 23 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Jennette M. Seachrist, P.E., Division Director, Resource Monitoring 

Packet Pg. 110



Item 24 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative 

Purpose 
To update the Board on the status of the Withlacoochee River Watershed Initiative (WRWI). 

Background/History 
The WRWI was established to better understand the dynamics of the river and watershed, 
identify how alterations have affected the system, and evaluate alternatives to better manage 
the resources. On October 27, 2015, staff presented the results of the WRWI to the Governing 
Board. Prior to the Governing Board presentation, the WRWI was presented to the public at five 
workshops in 2015. At the public workshops and Governing Board presentation, staff discussed 
the comprehensive analysis of the entire Withlacoochee River and surrounding watershed that 
had been completed to address numerous concerns expressed over the past few decades 
related to water levels and flow. Staff also described the results of a number of computer model 
scenarios, which were evaluated to determine the effects of historical modifications to the 
watershed. In addition, the model was used to determine the impacts of potential future changes 
designed to improve management of the river, including impacts of restoration activities in the 
Green Swamp.   

In general, model results indicate that changing rainfall patterns and the region’s natural 
topography have the greatest impact on water levels and flow along the Withlacoochee River. 
Since the October 2015 Governing Board presentation, three additional model scenarios have 
been evaluated based on feedback from the public workshops, providing valuable insight into 
the recent flooding from Hurricane Irma. Understanding gained through this effort has also 
resulted in two new District Initiatives, which began in 2018, and will improve our ability to 
manage the water resources in this system. These District Initiatives include restoration work in 
the Orange State Canal and a modification to the Golf Course Structure in the Tsala Apopka 
Chain-of-Lakes.  

The WRWI has also enhanced the operation of over a dozen water control structures 
throughout the river and watershed by providing the tools to take a regional approach to 
structure operations and evaluate ways to improve our operational guidelines. In addition, a 
continued emphasis on outreach has resulted in effective stakeholder communication and 
stronger relationships between the public and the District. 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is for the Board’s information only, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Mark Fulkerson, Ph.D., P.E., Senior Professional Engineer, 
 Engineering and Watershed Management 

Packet Pg. 111



Item 25 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Minimum Flows and Levels Status Report 

Section 373.042 of the Florida Statutes requires the state water management districts or 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to establish minimum flows and levels (MFLs) 
for aquifers, surface watercourses and other surface water bodies. MFLs are the limit at which 
further withdrawals would be significantly harmful to the water resources or ecology of the area 
and are used in District permitting programs and for water-supply planning. 

District staff continues to work on various phases of the development or reevaluation of MFLs 
for water bodies included on the Governing Board and DEP approved MFLs Priority List and 
Schedule. This status report highlights phased tasks that have been completed for prioritized 
water bodies since the last Governing Board meeting and summarizes cumulative progress for 
all currently prioritized water bodies. 

Phase 1 (Data collection). Data collection was not completed for any prioritized water bodies 
during the past month. To date, data collection has been completed for 22 of the 96 water 
bodies scheduled for MFLs adoption or reevaluation by 2027. 

Phase 2 (Data analyses and development of draft MFLs reports). Data analyses and draft 
reports were not completed for any prioritized water bodies during the past month. Analyses and 
draft, internal-review reports have been completed for 17 of the 96 water bodies scheduled for 
MFLs adoption/reevaluation by 2027. 

Phase 3 (a. Presentation of draft MFLs reports to the Governing Board prior to peer review; b. 
presentation of peer review reports and staff responses to the Governing Board; c. public 
workshops; and d. presentation of final MFLs reports to the Governing Board for acceptance).  

a) No draft MFLs reports that are to be subjected to peer review were presented to the
Governing Board this month. Draft reports for six currently prioritized water bodes
that were subsequently peer reviewed have previously been submitted to the
Governing Board.

b) No peer review reports or staff response to peer review findings were presented to
the Governing Board this month. To date, peer review reports and associated staff
responses have been presented to the Governing Board for five of the 96 water
bodies scheduled for MFLs adoption/ reevaluation by 2027.

c) No public workshop on proposed MFLs were held during the past month. To date,
public workshops addressing 13 of the 96 water bodies scheduled for MFLs
adoption/reevaluation by 2027 have been conducted.

d) A final MFL report addressing reevaluated MFLs for lakes Dosson and Sunshine was
submitted to the Governing Board this month. Pending acceptance of this report,
final reports addressing 13 of the 96 water bodies scheduled for MFLs
adoption/reevaluation by 2027 have been accepted by the Governing Board.

Phase 4 (Recovery Strategy Development). No new recovery strategies were developed for 
Governing Board consideration this month. The previously approved NTB WUCA and SWUCA 

Packet Pg. 112



Item 25 

recovery strategies have, respectively, been identified as necessarily applicable to two and four 
of the 96 water bodies scheduled for MFLs adoption/reevaluation through 2027. No need for 
recovery has been determined for seven of the 96 prioritized water bodies. The need for 
recovery has not yet been determined for the 83 other water bodies. 

Phase 5 (Governing Board Approval of Rule Amendments). Rule amendments addressing 
reevaluated MFLs for lakes Dosson and Sunshine were presented to the Governing Board this 
month. Pending approval of a request to initiate rulemaking for these MFLs, rule amendments 
addressing 13 of the 96 water bodies scheduled for MFLs adoption/reevaluation by 2027 have 
been approved. 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is for the Board's information only; no action is required. 

Presenter:   Doug Leeper, MFLs Program Lead, Springs and Environmental Flows Section 

Packet Pg. 113



Item 26 

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Significant Water Resource and Development Projects 

This report provides information on significant Resource Management projects and programs in 
which the Governing Board is participating in funding. The report provides a brief description 
and status of significant activities associated with the project that have recently occurred or are 
about to happen. 

SWUCA Recovery Project at Flatford Swamp and Hydrologic Restoration  
The project investigates the feasibility of using excess water from Flatford Swamp recharged 
into the Upper Floridan Aquifer that would reduce the rate of saltwater intrusion inland and help 
restore hydroperiods.  A water budget model comparing existing and historic conditions within 
Flatford Swamp was developed to determine the amount of excess water that could be captured 
for a beneficial use. Several preliminary scenarios for removal of excess water from the swamp 
have been evaluated such as a feasibility study to determine Mosaic’s potential uses for excess 
water from Flatford Swamp. The Feasibility Study with Mosaic was finalized in March 2013, but 
determined unfeasible. Staff researched an injection option at Flatford for the excess water to 
recharge the aquifer and discussed the need for more information on the Avon Park formation at 
the swamp. A pre-application meeting with Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP) was held on February 25, 2016.  Draft Class V, Group 2 Injection Well permit 
application was issued by FDEP approximately a year later.  The feasibility study memorandum 
is complete. Staff has presented to the Agricultural\Green Industry, Environmental, Well Drillers 
and Public Supply Advisory Committees.  Also, staff had outreach presentations to the Manatee 
Chamber Environmental Committee, Myakka River Coordinating Council, and the Florida 
Groundwater Association Board. Governing Board approved at their April meeting to proceed 
with the test well project. The successful consultant from the Request for Proposal for the test 
well project was the Jones Edmunds & Associates team.  The successful bidder for the drilling 
RFB was Rowe Drilling. Both the consultant and driller agreements were executed, and kick-off 
meetings were held on February 22, 2018. New Activities Since Last Meeting:  Drilling 
continues on the recharge well. Consultant is continuing with the permitting process for 
diversion infrastructure design.  Project Manager: Lisann Morris 

Lower Hillsborough River MFLs Recovery Strategy - Implementation 
At its August 2007 meeting, the Governing Board established minimum flows and approved a 
recovery strategy for the lower Hillsborough River (LHR). The recovery strategy was adopted as 
required by statute, because flows in the LHR were below the established minimum flows. The 
recovery strategy includes a number of projects to divert water from various sources to help 
meet the minimum flows. Projects planned under the recovery strategy, funded through a Joint 
Funding Agreement with the City of Tampa (COT), include diversions of water from Sulphur 
Springs, Blue Sink, the Tampa Bypass Canal (TBC), and Morris Bridge Sink. Pursuant to the 
recovery strategy, since December 31, 2007, 75 percent of up to 11 cubic feet per second (cfs) 
(i.e., 8.2 cfs) transferred to the reservoir from the TBC is being pumped to the base of the 
Hillsborough River Dam. The District received notification from the COT on November 7, 2011, 
that the Sulphur Springs Run Lower Weir project was complete and the pumping facilities and 
Upper Weir modifications to assist in meeting the MFL were completed in January 2012.  The 
COT completed construction for the Blue Sink pipeline in April 2016 and construction restoration 
was completed in May 2016. In November 2017 the COT began operation of the Blue Sink 

Packet Pg. 114



  Item 26 
 

pumping facility. In October 2017, the District completed design for the Morris Bridge Pumping 
facility, but construction has not begun pending the outcome of analysis the COT is performing 
on other alternative supplies to meet the MFL, specifically associated with the Tampa 
Augmentation Project (TAP - Q028). In 2017, the COT began the process of taking over 
operation of pump stations on the TBC, as required by the recovery strategy.  In addition, a CFA 
between the COT and the District for the Lower Hillsborough River Dam Control Gate Facilities 
(N492, Agreement No. 17CF0000823) was completed.  This project will construct a new gate in 
the dam to allow the city to pass the full quantity of water needed to meet the MFL through the 
dam.  On November 30, 2017, the COT issued Kiewit Infrastructure South Company a notice to 
proceed with construction of the proposed Hillsborough River Dam MFL Low Flow Control Gate 
(N492).  Project completion is expected on or before June 28, 2018.  In accordance with the 
permit issued to the District by the FDEP for planned minimum flow recovery pumping from 
Morris Bridge Sink, the District submitted a review/assessment of the recovery strategy to FDEP 
in December 2017. In December 2017 the COT began operation of the temporary pump 
stations at the District’s S-161 site and at the Hillsborough River Dam site.  In summary, all 
activities and projects proposed in the adopted recovery strategy are either underway, 
completed, or have been determined to not be viable. Acquisition of necessary permits and 
other unforeseen issues have delayed construction and full implementation of some recovery 
strategy projects. However, important components of the recovery strategy are currently in 
operation, including the use of Sulphur Springs, Blue Sink, and the TBC as recovery flow 
sources, and results from recent years suggest that the desired goal of creating low salinity 
habitat below the dam can be sustained through minimum flows implementation. The District 
and the COT continue to work cooperatively to determine how the MFL will be impacted through 
the proposed COT TAP - Q028 project.   The COT has met with District staff and is pursuing 
additional coordination regarding minimum flow requirements to support the updating of their 
minimum flow operating procedures. Water quality monitoring, soil subsidence monitoring and 
biological sampling for 2017 for the WUP for Morris Bridge Sink has been completed. The COT 
Low Flow Control Gate (N492) project construction is underway. On March 14, 2018, the N492 
Low Flow Control Gate project contractor installed the cofferdam as a major step toward 
facilitating removal of the old sluice gate and replacing it with the new slide gate for diversion of 
water from the reservoir into the LHR. The annual reports to FDEP for permit compliance for the 
S-161 WUP and Morris Bridge Sink WUP were submitted on March 30, 2018.  New Activities 
Since Last Meeting:  No changes since last meeting. Project Managers: Barbara Nordheim-
Shelt   
 
TECO’s Polk Power Station Reclaimed Water Interconnects to Lakeland/Polk County/ 
Mulberry 
This regional project, consisting of transmission pipelines, pump stations, storage tank, 
advanced treatment and deep injection well, is providing up to 10 mgd of reclaimed water from 
four domestic wastewater treatment facilities (Lakeland Glendale, Lakeland Northside, Mulberry, 
and Polk County Southwest) to Tampa Electric Company’s (TECO) power facility in southwest 
(SW) Polk County (Polk Power Station). The reclaimed water is necessary as TECO expanded 
the Polk Power Station generation capacity. The cooperatively funded reclaimed water project 
(H076-Phase I) was originally anticipated to provide 5.2 mgd (expandable up to 6.7 mgd) of 
reclaimed water from the City of Lakeland; however, the supply and benefits were expanded 
several times to 10 mgd (expandable to 17 mgd) and total project costs increased to 
$96,960,725.  The increases improved cost-effectiveness and will utilize 100 percent of all 
available reclaimed water from Lakeland, Mulberry and SW Polk to beyond 2040. TECO 
replaced, to the greatest extent possible, 3 to 8 mgd of existing groundwater uses in 2015-2017 
with reclaimed water before the full project expansion was completed in late 2017. Additional 
Information: In order to utilize the reclaimed water, the project includes advanced treatment 

Packet Pg. 115



Item 26 

(filtration and membranes) which is necessary to reduce dissolved solids to an acceptable level. 
The membrane reject water (concentrate by-product) is mixed with other Polk Power Station 
discharge water and pumped to two new deep injection wells for final disposal. The four primary 
project components are complete with; 1. The Lakeland segment on-line in 2015; 2. The 
reclaimed water treatment system, storage tank and injection well at the TECO facility on-line in 
2015; 3. The Polk SW segment completed and on-line December of 2017; and 4. The Mulberry 
pipeline segment and pump station on-line in 2017.  Per the June 2016 Amendment adding the 
final District funding, the District budgeted $45,676,957 in ad valorem and an additional 
$3,526,063 in WRAP funds (totaling $49,203,020 in District funding), of which a total of 
$46,122,080 has been reimbursed (TECO is compiling final billing and close-out documents). 
The project is utilizing Lakeland’s, Mulberry’s, and Polk County’s effluent to supply 5 to 10 mgd 
of reclaimed water, thereby reducing groundwater pumping at the TECO Polk Power Facility. 
Full commissioning and testing to the 10 mgd capacity was completed in late 2017.  Billing 
close-out efforts are continuing by TECO. New Activities Since Last Meeting:  No changes 
since last meeting. Project Manager: Anthony Andrade 

Aquifer Recharge Projects 
City of Clearwater - Groundwater Replenishment Project - Phase 3 
This is an ongoing project which previously completed work on an advanced water purification 
pilot plant test and one groundwater recharge injection site.  Results from the water purification 
plant pilot tests and injection well testing demonstrated that this project would be successful in 
allowing the City to increase their reclaimed water utilization, reducing surface discharges, 
improving groundwater levels in the Northern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution Area, and 
increasing the City’s future water supply potential from their existing wellfields. Phase 3 of this 
project is the design, third-party review, permitting and construction of the full-scale water 
purification plant and the injection and monitor well systems to recharge 2.4 mgd annual 
average of purified recycled water at Clearwater’s Northeast Water Reclamation Facility. Public 
outreach is also a critical function throughout the design and construction of this project. The 
original CFI contract with the City for this project was executed in January 2016.  An increase in 
the total project cost from $28,680,000 to $32,716,000, was requested at the District’s 
September 27, 2016 Governing Board Meeting based on results of a 30 percent design and 
third-party review. The Board approved the City’s request to move forward with final design and 
construction and authorized a contract amendment for the project (current budget of 
$32,716,000 with the District funding a total of $16,358,000).  This contract amendment was 
executed on March 6, 2017. Of the District’s contribution, $1,554,000 was approved in FY2015, 
$2,131,600 was approved in FY2016, and $8,000,000 was approved in FY2018. The remaining 
$4,672,400 is currently requested in the FY2019 CFI application.  The 100 percent design is 
complete and final design is pending permit issuance by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP).  Three public meetings were conducted by the City between 
November 2016 and May 2017. Permit Applications for the Advanced Water Purification Plant 
were logged in at the FDEP on October 20, 2017 and are anticipated to be issued at the end of 
2017 or beginning of 2018. Site Development Permit Applications are with FDEP Environmental 
Resource Permitting, Florida Department of Transportation Right of Way Access, the City and 
the County. Construction is currently scheduled to be complete at the beginning of 2020 and 
facility operations should begin in April 2021. The next task, project bidding, is pending final 
permits and final design. The FDEP Intent to Issue for the Advanced Water Purification Plant 
permit was initially received on January 10, 2018.  Following subsequent edits, the final Intent to 
Issue with a revised public notification form was provided on February 12, 2018.  The City 
published the required notification in the Tampa Bay Times on February 16, 2018.  New 
Activities Since Last Meeting:   The public meeting for the UIC permit is scheduled for June 
13, 2018, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the Clearwater Main Library, 100 N Osceola Avenue, 
Clearwater, Florida 33755.  Project Manager: Robert Peterson 

Packet Pg. 116



  Item 26 
 

Pasco County - Reclaimed Water Natural Systems Treatment and Restoration Project 
A desktop feasibility study to assess the use of highly treated reclaimed water to indirectly 
recharge the UFA via constructed wetlands and/or rapid infiltration basins (RIB) in central Pasco 
County areas was completed in January 2011. The study showed that indirect aquifer recharge 
is a viable option for Pasco County. A Phase II feasibility study and report was completed in 
February 2012 and included a screening analysis for potential RIB locations, as well as cost 
analyses refinements for potential future phases. Phase III includes field testing and modeling 
on the 4G Ranch in Pasco County. The final draft of the Phase III project report was received by 
the District on December 12, 2014; and a teleconference was held on December 16, 2014, to 
discuss preliminary comments. District staff sent report comments on December 23, 2014. 
Multiple meetings have been held to further discuss the District’s comments. A request to 
extend the deadlines of Tasks 2 and 3, and the project end date to June 30, 2015, was received 
on February 26, 2015. A request to use the contingency funds in the Agreement ($10,000) was 
also received. Meetings were held to discuss 30 percent design on March 25, March 30, and 
April 9, 2015. Pre-application meetings with FDEP occurred on March 31, 2015, to discuss the 
Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) for the project; and on April 7, 2015, to discuss the 
NPDES permit. A field visit with FDEP was held on April 23, 2015. Meetings to discuss the 
modeling work occurred on April 22 and May 5, 2015. The District received the final 30 percent 
design package on May 5, 2015, A draft Agreement, Project Plan, Easement, and Lease were 
developed, and the Governing Board gave staff authorization to proceed with third party review 
of the 30 percent design package at the July 2015 Board meeting. The results of the third-party 
review were received on August 24, 2015. The review concluded that the project scope and 
budget were reasonable and would meet the project objectives.  The review also concluded that 
the methods used to determine the measurable benefit of at least 2.2 mgd of reclaimed water 
on a ten-year annual average were reasonable. On August 27, 2015, the project team met with 
FDEP to discuss the submittal of the application to modify the County’s NPDES permit. Both the 
ERP and NPDES permits have been submitted to FDEP. The Governing Board approved the 
County’s and staff’s request to move forward with final design and permitting of the project at 
their September 2015 meeting. The Board also directed staff to enter into an agreement for 50 
percent of the total project cost identified in the 30 percent design ($14,300,966), allowing 
reimbursement of the District’s share for the design, permitting, and construction of this facility.  
The completed N666 Agreement was sent to Pasco County for their signature on October 5, 
2015.  The 60 percent costs were received on October 29, 2015. The 90 percent design was 
received on December 18, 2015.  The draft NPDES and ERP permits have been received as of 
December 18, 2015. The 90 percent cost estimates from CH2M Hill (Pasco County consultant) 
and P&J (land owner/contractor) were completed.  All permits were issued as of January 2016.  
A meeting was held with the project team on February 11, 2016 to review the estimates, and 
some revisions and clarification were made on both estimates. The 100 percent design 
drawings were received on March 10, 2016. The Pasco County Commission approved the 
Agreement at their May 10, 2016 meeting, and the District received the Agreement on May 25, 
2016. The 100 percent costs were received March 25, 2016.  The Agreement was sent to 
Executive for signature on July 1, 2016. The Agreement was fully executed on July 11, 2016.  
Construction began as of mid-June 2016, and is progressing on or ahead of schedule. A 
groundbreaking ceremony took place on October 24, 2016, including tours of the existing 
construction so far, and television press. A field trip for District staff took place on February 2, 
2017. Most earthwork and pipe installation is complete. Construction is ongoing and is on 
schedule.  Planting is ongoing through July. As of October 13, 2017, all construction has been 
completed with the exception of some final SCADA controls.  A task extension to complete this 
and CEI work by December 31, 2017 was approved by the District.  The County applied for 
FY2018 funding for a follow-up project to optimize the facility for recharge.  Funding was 
approved for FY2018, and the agreement is currently being developed.  The County has applied 
for FY2019 funding for this project as well. The County is sending the remaining deliverables to 
the District but is still working with the subcontractor to work out some problems with the 

Packet Pg. 117



  Item 26 
 

SCADA system.  The District is processing a no-cost time extension for the current Agreement 
in case the issues are not finalized with the subcontractor by June 30, 2018.   Otherwise, the 
project construction is complete.  New Activities Since Last Meeting: No changes since last 
meeting.  Project Manager: Mike Hancock 
 
South Hillsborough County Aquifer Recharge Program (SHARP) 
This is a direct aquifer recharge pilot project to evaluate directly recharging the non-potable 
zone of the UFA with up to 2 mgd of highly treated reclaimed water at the Hillsborough County’s 
Big Bend facility near Apollo Beach in southern Hillsborough County (County). The goal of the 
project is to improve water levels within the Most Impacted Area of the Southern Water Use 
Caution Area and possible slow the rate of inland movement of saltwater intrusion in the area. 
The pilot testing program includes permitting, installing a recharge well and associated monitor 
wells, assessing aquifer characteristics, performing recharge testing, evaluating water level 
improvements, migration of the recharge water and metals mobilization, and conducting public 
outreach. The County’s consultant submitted the well construction permit application for 
authorization to install the test recharge well and monitoring wells on December 20, 2011. 
Design and preparation of bid documents were completed in early July 2012; a request for bids 
was released the week of July 16, 2012, with responses received in August 2012. Construction 
contract with the contractor (A.C. Schultes of Florida, Inc.) was approved by the County on April 
3, 2013. The recharge well was completed in December 2013 with an open-hole diameter of 
14.75 inches, 780 feet of casing, and a total depth of 1,100 feet. The County received a letter 
from FDEP on July 13, 2015 authorizing recharge operations to begin. New Activities Since 
Last Meeting: Recharge testing and monitoring continued during the months of April and May. 
The total injected volume for April was 47 MG for the month.  It is approximated as of May 24, 
2018 that an additional 62 MG has been recharged resulting in approximately 1.55 billion 
gallons recharged since the beginning of the project.  The County acidized the recharge well in 
May and average flow rate increased form 1.9 MGD to 3.0 MGD.  The recent wet conditions 
allowed the County to successfully test a short term increased injection rate of 4.5 MGD.  The 
County has requested a contract amendment to extend the recharge testing phase to evaluate 
an increased injection rate prior to applying for an operation permit.  The District is negotiating a 
no cost change schedule amendment and anticipates it to be executed in June 2018.  Project 
Manager: Don Ellison 
 
City of Tampa, Tampa Augmentation Project (TAP) 
This project is a study that will explore the cost and feasibility of two options to beneficially use 
reclaimed water from the Howard F. Curren Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant. The first 
alternative concept involves transmitting reclaimed water to the Lower Hillsborough Wilderness 
Preserve Area and delivering water through created wetlands and/or rapid infiltration basins 
(RIBs) to the Tampa Bypass Canal. This alternative was found infeasible and the project focus 
went to the second alternative. The second alternative concept evaluates a recharge/recovery 
system to store and recover reclaimed water (and possibly stormwater) in the aquifer for 
delivery to the Hillsborough River Reservoir and possibly in the future directly to the David L 
Tippen Water Treatment Plant.  The City has developed their stakeholder outreach plan, 
completed their route and regulatory/institutional analysis memorandums. The City is currently 
testing the recharge/recovery concept at an existing aquifer storage and recovery site.  A No 
Cost Time Extension amendment is being routed to allow for finalization of the more complex 
memoranda covering modeling and water quality treatment.  A draft Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection Underground Injection Well permit application was prepared.  
Additional feasibility tasks have been identified as a result of this first phase and the City has 
submitted a revised Cooperative Funding Application to request funding for Fiscal Year 2019.  
New Activities Since Last Meeting: No Cost Time Extension was executed extending the 
contract completion date to the end of August 2018.  The City continues to develop the Final 
Feasibility Memorandum for this phase. Project Manager: Lisann Morris 

Packet Pg. 118



  Item 26 
 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Jennette M. Seachrist, P.E., Division Director, Resource Management 

Packet Pg. 119





Governing Board Meeting
June 26, 2018

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE

Discussion Items 

27. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

28. Fiscal Year 2019 Recommended Annual Service Budget .........................................................121

Submit & File Reports 

29. Payroll (Overtime) Budgeting ......................................................................................................124

30. Travel Procedure Review ...........................................................................................................125

Routine Reports 

31. Treasurer’s Report and Payment Register .................................................................................127

32. Monthly Financial Statement.......................................................................................................139

33. Monthly Cash Balances by Fiscal Year ......................................................................................144

34. Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Related Reviews Report ..............................................146

35. Development of Regional Impact Activity Report .......................................................................150



Item 27 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Michael Molligan, Division Director, Employee and External Relations 

Packet Pg. 120



Item 28 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Fiscal Year 2019 Recommended Annual Service Budget 

Purpose 
Submit fiscal year (FY) 2019 Recommended Annual Service Budget (recommended budget) for 
consideration by the Governing Board as required by statute; and authorize staff to prepare the 
Standard Format Tentative Budget Submission based on the recommended budget, adjusted 
for any modifications made by the Governing Board on June 26, changes in estimated ad 
valorem revenue based on the July 1 certifications of taxable value and any additional funding 
provided by the state.   

Background 
Pursuant to Section 373.536(2), Florida Statutes (F.S.), the District is required to submit a 
tentative budget, covering its proposed operations and funding requirements for the ensuing 
fiscal year, for consideration by the Governing Board.  On June 26, staff will present the 
recommended budget to the Governing Board.  Any changes in the tentative budget, 
subsequent to the June meeting, will be presented to the Governing Board for approval at the 
July 24 meeting to include in the tentative budget. 

The District’s expenditure budget is divided into two major components: (1) operating and (2) 
projects.  The operating component of the budget includes salaries and benefits, operating 
expenses, contracted services for operational support and maintenance, and operating capital 
outlay.  The projects component of the budget includes contracted services for District projects, 
Cooperative Funding Initiative (CFI) projects recommended for funding by the Governing Board 
Regional Sub-committees, District grants, and fixed capital outlay.   

The FY2019 recommended budget meets the following goals established by the Governing 
Board: 

• Project expenditures equal at least 50 percent of budget - 57 percent achieved.
• Operating expenditures do not exceed 80 percent of ad valorem revenue - 69 percent

achieved.
• Salaries and benefits do not exceed 50 percent of ad valorem revenue - 45 percent

achieved.

Pursuant to Section 373.536(5)(d), F.S., by August 1 of each year, the District is required to 
submit for review a tentative budget and a description of any significant changes from the 
preliminary budget submitted to the Executive Office of the Governor (EOG), President of the 
Senate, Speaker of the House of Representatives, chairs of all legislative committees and sub-
committees having substantive or fiscal jurisdiction over water management districts, Secretary 
of the Department of Environmental Protection, and the governing body of each county from 
which the water management districts derive funds.   

Packet Pg. 121



Item 28 

Discussion 
The recommended budget for FY2019 is $176.3 million.  Staff will provide an overview of the 
FY2019 recommended budget including a review of proposed expenditures and revenues. 
Expenditures will be reviewed by category, program and area of responsibility.  

Operating Budget 

The operating budget of $76.2 million for FY2019 is a decrease of $68,107 or 0.1 percent from 
$76.3 million in FY2018.  As a result of the District’s efforts in implementing efficient, cost-saving 
opportunities, the District has fiscal capacity to continue the necessary annual investment in 
critical water resource management projects.   

Project Budget 

The project budget of $100.1 million for FY2019 is a decrease of $7.3 million from $107.4 million 
in FY2018.  This includes contracted services for District projects, District grants, CFI and fixed 
capital outlay expenditure categories. 

Contracted services for District projects total $12.1 million, a decrease of $1.1 million from 
the FY2018 budget of $13.2 million.  This budget includes $2.4 million for Aquifer Storage 
and Recovery Feasibility/Pilot Testing, $1.6 million for Minimum Flows and Minimum Water 
Levels Recovery, $1.4 million for Florida Department of Transportation Mitigation, and $1.1 
million for Restoration Initiative projects.  In general, these projects are managed by the 
District.  The recommended budget includes a summary chart of all contracted services for 
District projects by category and a detailed description of each project.   

District grants and CFI projects total $65.9 million, a decrease of $13.8 million from the 
FY2018 budget of $79.7 million.  This budget includes $53.2 million for CFI projects, $7.7 
million in grants for District-sponsored projects, and $5 million for the funding of the Polk 
Partnership.  The District’s funds leveraged with its partners will result in a total regional 
investment of approximately $129 million for water resource management projects.  The CFI 
projects are all recommended by the Governing Board’s Regional Sub-committees.  The 
recommended budget includes a summary chart of all CFI projects followed by District 
grants by category and a detailed description of each project.   

Fixed capital outlay totals $22.1 million, an increase of $7.6 million from the FY2018 budget 
of $14.5 million.  This budget includes $17 million for acquisitions of land and land 
easements, $2.7 million for District facility improvements and renovations, $1.5 million for 
structure improvements and replacements, and $882,826 for well construction.  The 
recommended budget includes a summary chart of all fixed capital outlay projects and a 
detailed description of each project. 

Ad Valorem Revenue 

The recommended budget includes ad valorem revenue of $110.9 million, an increase of $2.8 
million from the FY2018 budget of $108.1 million based on a projected 2.55 percent increase in 
new construction.  The June 1 estimates indicate property values have increased 8 percent.  Ad 

Packet Pg. 122



Item 28 

valorem revenue will be adjusted based on the July 1 certifications of taxable property value by 
the 16 county property appraisers, and the millage rate will be adjusted to the rolled-back rate to 
account for new construction only. 

At the July 24 Governing Board meeting, staff will present the 16-county property appraisers 
certifications of taxable value and the proposed FY2019 millage rate in compliance with s. 
373.503(4) and s. 200.065, F.S.  The Governing Board will be requested to adopt the proposed 
FY2019 millage rate for certification to the county property appraisers by August 4.  The 
proposed millage rate is the rate that will be used for Truth in Millage (TRIM) Notices of 
Proposed Property Taxes.  In addition, the Governing Board will be requested to authorize staff 
to submit the District’s Standard Format Tentative Budget Submission for FY2019 to the EOG, 
Florida Legislature and other parties, as required by statute, to be received by August 1, 2018. 

The District’s FY2019 budget will be adopted in September following two public budget 
hearings.  The first hearing is scheduled for September 11, 2018 at 5:01 p.m. at the Tampa 
Office.  Written disapproval of any portion of the Tentative Budget Submission must be received 
from the EOG or the Legislative Budget Commission at least five business days prior to the final 
budget hearing.  The second and final hearing is scheduled for September 25, 2018 at 5:01 
p.m. also at the Tampa Office.

Exhibit of the recommended budget will be provided separately. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Authorize staff to prepare the Standard Format Tentative Budget Submission for FY2019 based 
on the recommended budget as presented, adjusted for any modifications made by the 
Governing Board on June 26, changes in estimated ad valorem revenue based on the July 1 
certifications of taxable value and any additional funding provided by the state.   

Presenter:   John J. Campbell, Division Director, Management Services
                   Jennette Seachrist, Division Director, Resource Management
                   Ken L. Frink, Division Director, Operations Lands & Resource Monitoring
                   Alba E. Más, Division Director, Regulation
                   Michael Molligan, Division Director, Employee and External Relations 

Packet Pg. 123



Item 29 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Submit and File Report 
Payroll (Overtime) Budgeting 

Purpose and Background:  
In accordance with the District’s Annual Audit Plan, staff have completed the Payroll (Overtime) 
Budgeting engagement. 

The project was identified through the District’s annual risk assessment process.  Yearly, the 
payroll process controls the disbursements of approximately 38 percent of the District’s 
expenditures. Payroll disbursement processes are tested heavily by external auditors. However, 
the budgeting of overtime payroll is not extensively analyzed by external parties on a routine 
basis. 

The overall technical requirement and objective for the engagement is to determine that the 
District’s total overtime budget is reasonable. The key objectives for making that determination 
is to assess whether the process for budgeting overtime is adequately controlled to ensure 
reasonable budgets and adequate protection from likely fraud schemes, and then review budget 
to actual data to ensure that the Board could rely on the budgetary information and related 
performance metrics.  

Discussion and Follow-up: 
Testing commenced on May 18 and was completed on May 25, 2018. For the five years 
analyzed, the District’s average overtime budget and expenditures totaled $231,000 and 
$242,000 respectively. The average variance of $11,000 was less than five percent of budget. 
The calculated variances appear reasonable based on the District’s work environment of 
responding to public safety emergency situations and conducting short-term projects that 
require continuous monitoring.  

Based on the results of the procedures, the District’s overtime budgets are realistic, and the 
District’s process for developing the overtime budget adequately controls relevant risks to the 
organization. No significant items (reportable conditions to the Governing Board) were identified 
during this engagement. The inspector general referred one process improvement idea to the 
DIVE program. 

During the audit, the management team identified three office or bureau budgets that will be 
followed up on as part of the FY2020 budgeting process. The changes to those budgets will not 
be significant changes and would not affect the operational performance metrics monitored by 
the Board. 

Staff Recommendation: 

For information only; No action required. 

Presenter:   Kurt P. Fritsch, Inspector General 

Packet Pg. 124



Item 30 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Submit and File Report 
Travel Procedure Review 

Purpose and Background:  
In accordance with the District’s Annual Audit Plan, staff have completed review of the District’s 
Travel Procedure.  

The Office of Inspector General has a responsibility to review, as appropriate, rules, policies, 
procedures, and guidelines relating to the programs and operations of the District and make 
recommendations concerning their impact. The office completes these reviews at the time the 
Governing Board or Executive Management changes the documents.  The inspector general 
uses a detailed program to conduct the review and discusses any concerns with the appropriate 
division director.  

The Finance bureau chief is the document owner for District policies and procedures involving 
travel-related matters. The key business objectives for the travel procedure are to promote 
legal, policy, and procedural compliance. Accurate reporting of travel expenditures is a 
secondary important goal. The key risk event is payment of noncompliant or unauthorized travel 
expenses. For purposes of ensuring compliance, timeliness of submission of claims is important 
because the events remain recent for travelers and reviewers, which then ensures accuracy of 
the data reported. Timeliness of processing is important as a completed travel authorization 
may represent a valid claim to the District. 

The primary reason for changing the procedure is to update the procedure as part of 
implementing a new financial system module to automate travel requests, approvals, 
documentation attachments, pay, and transaction recording. Key changes to the procedure 
language were done to replace the paper process with the automated system as the new 
standard procedure. Other changes address certain Class C travel expenditures involving mid-
day meetings. Staff also adopted the governing document’s format to be consistent with the 
template recommended through the District’s Knowledge Management initiative. 

Discussion and Follow-up: 
Overall the changes included in the proposed travel procedure adequately addressed the 
governance, risk management, and control activities of concern as identified by the division 
director and Finance bureau chief. The changes made to the procedure did not raise other 
areas of concern that the inspector general deemed significant. The inspector general made 
several suggestions to improve the document that were included into the management’s final 
draft.  None of the recommended changes were necessary to address a significant weakness in 
controls design.  

Packet Pg. 125



Item 30 

Presenter:   Kurt P. Fritsch, Inspector General 

Packet Pg. 126

Staff Recommendation:   

For information only; No action is required. 



Item 31 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Treasurer's Report and Payment Register 

Purpose 
Presentation of the Treasurer's Report and Payment Register. 

Background 
In accordance with Board Policy, District Investment, a monthly report on investments shall be 
provided to the Governing Board.  The Treasurer’s Report as of May 31, 2018, reflects total 
cash and investments. 

In accordance with Board Policy, Disbursement of Funds, all general checks written during a 
period shall be reported to the Governing Board at its next regular meeting.  The Payment 
Register listing disbursements since last month's report is available upon request.  The Payment 
Register includes checks and electronic fund transfers (EFTs). 

Staff Recommendation: 

These items are presented for the Committee's information, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 127



SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE GOVERNING BOARD

CUSTODIAN HELD INVESTMENTS
EFFECTIVE

ACCOUNT INTEREST AMORTIZED MARKET ACCRUED % OF
NUMBER RATE (%) COST VALUE INTEREST PORTFOLIO

   SWFWMD-Enhanced Cash Portfolio 

7951619 Investments 1.58 $201,839,940 $200,962,531 $735,903 
7951619 Cash / Money Market Fund 1.63 180,019 180,019 0

Subtotal $202,019,959 $201,142,550 $735,903 
7951619 Accounts Receivable-Trade date prior to 5/31/18, Settlement date after 5/31/18 469 469 0

Total $202,020,428 $201,143,019 $735,903 39.59
   SWFWMD- 1-3 Year Portfolio 

7951620 Investments 1.56 $157,180,729 $155,234,582 $551,630 
7951620 Cash / Money Market Fund 1.63 363,199 363,199 0

Subtotal $157,543,928 $155,597,781 $551,630 
7951620 Accounts Receivable-Trade date prior to 5/31/18, Settlement date after 5/31/18 252 252 0

Total $157,544,180 $155,598,033 $551,630 30.87
   SWFWMD- 1-5 Year Portfolio

7962855 Investments 1.66 $51,047,953 $50,032,430 $203,115 

7962855 Cash / Money Market Fund 1.63 214,883 214,883 0

Subtotal $51,262,836 $50,247,313 $203,115 
7962855 Accounts Receivable-Trade date prior to 5/31/18, Settlement date after 5/31/18 185 185 0

Total $51,263,021 $50,247,498 $203,115 10.05

TOTAL CUSTODIAN HELD INVESTMENTS $410,827,629 $406,988,550 $1,490,648 80.51

May 31, 2018

ACCOUNT
DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC TRUST ADVISORS

Packet Pg. 128

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE GOVERNING BOARD
May 31, 2018

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION (SBA) INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
EFFECTIVE

ACCOUNT INTEREST PURCHASE MARKET ACCRUED % OF
NUMBER RATE (%) COST VALUE INTEREST PORTFOLIO

   Florida PRIME (Formerly Local Government Investment Pool)
   271413 2.03 $69,141,489 $69,141,489 
 271414 2.03 16,082,874 16,082,874 
 271415 2.03 477,409 477,409
 271416 2.03 13,642,652 13,642,652 
 271417 2.03 92,945 92,945
 271418 SBA Advanced State Funding (WPSTF-AWS) 2.03 34,913 34,913

$99,472,282 $99,472,282 19.49

$510,299,911 $506,460,832 100.00
301,365 301,365

$510,601,276 $506,762,197 

Weighted average yield on portfolio at May 31, 2018 is 1.67%.

EQUITY - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

DISTRICT AND BASINS
 District General Fund $434,884,652 85.17%

Restricted for Alafia River Basin 950,186 0.19%
Restricted for Hillsborough River Basin 26,399,837 5.17%
Restricted for Coastal Rivers Basin 376,492 0.07%
Restricted for Pinellas-Anclote River Basin 15,556,987 3.05%
Restricted for Withlacoochee River Basin 2,465,891 0.48%
Restricted for Peace River Basin 1,687,150 0.33%
Restricted for Manasota Basin 3,942,132 0.77%

 Total District General Fund $486,263,327 95.23%

 FDOT Mitigation Program 13,365,092 2.62%
           Florida Forever Program 10,972,857 2.15%

$510,601,276 100.00%

SBA Advanced State Funding (WRAP) 

TOTAL STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION (SBA) ACCOUNTS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
CASH, SUNTRUST DEMAND ACCOUNT

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

SBA General Investments
SBA Land Resources
SBA Advanced State Funding (Eco System Trust Fund) 
SBA Advanced State Funding (FDOT)

ACCOUNT
DESCRIPTION

Packet Pg. 129

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water Management District Investment Program Review Public Trust Advisors LLC

2379 Broad Street 201 E. Pine Street, Suite 750
Brooksville, FL 34604-6899 Orlando, Florida 32801

  Monthly Investment Report for Period Ended May 31, 2018

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water Management 
District All Assets Portfolio

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 517,842,243.83$         511,789,654.08$          Weighted Book Yield 1.62% 1.67%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss (4,618,224.93) (3,839,079.17) Weighted Duration 1.04 Years 1.01 Years
Net Pending Transactions 1,430.00 906.48
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2)

513,225,448.91$         507,951,481.39$          

  Southwest Florida Water Management District All Assets Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$721 

$4,639 

$10 $81 
$710

$4,558

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

Monthly Year To Date

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

Net Income Fees Net Income Less Fees

1.62% 1.67% 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

All Assets

Yield To Maturity at Cost

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

A-1+
0.97%

A-1
4.83%

AAA 
Rating
21.82%

AA 
Rating
68.07%

A Rating
4.31%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' 
Rating

30.13%

4.50% 5.67%

13.66%

30.80%

11.88%

2.26% 1.10%
 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

0-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

Corporate Notes Federal Inst. (GSE)* U.S. Treasury Notes Commercial Paper Money Market Funds LGIP

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water Management 
District Liquid Portfolio

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 106,069,092.33$         99,472,282.41$             Yield to Maturity at Cost 1.97% 2.03%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss 0.00 0.00 Duration 0.00 Years 0.00 Years
Net Pending Transactions 0.00 0.00
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2) 106,069,092.33$         99,472,282.41$             

  Southwest Florida Water Management District Liquid Portfolio Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$177 

$1,113 

$- $-
$177

$1,113

 $-

 $200

 $400
 $600
 $800

 $1,000
 $1,200

Monthly Year To Date

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

Net Income Fees Net Income Less Fees

1.97% 2.03% 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

Liquid Portfolio

Yield To Maturity at Cost

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

AAA 
Rating

100.00%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' 
Rating

100.00%

0.00% 0.00%
0.00%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
 $-

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

 $100

 $120

0-3
Months

3-6
Months

6-9
Months

9-12
Months

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years 5-6 Years 6 Years +

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

LGIP

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water Management 
District Agg Public Trust Portfolio

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 411,773,151.50$         412,317,371.67$          Book Yield Gross 1.54% 1.59%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss (4,618,224.93) (3,839,079.17) Market Yield Gross 2.65% 2.39%
Net Pending Transactions 1,430.00 906.48 Duration 1.29 Years 1.26 Years
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2)

407,156,356.58$         408,479,198.98$          

  Southwest Florida Water Management District Agg Public Trust Portfolio Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$544 

$3,526 

$10 $81 
$533

$3,446

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

Monthly Year To Date

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

Net Income Fees Net Income Less Fees

1.54% 

2.65% 

1.59% 

2.39% 

0.00%
0.50%
1.00%
1.50%
2.00%
2.50%
3.00%

Book Yield Market Yield

Book Yield and Market Yield

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

A-1+
1.21%

A-1
6.01%

AAA 
Rating
2.78%

AA Rating
84.64% A Rating

5.36%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' 
Rating

13.12%
5.60% 7.06%

16.98%

38.30%

14.78%

2.81% 1.37%
 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

0-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

Corporate Notes Federal Inst. (GSE)* U.S. Treasury Notes Commercial Paper Money Market Funds Cash

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water 
Management District Enh Cash

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 202,490,398.41$         202,755,862.09$          Book Yield Gross 1.49% 1.58%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss (1,150,085.61) (877,408.24) Market Yield Gross 2.78% 2.33%
Net Pending Transactions 890.86 469.21 Duration 0.67 Years 0.69 Years
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2)

201,341,203.66$         201,878,923.06$          

  Southwest Florida Water Management District Enh Cash Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$265 

$1,743 

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

Month Net Income YTD Net Income

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

1.49% 

2.78% 

1.58% 

2.33% 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

Book Yield Market Yield

Book Yield and Market Yield

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

 $-

 $25

 $50

 $75

0-3
Months

3-6
Months

6-9
Months

9-12
Months

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

Corporate Notes

Federal Inst. (GSE)*

U.S. Agency Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

Commercial Paper

Cash

A-1+
2.44%

A-1
12.16%

AAA Rating
4.28%

AA Rating
76.62% A Rating

4.49%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' Rating

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water 
Management District 1-3 Year

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 157,888,397.14$         158,095,558.45$          Book Yield Gross 1.56% 1.56%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss (2,287,769.34) (1,946,147.82) Market Yield Gross 2.50% 2.42%
Net Pending Transactions 358.77 252.15 Duration 1.72 Years 1.63 Years
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2)

155,600,986.57$         156,149,662.78$          

  Southwest Florida Water Management District 1-3 Year Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$207 

$1,287 

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

 $1,400

Month Net Income YTD Net Income

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

1.56% 

2.50% 

1.56% 

2.42% 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

Book Yield Market Yield

Book Yield and Market Yield

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

 $-

 $25

 $50

 $75

 $100

0-3
Months

3-6
Months

6-9
Months

9-12
Months

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

Corporate Notes

Federal Inst. (GSE)*

U.S. Agency Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

Commercial Paper

Cash AAA Rating
1.28%

AA Rating
94.12%

A Rating
4.60%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' Rating

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Southwest Florida Water 
Management District 1-5 Year

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance Portfolio Characteristic

May 1, 2018
Beginning Balance

May 31, 2018
Ending Balance

Book Value Plus Accrued 51,394,355.95$           51,465,951.12$            Book Yield Gross 1.66% 1.66%

Net Unrealized Gain/Loss (1,180,369.98) (1,015,523.11) Market Yield Gross 2.63% 2.53%
Net Pending Transactions 180.37 185.12 Duration 2.49 Years 2.41 Years
Market Value Plus Accrued Net(2)

50,214,166.34$           50,450,613.13$            

  Southwest Florida Water Management District 1-5 Year Summary Comparison for the period May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

(1), (2), (3)  See additional disclosures for footnotes.

$72 

$497 

 $-

 $100

 $200

 $300

 $400

 $500

 $600

Month Net Income YTD Net Income

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Net Income

1.66% 

2.63% 

1.66% 

2.53% 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

Book Yield Market Yield

Book Yield and Market Yield

May 1, 2018 May 31, 2018

 $-

 $25

0-3
Months

3-6
Months

6-9
Months

9-12
Months

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years

M
ill

io
ns

Maturity Distribution By Type

Corporate Notes

Federal Inst. (GSE)*

U.S. Agency Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

Commercial Paper

Cash AAA Rating
1.50%

AA Rating
87.36%

A Rating
11.15%

Portfolio Allocation By  Standard and Poors' Rating

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Portfolio Earnings
May 31, 2018

Monthly Earnings
May 31, 2018
YTD Earnings Total Portfolio Value

May 31, 2018
Balance

Liquid Portfolio (SBA-Florida Prime) 177,090$ 1,112,781$  Amortized Cost 511,789,654$             
Enhanced Cash 265,042 1,742,720 Market Value 507,951,481$             
Short Term 1-3 Year 207,055 1,287,006
Long Term 1-5 Year 71,600 496,526 
Total Earnings Gross of Fees 720,787$  4,639,033$  

Less Advisory Fees: (10,295)$ (80,750)$  

Total Earnings Net of Fees 710,492$  4,558,283$  

Blended Basis Fee (Annualized) 0.02414% 0.02367%

  Southwest Florida Water Management District All Assets Earnings Summary and Portfolio Value as of May 31, 2018

*Information provided by District staff.

$1,112,781 

$1,742,720 

$1,287,006 

$496,526 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

Liquid Portfolio (SBA-Florida
Prime)

Enhanced Cash Short Term 1-3 Year Long Term 1-5 Year

Year to Date Earnings

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



  Additional Disclosure

This statement is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations.  Please review the contents of this 
statement carefully.  Should you have any questions regarding the information presented, calculation methodology, investment portfolio or security detail, or any 
other facet of your statement, please feel free to contact us.  

Public Trust Advisor’s monthly statement is intended to detail our investment advisory activity as well as the activity of any accounts held by clients in pools that 
are managed by Public Trust Advisors. The custodian bank maintains the control of assets and executes and settles all investments transactions. The custodian 
statement is the official record of security and cash holdings transactions. Public Trust Advisors recognizes that clients may use these reports to facilitate record 
keeping; therefore the custodian bank statement and the Public Trust Advisors statement should be reconciled and differences resolved. Many custodians use a 
settlement date basis which may result in the need to reconcile due to a timing difference.   Please contact your relationship manager or our toll free number 855-
395-3954 with questions regarding your account.

Public Trust Advisors does not have the authority to withdraw funds from or deposit funds to the custodian. Our clients retain responsibility for their internal 
accounting policies; implementing and enforcing internal controls and generating ledger entries or otherwise recording transactions.

Pricing sources from our reporting platform are provided by Clearwater reporting platform and are established by Clearwater’s internal pricing procedures. 
Clearwater utilizes a hierarchical pricing model which starts with one of the industry’s pricing sources, S&P Capital IQ.  Securities with short maturities and 
infrequent secondary market trades are typically priced via mathematical calculations.  The Securities in this investment portfolio, including shares of mutual 
funds, are not guaranteed or otherwise protected by Public trust Advisors, the FDIC (except for certain non-negotiable certificates of deposit) or any government 
agency, unless otherwise specifically stated. Investment in fixed income securities involves risks, including the possible loss of the amount invested.

Past performance is not an indication of future performance.

Beginning and Ending Balances based on Market Value plus Accrued Interest on a Trade Date basis.

Public Trust Advisors is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is required to maintain a written disclosure statement 
of our background and business experience. If you would like to receive a copy of our current disclosure statement, privacy policy, or code of ethics please contact 
Service Operations at the address below.

Public Trust Advisors
717 17th Street, Suite 1850
Denver, CO 80202

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it 

Tr
ea

s 
R

pt
 M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

6 
: T

re
as

ur
er

's
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t



Item 32 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Monthly Financial Statement 

Purpose 
Presentation of the May 31, 2018, monthly financial statement. 

Background 
In accordance with Sections 373.536(4)(e) and 215.985(11), Florida Statutes, relating to state 
financial information with certain financial transparency requirements, the District is submitting a 
“Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds for the Eighth Month Ended May 31, 2018.”   

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is presented for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 139



Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds 
For the Eight Months Ended May 31, 2018 

The attached “Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds” statement is provided for your review. 
This financial statement provides summary-level revenues (i.e., sources) and expenditures by 
program (i.e., uses). This unaudited financial statement is provided as of May 31, 2018, 
with 66.7 percent of the fiscal year completed.

This financial statement compares revenues recognized and encumbrances/expenditures 
made against the District’s FY2017-18 available budget of $363.4 million. Encumbrances 
represent orders for goods and services which have not yet been received. 

Revenues (Sources) Status: 

• Overall, as of May 31, 2018, 85 percent of the District’s budgeted revenues/balances have
been recognized.

• As of May 31, 2018, the District has received $105,738,994 of ad valorem tax revenue
representing 98 percent of the budget.  This is in-line with the eight-month prior year
collection rates of 98 percent for FY2016-17 and 98 percent for FY2015-16.  The budget
represents 96 percent of the taxable property values as certified by the District’s sixteen
counties multiplied by the Governing Board approved millage rate.  Projections are based
on historical collections.

• Intergovernmental Revenues are recognized at the time related expenditures are incurred.
For FY2017-18, $3,085,146 in revenues has been recognized, representing 6 percent of
the budget.  From year to year, the budgeted amount of intergovernmental revenue
compared to the recognized amount can fluctuate for various reasons; projects can be in
the planning stages and have not incurred a significant amount of expenditures, or
anticipated projects may be cancelled (e.g., cooperative funding projects).

• The FY2017-18 interest earnings budget was based on a 1.35 percent expected rate of
return.  The District’s investment portfolio at May 31, 2018, is earning a weighted average
yield of 1.67 percent.  For the eight months ended May 31, 2018, the District has earned
1.34 percent yield on its investments.  Interest earnings on invested funds in the amount of
$4,636,917 have been recognized representing 75 percent of the budgeted amount.

• License and Permit Fees consist of revenue from water use permits, environmental
resource permits, water well construction permits, and water well construction licenses.
Revenue recognized represents 65 percent of the budgeted amount as of May 31, 2018.

• As of May 31, 2018, other revenue earned is 395 percent of budget.  Each year, items that
fall within the “Other” revenue category are budgeted conservatively due to the uncertainty
of the amounts to be collected.  For example, revenues from timber sales, hog hunts,
insurance recoveries and the sale of capital assets can vary significantly from year to year.
The majority of the increase is due to sale of capital assets in the amount of $1,549,000.

Packet Pg. 140

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it-

M
o 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tm

t M
A

Y2
01

8 
 (3

81
7 

: M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t)



Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds 
For the Eight Months Ended May 31, 2018 2

• Fund Balance consists of balance from prior years (budgeted for the current year) plus
fund balance associated with the ad valorem funded encumbrances that rolled into the
current year.

Expenditures (Uses) Status:

Overall, as of May 31, 2018, the District had obligated 70 percent of its total budget.

Summary of Expenditures by Program 
This financial statement illustrates the effort to date for each of the District’s six statutory 
program areas (Section 373.536(5)(e)4, Florida Statutes).  A discussion of the expenditures by 
program follows. 

• The Water Resource Planning and Monitoring Program includes all water
management planning, including water supply planning, development of minimum flows
and levels, and other water resource planning; research, data collection, analysis, and
monitoring; and technical assistance (including local and regional plan and program
review).  Of the $43.6 million budgeted for this program, the District has obligated
72 percent of the budget (32 percent expended, and 40 percent encumbered).

• The Land Acquisition, Restoration and Public Works Program includes the
development and construction of all capital projects (except for those contained in the
Operation and Maintenance of Works and Lands Program), including water resource
development projects/water supply development assistance, water control projects, and
support and administrative facilities construction, land acquisition (i.e., Florida Forever
program), and the restoration of lands and water bodies.  Of the $256.4 million budgeted
for this program, the District has obligated 72 percent of the budget (4 percent expended,
and 68 percent encumbered).

• The Operation and Maintenance of Works and Lands Program includes all operation
and maintenance of facilities, flood control and water conservation structures, lands, and
other works authorized by Chapter 373, Florida Statutes.  Of the $26.6 million budgeted for
this program, the District has obligated 56 percent of the budget (39 percent expended, and
17 percent encumbered).

• The Regulation Program includes water use permitting, water well construction permitting,
water well contractor licensing, environmental resource and surface water management
permitting, permit administration, compliance and enforcement, and any delegated
regulatory program. Of the $21.1 million budgeted for this program, the District has
obligated 62 percent of the budget (53 percent expended, and 9 percent encumbered).

• The Outreach Program includes all environmental education activities, such as water
conservation campaigns and water resources education; public information activities;
all lobbying activities relating to local, regional, state, and federal governmental affairs;
and all public relations activities and advertising in any media.  Of the $2.8 million budgeted
for this program, the District has obligated 53 percent of the budget (31 percent expended,
and 22 percent encumbered).

Packet Pg. 141

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it-

M
o 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tm

t M
A

Y2
01

8 
 (3

81
7 

: M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t)



Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds 
For the Eight Months Ended May 31, 2018  3 

•  The Management and Administration Program includes executive management, 
executive support, governing board support, ombudsman, general counsel, inspector 
general, administrative support (general), procurement, finance, human resources, and 
risk management.  Of the $13.0 million budgeted for this program, the District has obligated 
70 percent of the budget (62 percent expended, and 8 percent encumbered). 

Based on the financial activities for the eight months ended May 31, 2018, the financial 
condition of the District is positive and budget variances are generally favorable.  There are 
no reported or identified major trends, conditions or variances that warrant additional 
management attention. 

Packet Pg. 142

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it-

M
o 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tm

t M
A

Y2
01

8 
 (3

81
7 

: M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t)



Actuals Variance Actuals As A
Current Through (under)/Over % of Budget
Budget 5/31/2018 Budget (rounded)

Sources
Ad Valorem Property Taxes 108,116,279$ 105,738,994$ (2,377,285)$ 98%
Intergovernmental Revenues 54,382,743 3,085,146 (51,297,597) 6%
Interest on Invested Funds 6,200,000 4,636,917 (1,563,083) 75%
License and Permit Fees 1,938,500 1,255,004 (683,496) 65%
Other 603,028 2,383,785 1,780,757 395%
Fund Balance 192,157,253 192,157,253 100%
Total Sources 363,397,803$ 309,257,099$ (54,140,704)$ 85%

Current Available % Expended % Obligated 2

Budget Expenditures Encumbrances1 Budget (rounded) (rounded)
Uses
Water Resource Planning and Monitoring 43,553,423$ 14,132,937$ 17,298,190$ 12,122,296$ 32% 72%
Land Acquisition, Restoration and Public Works 256,383,637 11,220,195 174,016,809 71,146,633 4% 72%
Operation and Maintenance of Works and Lands 26,556,653 10,488,480 4,360,942 11,707,231 39% 56%
Regulation 21,081,860 11,097,746 1,964,718 8,019,396 53% 62%
Outreach 2,838,959 868,931 631,584 1,338,444 31% 53%
Management and Administration 12,983,271 7,993,217 1,110,344 3,879,710 62% 70%
Total Uses 363,397,803$ 55,801,506$ 199,382,587$ 108,213,710$ 15% 70%

1 Encumbrances represent unexpended balances of open purchase orders and contracts.
2 Represents the sum of expenditures and encumbrances as a percentage of the current budget.

This unaudited preliminary financial statement is prepared as of May 31, 2018, and covers the interim period since the most recent audited financial statements.

Southwest Florida Water Management District
Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds

(Unaudited)
For the Eight Months Ended May 31, 2018

Packet Pg. 143

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it-

M
o 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tm

t M
A

Y2
01

8 
 (3

81
7 

: M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t)



Item 33 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Monthly Cash Balances by Fiscal Year 

Purpose 
To provide a schedule of monthly cash balances by fiscal year, updated to reflect the cash 
balance as of May 31, 2018. 

Background 
This routine report has been developed to allow the Governing Board to easily monitor the 
District’s cash balances at each month-end and in comparison with monthly cash balances for 
the last five fiscal years. This trend information will become more important as the District’s 
budget declines and reserves are utilized for projects. 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is presented for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Melisa J. Lowe, Bureau Chief, Finance 

Packet Pg. 144



Southwest Florida Water Management District
Monthly Cash Balances by Fiscal Year
(FY2012-13 - FY2016-17 and FY2017-18 To-Date)

$400M

$450M

$500M

$550M

$600M

$650M

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

FY2012 13

FY2013 14

FY2014 15

FY2015 16

FY2016 17

FY2017 18

Packet Pg. 145

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-1

8 
FO

&
P-

FI
N

 E
xh

ib
it-

M
o 

C
as

h 
B

al
an

ce
s 

by
 F

Y-
M

A
Y2

01
8 

 (3
81

8 
: M

on
th

ly
 C

as
h 

B
al

an
ce

s



Item 34 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Related Reviews Report 

Purpose 
This report is provided for the Committee’s information and shows District activity in the review 
of Local Government Comprehensive Plans and Amendments. Staff updates the report monthly. 

Background/History 
The water management districts provide technical and policy information on water resources 
and water resource management to local governments as they prepare amendments to their 
local government comprehensive plans. This information encompasses various areas of water 
resource management, including water supply, flood protection and water quality, and is 
intended to support sound land use decisions. Statutory directives for this assistance include 
Section 373.711, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Technical Assistance to Local Governments, and 
Section 163.3184, F.S., Process for Adoption of Comprehensive Plan or Plan Amendments. 
Under Section 163, F.S., substantially revised in 2011, if important state resources and facilities 
are to be adversely impacted, the water management districts and other state reviewing 
agencies must state with specificity how the plan amendment will adversely impact the resource 
or facility and must include measures that the local government may take to eliminate, reduce, 
or mitigate the impacts. Any plan amendment comments provided by a water management 
district and/or other state agencies that are not resolved may be challenged by the Department 
of Economic Opportunity (DEO).   

Benefits/Costs 
The benefits of the District’s local government technical assistance program are to ensure local 
government elected officials have sound water resource technical and policy information as they 
amend their local government comprehensive plans. This helps to ensure local plans are 
compatible with the District’s plans, programs and statutory direction. Costs for this program 
primarily include staff time and are budgeted in Fund 10 (Governing Board). 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Robyn Felix, Communications and Board Services Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 146



Local Government 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Related Reviews Report As of June 12, 2018

Project Amendment Type Assigned Completed Description 10YWSFWP

Bartow 18-1 ESR 3/16/2018 4/13/2018 No substantive comments.

Bradenton 18-2 ESR 4/30/2018 5/30/2018 Advised that 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan update is 
overdue and District staff are available to provide technical 
assistance.

Brooksville 18-1 ESR 5/14/2018 Map and text amendments.

Bushnell 18-1 ESR 5/23/2018 Text amendments.

Charlotte 18-2 ESR 4/2/2018 4/25/2018 No substantive comments.

Coleman 18-1 ESR 3/13/2018 3/27/2018 No substantive comments.

Davenport 18-1 ESR 4/27/2018 5/30/2018 Comments addressed the need for data and analysis demonstrating 
the availability of potable water, reuse, conservation, floodplains, 
wetlands, an existing WUP and encouraged early regulatory 
coordination.

Davenport 18-2 ESR 4/30/2018 5/30/2018 Comments addressed the need for data and analysis demonstrating 
the availability of potable water, reuse, conservation, floodplains, 
wetlands, an existing WUP and encouraged early regulatory 
coordination.

Hernando 18-1 ESR 3/22/2018 4/19/2018 Comments addressed existing wells, dewatering activities (if 
proposed), and need for documentation confirming the availability 
of adequate water supply sources and facilities for commercial 
acreage.

Hernando 18-2 EAR-based 3/23/2018 4/20/2018 Plan update. Comment letter addressed language usurping the 
District’s water use permitting authority. The County was also 
encouraged to recognize and participate in the implementation of 
the Weeki Wachee River SWIM Plan.

Hernando 18-3DRI DRI 4/25/2018 5/29/2018 Comments addressed the need for data and analysis demonstrating 
potential potable water capacity, maximization of water 
conservation principles and reuse and encouraged early 
coordination with ERP staff.

Hillsborough 18-1 ESR 3/12/2018 4/9/2018 Comments addressed water supply coordination with TBW, 
implementation of conservation measures and ERP coordination.

Packet Pg. 147

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

C
PA

R
R

  (
37

82
 : 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
t a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

R
ep

or
t)



Project Amendment Type Assigned Completed Description 10YWSFWP

Hillsborough 18-2 ESR 5/15/2018 Text and map amendments.

Lake 18-1 ESR 4/13/2018 4/30/2018 No substantive comments.

Lake 18-2 EAR-based 4/13/2018 4/30/2018 No substantive comments.

Lake 18-3 ESR 5/3/2018 5/30/2018 No substantive comments.

Lake 18-4 ESR 5/3/2018 5/30/2018 Advised amendment site is located in SJRWMD.

Lake 18-5 ESR 5/14/2018 Map amendment.

Lake 18-6 ESR 6/4/2018 Map and text amendments.

Lakeland 18-2 ESR 3/15/2018 4/13/2018 No substantive comments.

Largo 18-1 ESR 4/9/2018 5/4/2018 No substantive comments.

Manatee 18-1 ESR 4/11/2018 4/30/2018 No substantive comments.

Marion 18-1 ESR 4/30/2018 5/31/2018 Advised of subject property’s location within SJRWMD.

North Port 18-1 ESR 4/17/2018 5/15/2018 Comments addressed the need for data and analysis demonstrating 
the availability of potable water, reuse, conservation, wetlands and 
encouraged early coordination with ERP staff.

Pasco 18-3 ESR 4/10/2018 5/10/2018 Comments addressed flood prone areas, wetland and encouraged 
early coordination with ERP staff.

Pasco 18-4 ESR 5/22/2018 Map amendment.

Plant City 18-1 ESR 4/9/2018 5/3/2018 Comments encouraged implementation of water conservation 
principles, development clustering to increase the development 
potential of uplands and regulatory coordination.

Polk 18-3 ESR 4/23/2018 5/15/2018 Comments addressed the need for data and analysis demonstrating 
the availability of water potable supply, floodplains, wetlands, 
existing WUP/wells and encouraged early coordination with 
regulatory staff.

Polk 18-4 ESR 6/8/2018 Map and text amendments.

Polk 18-4 ESR 6/11/2018 Map amendments.

Punta Gorda 18-1 ESR 3/27/2018 4/25/2018 No substantive comments.

Sarasota 18-1 ESR 3/6/2018 4/3/2018 No substantive comments.

Packet Pg. 148

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

C
PA

R
R

  (
37

82
 : 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
t a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

R
ep

or
t)



Project Amendment Type Assigned Completed Description 10YWSFWP

Sarasota 18-2 ESR 3/26/2018 4/25/2018 No substantive comments.

Sarasota 18-3 ESR 5/25/2018 Text amendments.

Sumter 18-2 ESR 4/25/2018 5/25/2018 Comments addressed need for data and analysis for water supply 
source availability, maximization of water conservation principles 
and reuse and encouraged coordination with regulatory staff.   

Sumter 18-3 ESR 5/22/2018 Text amendment.

Sumter 18-4 ESR 6/1/2018 Text amendment.

Tampa 18-1 ESR 3/8/2018 3/27/2018 No substantive comments.

Tarpon Springs 18-1 ESR 4/24/2018 5/23/2018 No substantive comments.

Wildwood 18-1 ESR 5/18/2018 Map amendment.

Williston 18-1 EAR-based 5/23/2018 Evaluation and Appraisal-related text amendments.

Winter Haven 18-2 ESR 4/30/2018 5/30/2018 Comments addressed reuse, conservation and encouraged early 
coordination with ERP staff.

Zephyrhills 18-1 ESR 5/22/2018 Map amendments.

Packet Pg. 149

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

C
PA

R
R

  (
37

82
 : 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
t a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

R
ep

or
t)



Item 35 

FINANCE/OUTREACH & PLANNING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Development of Regional Impact Activity Report 

Purpose 
This report is provided for the Committee’s information and shows District activity in the review 
of Developments of Regional Impact (DRIs). Staff updates the report monthly.  

Background/History 
The water management districts participate with other state agencies in the review of DRIs, 
pursuant to Section 380.06, Florida Statutes. A DRI is defined as any development which, 
because of its character, magnitude or location, would have a substantial effect upon the health, 
safety or welfare of citizens of more than one county. A set of statewide guidelines and 
standards (thresholds) has been adopted by rule that is used in determining whether particular 
developments must undergo DRI review. A form has been adopted by rule that specifies the 
information that must be provided by the developer in the DRI Application for Development 
Approval (ADA). 

The DRI review process is administered by the regional planning councils and oversight is 
provided by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO). The District has also 
entered into memoranda of agreement with the Central Florida, Southwest Florida, Tampa Bay 
and Withlacoochee regional planning councils to more specifically outline the District's DRI 
review responsibilities. The District provides water resource management technical and policy 
information to the regional planning councils and local governments to assist them in making 
well-informed growth management decisions. 

Benefits/Costs 
The goals of the District's DRI review program are twofold: (1) to ensure regional planning 
councils and local government elected officials have sound water resource technical and policy 
information as they consider approval of large scale development proposals; and (2) to reduce 
the number and magnitude of issues that will need to be addressed during the District’s 
regulatory review processes. District participation in this program helps to ensure that these 
proposed large-scale developments are compatible with the District's plans, programs and 
statutory directives. Costs for this program primarily include staff time and are budgeted in Fund 
10 (Governing Board). 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Robyn Felix, Communications and Board Services Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 150



DRI Activity Report As of June 12, 2018

Project DRI Location DRI App Type Date Assigned Date Completed Description

Palmer Ranch DRI Sarasota County Application for 
Incremental 

Development 
Approval

3/27/2018 4/5/2018 Increment 28, Parcel 6A. Proposed development 
includes 500 single-family units on 282 acres. No 
substantive comments.

Packet Pg. 151

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

D
R

I A
ct

iv
ity

 R
ep

or
t  

(3
71

8 
: D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f R
eg

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

 A
ct

iv
ity

 R
ep

or
t)





Governing Board Meeting
June 26, 2018

OPERATIONS, LANDS & RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Discussion Items 

36. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

Submit & File Reports 

37. Hydrologic Conditions Report .....................................................................................................153

Routine Reports 

38. Surplus Lands Update ................................................................................................................156

39. Structure Operations ...................................................................................................................157

40. Significant Activities ....................................................................................................................159



Item 36 

OPERATIONS, LANDS AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Ken Frink, P.E., Division Director, Operations, Lands, and Resource Monitoring 

Packet Pg. 152



Item 37 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Submit and File Report 
Hydrologic Conditions Report 

This routine report provides information on the general state of the District's hydrologic 
conditions, by comparing rainfall, surface water, and groundwater levels for the month under 
review, which is May, with comparable data from the historical record.  The data shown are 
typically considered final, fully verified monthly values, but occasionally, due to timing of 
publication, some data are identified as "provisional," meaning that the values shown are best 
estimates based on incomplete data.   

The information presented below is a summary of data presented in more detail in the monthly 
Hydrologic Conditions Report published the week before the Governing Board meeting, which 
also includes an updated provisional summary of hydrologic conditions as of the date of 
publication.  It is available at http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/waterres/hydro/. 

Rainfall 
Rainfall totals for May indicate amounts were at or near record highs in all three regions of the 
District. The normal range is defined as rainfall totals that fall on or between the 25th to 75th 
percentiles derived from the historical data for each month. 

· Northern region rainfall averaged 9.01 inches, equivalent to the 98th percentile
· Central region rainfall averaged 10.38 inches, equivalent to the 98th percentile.
· Southern region rainfall averaged 12.26 inches, a new record high for May, equivalent to the

100th percentile.
· District-wide, average rainfall was 10.65 inches, a new record high for May, equivalent to the

100th percentile.

Streamflow 
Streamflow data indicate that flow decreased in the northern region of the District, while it 
increased in the central and southern regions, compared to the previous month. Based on flow 
measurements in regional index rivers, streamflow conditions were within the normal range in 
the northern region, while they were above-normal in the central region and southern regions. 
Normal streamflow is defined as flow that falls on or between the 25th and 75th percentiles.  

· The monthly average streamflow in the Withlacoochee River near Holder in the northern
region was in the 51st percentile.

· The monthly average streamflow measured in the Hillsborough River near Zephyrhills in the
central region was in the 95th percentile.

· The monthly average streamflow measured in the Peace River at Arcadia in the southern
region was in the 92nd percentile.

·  
Groundwater Levels 
Groundwater data for May indicate that levels in the Floridan/Intermediate aquifer increased in 
all three regions of the District, compared to last month.  Groundwater levels ended the month 

Packet Pg. 153



Item 37 

at above-normal levels in all three regions. Normal groundwater levels are defined as those 
falling on or between the 25th and 75th percentiles.  

· The average groundwater level in the northern region was in the 77th percentile.
· The average groundwater level in the central region was in the 86th percentile.
· The average groundwater level in the southern region was in the 88th percentile.

Lake Levels 

Water level data indicates that average regional lake levels increased in all four lake regions of 
the District, compared to the previous month.  Regional lake levels ended the month below the 
annual normal range in the Northern and Lake Wales Ridge regions, while levels remained 
within the normal range in the Tampa Bay and Polk Uplands regions. Normal lake levels are 
generally considered to be levels that fall between the minimum low management level and the 
minimum flood level.   

· Average levels in the Northern region increased 0.13 foot and were 0.80 foot below the base
of the annual normal range.

· Average lake levels in the Tampa Bay region increased 0.29 foot and were 0.58 foot above
the base of the annual normal range.

· Average lake levels in the Polk Uplands region increased 0.23 foot and were 1.23 feet
above the base of the annual normal range.

· Average lake levels in the Lake Wales Ridge region increased 0.33 foot and were 0.12 foot
below the base of the annual normal range.

·  
Issues of Significance 
May completes the last month of the eight-month dry-season (October-May) and rainfall totals 
for the month saw accumulations well above-normal in all three regions of the District. Rainfall 
was much lower than average during the first 14 days of May.  However, the remainder of the 
month saw a stationary tropical disturbance located in the Caribbean Sea that transitioned into 
Tropical Storm Alberto bringing extensive amounts of rainfall into the District that caused 
localized flooding in some areas, with local accumulations of over 19.0 inches reported. May 
2018 set a record as the wettest May in 102 years, with nearly 10.3 inches of rainfall received 
District-wide. 

With the high rainfall in May, the District-wide 12-month cumulative rainfall total saw 
improvements, ending the month at a surplus of approximately 12.2 inches above the long-term 
historical average, while the 24-month cumulative total improved to a surplus of 3.3 inches. 
Analysis of “dry-season” rainfall totals, District-wide, saw about 24.5 inches, which is a 2.7-inch 
surplus above the long-term historic average of 21.8 inches. 

The abundant rainfall seen during May erased any dry conditions throughout the District and 
allowed declining hydrologic indicators to significantly improve.  Streamflow on the District’s 
rivers rebounded to normal to above-normal levels, allowing resumption of their use as sources 
of water supply, while regional groundwater and lake levels showed significant improvements as 
well.   

Current NOAA climate forecasts indicate above-normal rainfall conditions for the four-month 
wet-season (June-September), while the NOAA forecast for the 2018 Hurricane Season 
predicts 10 to 16 named storms, 5 to 9 hurricanes and 1 to 4 major hurricanes.   

Packet Pg. 154



Item 37 

Updated weather forecasts will be available in mid-June. Staff will continue to closely monitor 
conditions in accordance with the District's updated Water Shortage Plan, including any 
necessary supplemental analysis of pertinent data.   

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Board's information only, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Granville Kinsman, Hydrologic Data Manager 

Packet Pg. 155



Item 38 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Surplus Lands Update 

Purpose  
This report provides a monthly status on the District’s surplus lands program. Information is 
through May 31, 2018. 

Background 
In 2011, at the direction of the Governing Board (Board), the District began a regular surplus 
lands assessment. The table below shows the status of the parcels identified through the 
previous surplus lands assessments.  

Status Acres Parcels Compensation 

Sold, exchanged or transferred 1,492  23 $7,362,484 

Closing pending 32  13 $490,200 

Listed with broker with approved minimum sale price 766 11 

Listed with broker without minimum sale price 320 5 

Annutteliga Hammock 547  996  

Offer to adjoining owners (per Florida Statutes) 23  12  

Agency request 8  5 

Non-marketable 20 4 

On hold 1,741 7 

Grand Total 4,949  1,077   $7,852,684 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Board’s information and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Carmen Sanders, Operations and Land Management Assistant Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 156



Item 39 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Structure Operations 

Summary of the operations made from April 26 through May 26, 2018. 

· Inglis Water Control Structures:  The Inglis Bypass Spillway and Inglis Main were operated
to provide flow to the lower Withlacoochee River while maintaining Lake Rousseau’s level.
Lake Rousseau’s monthly average elevation was of 27.58 feet National Geodetic Vertical
Datum (NGVD).  The recommended maintenance level for the lake is 27.50 feet NGVD.

· Withlacoochee River Watershed:  Water control structures in the Tsala Apopka Chain of
Lakes were closed to maintain water levels.  The Wysong-Coogler Water Conservation main
and the low flow gate were operated to aid in the regulation of the Lake Panasoffkee water
level while providing flow to the Withlacoochee River downstream of the structure.  The
monthly average water level for Lake Panasoffkee was 39.63 feet NGVD.

· Alafia River Watershed:  The Medard Reservoir structure was operated to maintain water
level.  The monthly average water level for the Medard Reservoir was 58.19 feet NGVD,
compared to the recommended maintenance level of 59.00 feet NGVD.

· Hillsborough River Watershed:  The Thirteen Mile Run system and Flint Creek
(Thonotosassa discharge) structure were operated to maintain water levels.  The average
monthly water level for Lake Thonotosassa was 36.00 feet NGVD, compared to the
recommended maintenance level of 36.50 feet NGVD.

· Tampa Bay/Anclote Watershed: Structures in the Rocky Creek, Sweetwater Creek were
operated to maintain water lake water levels. The Brooker Creek system was operated to
maintain lake levels.  Lake Tarpon is the outfall of the Brooker Creek system.  Lake Tarpon’s
water control structure was operated to maintain the lake level.  Lake Tarpon’s monthly
average water level for the month was 2.97 feet NGVD, compared to the recommended
maintenance level of 3.20 feet NGVD.

· Peace River Watershed:  Lake Hancock structure was operated to maintain water level.
The average monthly water level for Lake Hancock was 98.92 feet NGVD, compared to the
recommended maintenance level of 100.2 feet NGVD.

· Lake Wales Ridge Watershed:  Structure G-90 was operated to maintain water level in Lake
June-in-Winter.  The average monthly water level for Lake June-in-Winter was 74.20 feet
NGVD, compared to the recommended level of 74.50 feet NGVD.

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Board's information only, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Jerry Mallams, P.G., Operations and Land Management Bureau Chief 

Packet Pg. 157



#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#*#*

#*#*
#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

JUNE-IN-WINTER (G-90)

PRETTY
ARMISTEAD

#*

FANNIE (P-7)

BRADLEY

ROUSSEAU

KEENE

SMART (P-6)
HENRY (P-5)

HANNA

HAINES

HANCOCK (P-11)

STEMPER
LOWERY

BAY

ARIETTA (P-3)

CRESCENT

ANN-PARKER

THONOTOSASSA

MEDARD

LESLIE HEIFNER

HERNANDO POOL

CONSUELLA

GIBSON

INVERNESS POOL

FLORAL CITY POOL

TARPON

SAWGRASS

ELLEN-LIPSEY

KELL

PARKER

CARROLL

KEYSTONE

MAGDALENE

WHITE TROUT

HAMILTON (P-8)
LENA (P-1)

ISLAND FORD

POLK

LAKE

MARION

PASCO

CITRUS

LEVY

MANATEE
HARDEE

SUMTER

ORANGE

HILLSBOROUGH

HIGHLANDS

DESOTO

OSCEOLA

VOLUSIA

HERNANDO

SARASOTA

SEMINOLE

PINELLAS

FLAGLER

District
Structure
Sites

´
Packet Pg. 158

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

St
r O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 e
xh

ib
it 

 (3
79

5 
: S

tr
uc

tu
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
)



Item 40 

OPERATIONS, LANDS, AND RESOURCE MONITORING COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Significant Activities 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Ken Frink, P.E., Operations, Lands and Resource Monitoring Division Director 

Packet Pg. 159



 
This report provides monthly information through May 30, 2018 on significant Operations and 
Land Management projects and programs in which the Governing Board is participating in funding 
and otherwise may be of interest to the Board. The report provides a brief description and status 
of significant activities associated with the projects that have recently occurred or are about to 
happen. 
 
Land Management 
 

 Staff has applied prescribed fire to 20,538 acres of conservation lands during FY2018.  
 
 Staff continue to trap and conduct phased feral hog management hunts on District lands.  

There have been 1,138 feral hogs removed from District lands during FY2018. 
 

 Green Swamp Hampton Tract FY2018 harvest has been completed.   
o 775 loads removed 
o 635 loads (16,879.63 tons) paid thus far 
o $244,079.48 generated to date 

 
Land Resources/Land Use and Protection 
 

 Issued Special Use Authorization to Joseph Thompson for authorization to traverse, via 
vehicle, a portion of South McGregor Smith Trail within the District’s ownership at Flying 
Eagle Nature Center for the purpose of surveying a private land parcel prior to a future 
purchase by the authorized user. 

 
 Issued Special Use Authorization to Linda Iwersen for authorization to traverse, via 

vehicle, a portion of McNeil Road within the District’s ownership at Green Swamp West 
to access her private property. 

 
 Issued Special Use Authorization email to Tracy Howell, FWC Species Management, for 

vehicle access to the Lake Hancock boat ramp to facilitate alligator egg collection via 
airboat. 
 

 Issued Special Use Authorization to Tom Palmer on behalf of the North American 
Butterfly Association for vehicle access to parts of the Hampton Tract as part of a 
butterfly count around Colt Creek State Park.  

 
 Issued Special Use Authorization to Joshua Campbell, USF Herbarium, for vehicle 

access to Green Swamp – East & West Tracts to facilitate biweekly site visits to collect 
mushrooms for a vegetative survey. 
 

 Volunteers provided 248 hours of service at a value of approximately $5,842.88 to the 
District’s conservation/recreation lands. Volunteer services included campground 
maintenance, trash removal, fence repair, and tree trimming. 
 

 Processed 145 requests and provided 643 camping opportunities on District lands. 
 The following is a breakdown of District land interests: 

 

Packet Pg. 160

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

96
 : 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

)



 
 
 

Packet Pg. 161

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

96
 : 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

)



This item is presented for the Board’s information only, no action is required. 
 

Packet Pg. 162

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 M
in

Tr
aq

  (
37

96
 : 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

)

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 





Governing Board Meeting 
June 26, 2018 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 

Discussion Items 

41. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

42.  Denials Referred to the Governing Board ..................................................................................164 

Submit & File Reports - None 

Routine Reports 

43. Dover/Plant City Water Use Caution Area Flow Meter AMR Implementation Program Update 165

44.  Overpumpage Report .................................................................................................................166 

45.  Individual Permits Issued by District Staff ..................................................................................170 



Item 41 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Alba Más, P.E., Division Director, Regulation 

Packet Pg. 163



Item 42 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Denials Referred to the Governing Board 

District Rule 40D-1.6051, Florida Administrative Code, provides that if District staff intends to 
deny a permit application, the applicant will be advised of the opportunity to request referral to 
the Governing Board for final action. 

Under these circumstances, if an applicant or petitioner requests their application or petition be 
referred to the Governing Board for final action, that application or petition will appear under this 
agenda item for consideration.  As these items will be presented at the request of an outside 
party, specific information may not be available until just prior to the Governing Board meeting. 

Staff Recommendation: 

If any denials are requested to be referred to the Governing Board, these will be presented at 
the meeting. 

Presenter:   Alba Más, P.E., Division Director, Regulation 

Packet Pg. 164



Item 43 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Dover/Plant City Water Use Caution Area Flow Meter AMR Implementation Program 
Update 

At their December 2010 meeting, the Governing Board adopted a minimum aquifer level in the 
Dover/Plant City Water Use Caution Area (DPCWUCA); Rule 40D-8.626, Florida Administrative 
Code (F.A.C.), as well as a recovery strategy (Rule 40D-80.075, F.A.C.) that incorporated flow 
meters and automatic meter reading (AMR) equipment installations to monitor and reduce 
resource impacts from future frost/freeze pumping events. Meter information in the Dover/Plant 
City area will be used by the District to: (1) improve the allocation of well mitigation 
responsibilities among permit holders, (2) allow District staff to better identify permit compliance 
issues resulting from pumping during frost/freeze events, (3) improve the modeling of impacts 
resulting from pumping during frost/freeze events, (4) allow the monitoring of performance and 
track the progress of management actions implemented, and (5) provide for the overall 
assessment of the recovery strategy goal of reducing frost/freeze protection quantities by 20 
percent in ten years. It was originally estimated as of June 16, 2011 that there were 626 flow 
meters and 961 AMR devices needing installation within the 256-square mile DPCWUCA.  As of 
December 1, 2016 it was estimated that 573 flow meters and 954 AMR devices will need to be 
installed, currently, a revised assessment completed of June 1, 2018 estimated a program total 
of 556 flow meters and 885 AMR devices.  This revised assessment is due to expired permits, 
use change, and deletion of withdrawals not required to be metered and have AMR devices. 
Total costs of the program were estimated to be $5.5 million for flow meter and AMR equipment 
installation with approximately $316,000 required annually to support the program. On August 7, 
2013, the AMR equipment installation and operation component of this project under RFP 004-
13 was awarded to Locher Environmental Technology, LLC, partnered with AMEC 
Environmental and Infrastructure, Inc., and Hydrogage, Inc. The contract was executed on 
November 14, 2013. Letters with flow meter reimbursement information were sent on 
September 17, 2015 to the remaining permittees who have not yet installed a flow meter.  New 
Activities Since Last Meeting:  As of June 1, 2018, a total of 519 flow meters have been 
installed (93 percent complete) and 813 AMR units have been installed (92 percent complete). 
Project Manager: Talia Paolillo 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information, and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Darrin Herbst, P.G., Bureau Chief, Water Use Permit Bureau 

Packet Pg. 165



Item 44 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Overpumpage Report 

Please see the attached report. 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Darrin Herbst, P.G., Bureau Chief, Water Use Permit Bureau 

Packet Pg. 166



Overpumpage Report 
April 2018 

Under Review (1) Permit Application In-House (2) Forwarded to OGC (3) 

Permit No. Permit Holder Use Type Permitted 
Quantity 

Original  
Report Date

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Current Report 
Date 

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Service Office 

New From Previous Report 

12386.003 De Monte Fresh Production, 
Inc. 1 

Agriculture -
Tomatoes 1,000,000 gpd 

02/01/2018 
1,211,855 gpd 
21.19% 

04/01/2018 
1,295,214 gpd 
29.52% 

Sarasota 

(1) Preliminary determination - permit is in non-compliance and file is under review by Regulation staff.
(2) A permit application is in-house for review.
(3) The non-compliance matter has been referred to the Office of General Counsel (OGC).

Packet Pg. 167

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ju
n1

8 
R

ou
tin

e 
R

ep
or

ts
 - 

O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge

 R
ep

or
t_

A
pr

il 
20

18
 F

IN
A

L 
 (3

82
2 

: O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge



Overpumpage Report 
April 2018 

Under Review (1) Permit Application In-House (2) Forwarded to OGC (3) 

Permit No. Permit Holder Use Type Permitted 
Quantity 

Original  
Report Date

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Current Report 
Date 

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Service Office 

Continuing From Previous Report 

9419.008 Alico, Inc. (South Patrick Grove) 1 Agriculture – 
Citrus 531,400 gpd 

11/01/2017 
641,858 gpd 
20.79% 

04/01/2018 
573,254 gpd 
7.88% 

Polk 

12900.002 Perico Island Development 1 Recreation -
Lawn/Landscaping  130,500 gpd 

11/01/2017 
196,759 gpd 
50.77% 

04/01/2018 
160,186 gpd 
22.75% 

Sarasota 

1240.005 Bethel Farms, LLP (Rod R. 
Sweet) 1 

Agriculture – 
Citrus 74,900 gpd 

07/01/2017 
88,701 gpd 
18.43% 

04/01/2018 
89,978 gpd 
20.13% 

Sarasota 

3219.007 Gardinier Florida Citrus, Inc. 1 Agriculture – 
Citrus 322,600 gpd 

06/01/2017 
436,926 gpd 
35.44% 

04/01/2018 
400,099 gpd 
24.02% 

Polk 

8687.005 
Mary L. Keene as Trustee of the 
William K. Keene Family Trust 
(Russell Farm) 1 

Agriculture -
Strawberries and 

Squash  
100,800 gpd 

04/01/2017 
114,764 gpd 
13.85% 

04/01/2018 
116,367 gpd 
15.44% 

Tampa 

696.006 Gardinier Florida Citrus, Inc. 1 Agriculture – 
Citrus 210,600 gpd 

05/01/2017 
293,762 gpd 
39.49% 

04/01/2018 
267,921 gpd 
27.22% 

Polk 

2588.010 Kelly Family Holdings, LLC (Kelly 
Farms) 2&3 

Agriculture – 
Potatoes and 

Pasture 
704,600 gpd 

11/01/2016 
851,054 gpd 
20.79% 

04/01/2018 
1,447,463 gpd 
105.43% 

Sarasota 

(1) Preliminary determination - permit is in non-compliance and file is under review by Regulation staff.
(2) A permit application is in-house for review.
(3) The non-compliance matter has been referred to the Office of General Counsel (OGC)

Packet Pg. 168

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ju
n1

8 
R

ou
tin

e 
R

ep
or

ts
 - 

O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge

 R
ep

or
t_

A
pr

il 
20

18
 F

IN
A

L 
 (3

82
2 

: O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge



Overpumpage Report 
April 2018 

 
 
Under Review (1) Permit Application In-House (2) Forwarded to OGC (3) 

Permit No. Permit Holder Use Type Permitted 
Quantity 

Original  
Report Date  

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Current Report 
Date 

Annual Avg. Use 
Percent Over 

Service Office 

Continuing From Previous Report 

1156.012 Bay Laurel Center Public Water 
Supply System 3 Public Supply 2,555,000 gpd 

09/01/2016 
2,696,799 gpd 
5.55% 

04/01/2018 
2,869,107 gpd 
12.29% 

Brooksville 

7993.003 Harrell’s Nursery 1 
Agriculture -

Nursery, 
Container 

20,100 gpd 
07/01/2016 
24,051 gpd 
19.66% 

04/01/2018 
21,865 gpd 
8.78% 

Tampa 

7002.004 MHC FR Utility Systems, LLC 3  Public Supply 97,100 gpd 
04/01/2015 
104,929 gpd 
8.06% 

04/01/2018 
522,185 gpd 
437.78% 

Tampa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(1) Preliminary determination - permit is in non-compliance and file is under review by Regulation staff. 
(2) A permit application is in-house for review. 
(3) The non-compliance matter has been referred to the Office of General Counsel (OGC) 

 

Packet Pg. 169

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ju
n1

8 
R

ou
tin

e 
R

ep
or

ts
 - 

O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge

 R
ep

or
t_

A
pr

il 
20

18
 F

IN
A

L 
 (3

82
2 

: O
ve

rp
um

pa
ge



Item 45 

REGULATION COMMITTEE 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
Individual Permits Issued by District Staff 

Please see the attached report. 

Staff Recommendation: 

This item is provided for the Committee’s information and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Alba Más, P.E., Division Director, Regulation 

Packet Pg. 170



INDIVIDUAL PERMITS ISSUED:  ERPS – JUNE 2018 

PERMIT 
NUMBER 

PROJECT 
NAME COUNTY DESCRIPTION 

TOTAL 
PROJECT 
ACRES 

WETLAND 
ACRES 

WETLAND 
ACRES 

IMPACTED 

WETLAND 
MITIGATION 

ACRES 

43042998.010 
Villages of Southern 
Oaks Mass Grade – 
Phase 3B 

Sumter Mass grading for a future 
subdivision 447.08 90.16 6.03 78.82 

43042852.001 Evers Reservoir Manatee 
Construction of a residential 
development with a maximum of 
600 dwelling units (single family 
and multi-family units) 

200.68 22.18 17.17 4.50 

Wetland Mitigation Acres may be zero or less than Wetland Acres Impacted for a variety of reasons.  Some of those reasons 
are: impacted wetlands require no mitigation by rule (e.g., upland cut manmade ditches, etc.); quality of the impacted wetlands 
is less than the quality of proposed mitigation; or mitigation is provided through a different permit or a mitigation bank. 

INDIVIDUAL PERMITS ISSUED:  WUPS – JUNE 2018 

PERMIT 
NUMBER PROJECT NAME COUNTY DESCRIPTION USE TYPE 

PREVIOUS 
PERMITTED 
QUANTITY 

NEW 
PERMITTED 
QUANTITY 

DURATION 
(YEARS) 

20012075.005 Venetian Golf and 
River Club Sarasota 

Renewal with no change in 
use or significant change of 
quantities; total demand is 
707,800 gpd due to 300 gpd 
of reclaim 

Landscape / 
Recreation 407,800 407,800 20 

20020745.000 Streamsong WUP Polk 
New permit based on partial 
transfer from Mosaic WUP 
2715 plus an additional 18-
hole golf course 

Landscape / 
Recreation 851,900 1,062,700 20 

Packet Pg. 171

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

Ju
n1

8 
R

ou
tin

e 
R

ep
or

ts
 - 

In
di

vi
du

al
 P

er
m

its
 Is

su
ed

 b
y 

St
af

f  
(3

82
1 

: I
nd

iv
id

ua
l P

er
m

its
 Is

su
ed





Governing Board Meeting 
June 26, 2018 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
Discussion Items 

46. Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion

47. Revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal – Delegation of Authority to General Counsel for
 Certain Administrative Hearing Matters .................................................................................. 173 

Submit & File Reports - None 

Routine Reports 

48.  June 2018 – Litigation Report .................................................................................................. 176 

49.  June 2018 – Rulemaking Update ............................................................................................. 186 



Item 46 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Consent Item(s) Moved for Discussion 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Karen E. West, General Counsel 

Packet Pg. 172



Item 47 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal – Delegation of Authority to General Counsel for 
Certain Administrative Hearing Matters 

Pursuant to Section 373.083(5), Florida Statutes (“F.S.”), the District’s Governing Board is 
authorized to delegate authority to District staff for the purpose of executing any of the powers, 
duties, and functions vested in the Governing Board by statute. The Governing Board has 
delegated certain matters to District staff through adoption of Board Policies aimed at improving 
the efficiency of District processes. One such process is the administration of Section 120.569, 
F.S., relating to petitions for administrative hearing challenging agency action.

When a petition is filed with the District pursuant to Section 120.569, F.S., the District must 
carefully review the petition to determine if the petition contains a defect that cannot be cured. If 
it conclusively appears from the face of the petition that the defect cannot be cured, the District 
will dismiss the petition. Board Policy 160-4 currently does not delegate authority to the General 
Counsel to dismiss a petition without leave to amend when the General Counsel determines 
conclusively from the face of the petition that a defect cannot be cured. The authority to enter a 
final order dismissing the petition without leave to amend remains with the Governing Board. 
The efficiency of the District’s procedure for processing petitions for administrative hearing will 
be improved by delegating this authority to the General Counsel. Delegation of this authority will 
allow the District to meet the 15-day timeframe for acting upon a petition filed at or near the date 
of a District Governing Board meeting that would other otherwise result in an extended period of 
time elapsing before the Governing Board has the opportunity to consider the matter at the 
following Board meeting. Additionally, this delegation will provide the General Counsel with the 
authority to determine and act upon a purely legal issue regarding a petition for administrative 
hearing, similar to the procedure established by the Department of Environmental Protection in 
Rule 62-113.200(3)(b), Florida Administrative Code. 

The proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4 will improve the efficiency of the District’s 
procedure for processing petitions for administrative hearing pursuant to Section 120.569, F.S. 
This improved efficiency will better enable the District to comply with statutory requirements. 
Accordingly, District staff recommend approval of the proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve the proposed revision to Board Policy 160-4, Legal - Delegation of Authority to General 
Counsel for Certain Administrative Hearing Matters authorizing the General Counsel to enter a 
final order dismissing a petition for administrative hearing with prejudice if it conclusively 
appears from the face of the petition that a defect cannot be cured.  

Presenter:   Karen E. West , General Counsel and Christopher A. Tumminia, Senior Attorney 

Packet Pg. 173



Packet Pg. 174

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

B
O

A
R

D
 P

O
LI

C
Y 

16
0-

4 
- E

xh
ib

it 
to

 R
ec

ap
 0

6-
12

-1
8 

 (3
83

0 
: J

un
e 

20
18

 - 
R

ev
is

io
n 

to
 B

P 
16

0-
4 

- K
EW

 a
nd

 C
T)

Exhibit A



Packet Pg. 175

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

B
O

A
R

D
 P

O
LI

C
Y 

16
0-

4 
- E

xh
ib

it 
to

 R
ec

ap
 0

6-
12

-1
8 

 (3
83

0 
: J

un
e 

20
18

 - 
R

ev
is

io
n 

to
 B

P 
16

0-
4 

- K
EW

 a
nd

 C
T)



Item 48 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
June 2018 - Litigation Report 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Karen E. West, General Counsel 

Packet Pg. 176



Packet Pg. 177

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 178

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 179

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 180

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 181

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 182

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 183

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 184

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



Packet Pg. 185

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t (

fo
r J

un
e 

20
18

 G
B

 M
ee

tin
g)

  (
38

07
 : 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8 
-



  Item 49 
 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 
June 2018 - Rulemaking Update 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Karen E. West, General Counsel 

Packet Pg. 186



Packet Pg. 187

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
-2

01
8 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 - 
R

ul
em

ak
in

g 
U

pd
at

e 
(fo

r J
un

e 
20

18
 G

B
-M

ee
tin

g)
  (

38
08

 : 
Ju

ne
 2

01
8 

- R
ul

em
ak

in
g 

U
pd

at
e)





  Item 50 
 

COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Agricultural and Green Industry Advisory Committees 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Kelly S. Rice, Board Member 

Packet Pg. 188



  Item 51 
 

COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Committee/Liaison Reports 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Board Members 

Packet Pg. 189





Item 52 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Executive Director's Report 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Brian J. Armstrong, P.G., Executive Director 

Packet Pg. 190





  Item 53 
 

CHAIR'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Chair's Report 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair 

Packet Pg. 191



  Item 54 
 

CHAIR'S REPORT 
June 26, 2018 
Discussion Item 
Other 

Staff Recommendation: 

Presenter:   Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair 

Packet Pg. 192



Item 55 

CHAIR'S REPORT

June 26, 2018 
Routine Report 

Employee Milestones 

Staff Recommendation: 

This Item is for information only and no action is required. 

Presenter:   Jeffrey M. Adams, Chair 

Packet Pg. 193



Years of Service Seniority Date Preferred Full Name Position Title Office Location Bureau
5 06/10/2013 Lori Kalman Payroll Accountant Lead Brooksville Finance
10 06/30/2008 Terese Power Professional Engineer Brooksville Water Resources
15 06/09/2003 Michael Bench WUP Compliance Technician Tampa Water Use Permit
20 06/01/1998 Jeff Whealton Agricultural Reg Program Coordinator Tampa Environmental Resource Permit
20 06/01/1998 Tim Major Geomatics Technician Brooksville Data Collection
20 06/08/1998 Gene Altman Senior Professional Engineer Brooksville Natural Systems & Restoration
25 06/14/1993 David Carr Staff Environmental Scientist Brooksville Water Resources
25 06/28/1993 Don Ellison Senior Hydrogeologist Brooksville Water Resources
30 06/20/1988 Steve DeSmith Senior Professional Geologist Brooksville Data Collection
35 06/21/1983 Jim Marshall Regulatory Field Technician IV Brooksville Regulatory Support

Packet Pg. 194

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

20
18

-0
6 

M
ile

st
on

es
  (

37
94

 : 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 M

ile
st

on
es

)


	Executive Summary
	announcements http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/calendar
	adjournment

	A. Public Hearing & Meeting
	B. Consent Agenda
	C. Resource Management 
	D. Finance/Outreach & Planning
	E. Operations, Lands and Resource Monitoring
	F. Regulation
	G. General Counsel's Report
	H. Committee/Liaison Report
	I. Executive Director's Report
	J. Chair's Report

	1: Executive Summary
	2: A. Public Hearing & Meeting
	3: B. Consent Agenda
	4: C. Resource Management
	5: D. Finance/Outreach & Planning
	6: E. Operations, Lands & Resource Monitoring
	7: F. Regulation
	8: G. General Counsel's Report
	9: H. Commitee/ Liaison Reports
	10: I. Executive Director's Report
	11: J. Chair's Report


